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PROCEEDINGS RESUME ON 02 NOVEMBER 2020  

CHAIRPERSON:    Good morn ing  Ms Hofmeyr,  good 

morn ing  eve rybody.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Good morn ing  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes are  you ready?  

ADV HOFMEYR:   We are  indeed Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   YES.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Cha i r  th is  week marks  the  cu lm inat ion  o f  10 

the  av ia t ion  work  s t reams invest iga t ion  bar r i ng  a  few loose  

ends tha t  s t i l l  need to  be  wrapped up w i th  cer ta in  

w i tnesses.    

Th is  week is  the  week where  rea l l y  two years  o f  

invest iga t ive  work  w i l l  come to  a  conc lus ion .   And Cha i r  

tha t  m ight  –  the  f i les  beh ind  me might  be  some ind i ca tor  o f  

the  ex ten t  o f  those invest iga t ions .   We have to  have the  

f i les  ins ta l led  w i th  us  th i s  week because the  two w i tnesses  

who w i l l  be  appear ing  th i s  week a re  f i rs t  Ms  Yakhe 

Kwinana who was a  non-execut ive  board  member  o f  SAA 20 

fo r  some many years ;  the  Cha i r  o f  the  SAA Techn ica l  board  

and a lso  the  Cha i r  o f  the  Aud i t  and R isk  Commi t tee  a t  a  

po in t  du r ing  her  tenure  a t  SAA.   

 A lso  th is  week  the  commiss ion  w i l l  rece i ve  the  

ev idence o f  Ms Duduz i le  Myen i .   Aga in  who served fo r  a  
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cons iderab le  per iod  on  the  SAA board  and fo r  many years  

as  i t s  Cha i rperson?  

And much o f  the  ev idence tha t  has been rece ived  

by  th is  commiss ion  pr io r  to  th is  week has invo l ved Ms 

Kwinana or  Ms Myen i  in  var ious  ways and so  there  i s  a  

need to  the  course  o f  the i r  ev idence th is  week to  take  them 

to  o ther  ev idence tha t  has been rece ived in  o rder  to  g ive  

them an oppor tun i ty  to  respond.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Cha i r  the  commiss ion  has rece ived over  10 

the  course  o f  the  av ia t ion  work  s t reams ev idence 

presenta t ion .   Cons ide rab le  ev idence tha t  po in ts  to  s ta te  

capture ,  co r rup t ion  and f raud hav ing  taken ho ld  in  the  

s ta te  owned enterp r ises  in  respect  o f  wh ich  Ms Kwinana  

and Ms Myen i  served on the  boards.  

 And Ms Kwinana who w i l l  tes t i f y  today and  

tomorrow herse l f  has been imp l ica ted  in  cor rup t  ac t s  and in  

c rea t ing  a  c l imate  o f  fear  and in t im ida t ion  aga ins t  those  

SAA employees  and managers  who sought  to  res is t  

un lawfu l  ac ts .  20 

 And so  today and tomorrow rea l l y  o f fe rs  Ms  

Kwinana an oppor tun i ty  to  te l l  her  s ide  o f  the  s to ry  so  tha t  

th is  commiss ion  is  in  a  pos i t ion  in  due course  to  make 

f ind ings,  hav ing  we ighed a l l  the  ev idence tha t  has been  

presented to  i t .  
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 Cha i r  Ms Kwinana is  represented  by  Ms Mban jwa  

whom you have met  be fore .   I  wou ld  l i ke  to  ask  tha t  Ms  

Mban jwa jus t  p laces he rse l f  on  record  i f  we cou ld?  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  Good morn ing  Ms Mban jwa.   Swi tch  

on  your  m icrophone.  Oh I  th ink  tha t  m ight  be  a  wrong one.    

ADV HOFMEYR:   Oh i t  i s .  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  th ink  you might  have to  s i t… 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Ms Mban jwa the  ones tha t  a re  ac t i ve  are  

the  ones i n  the  row beh ind .   So i f  you  cou ld  take  up a  

pos i t ion  there .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Wel l  maybe what  –  maybe what  we  

w i l l  say  because I  do  hear  you,  you conf i rm your  

appearance fo r  Ms Kwinana,  i s  tha t  r igh t?   Maybe I  w i l l  j us t  

p lace  i t  on  record  fo r  you.   You do not  have to  go  and do  

tha t .   Okay.   Okay.    

ADV HOFMEYR:   Cha i r  I  was go ing  to  request  tha t  the 

w i tness be  sworn  in  so  i f  there  i s  someth ing  Ms Mban jwa 

wou ld  l i ke  to  address you on now wou ld  be  an appropr ia te  

t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes su re  j a .   I s  your  m icrophone work ing  20 

Ms Mban jwa?  Yes,  Yes.   Okay.  

ADV MBANJWA:   Sor ry  Cha i r.   Cha i r  the re  has a l ready 

been a  remark  by  Ms Hofmeyr  concern ing  Ms Kwinana who 

is  a  w i tness here  today.   There  i s  a  smal l  address tha t  Ms 

Kwinana wants  to  make.   I  am jus t  ask ing  permiss ion  fo r  
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her  to  make i t .   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   When she s ta r ts  her  ev idence?  

ADV MBANJ WA:   Yes.  Before  she s ta r ts  –  be fore  Ms 

Hofmeyr.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Be fore  the  quest ion ing?  

ADV MBANJ WA:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Be fore  the  quest ion ing?  No tha t  i s  f ine .  

ADV MBANJ WA:   Thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a l r igh t .   Yes Ms Hofmeyr  a re  you 

done?  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Do you want  to… 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes indeed.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   I  am done and we –  i f  we can swear  Ms  

Kwinana in?  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   P lease admin is te r  the  oa th  or  

a f f i rmat ion .  20 

REGISTRAR:   P lease s ta te  your  fu l l  names fo r  the  record .  

MS KWINANA:   Yakhe Kwinana.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Do you have any ob jec t ion  to  tak ing  the  

prescr ibed oath?  

MS KWINANA:   No.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Do you cons ide r  the  oa th  to  b id ing  on  

your  consc ience?  

MS KWINANA:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Do you swear  tha t  the  ev idence you w i l l  

g ive  w i l l  be  the  t ru th ;  the  who le  t ru th  and noth ing  e lse  bu t  

the  t ru th ;  i f  so  p lease ra ise  your  r igh t  hand and say,  so  

he lp  me God.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   So  he lp  me God.  

REGISTRAR:   Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you.   You may be seated Ms 10 

Kwinana.   I  unders tand f rom your  a t to rney tha t  you wou ld  

l i ke  to  say someth ing  be fore  the  quest ion ing  s ta r ts .   I s  tha t  

r igh t?  

MS KWINANA:   Yes Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   How much t ime a re  you ask ing  fo r?  

MS KWINANA:   Maybe less  than two minutes .  

CHAIRPERSON:   That  i s  f ine  okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Cha i r  may I  suggest  tha t  Ms Kwinana jus t  

b r ings the  m icrophone a  b i t  c loser  to  her  because the  

record ing  w i l l  requ i re  tha t  to  be  ampl i f ied .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  yes  thank you.   You may p roceed 

then Ms Kwinana.  

MS KWINANA:   Thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  th ink  you may have to  ra ise  your  vo ice  

or  come c lose r  to  the  m icrophone.   On ly  tha t  one seems to  
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be  the  r igh t  on ,  on ly  tha t  m icrophone.  

MS KWINANA:   Th is  one?  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MS KWINANA:   Thank you Cha i r.   Cha i r  be fore  Ms Hofmeyr  

w i th  her  quest ions I  wou ld  l i ke  to  pu t  on  record  the  

fo l low ing:  

 On two separa te  occas ions Ms Hofmeyr  s ta ted  tha t  I  

was in  a  cor rup t  re la t ionsh ip  wh i ls t  I  was a  d i rec to r  a t  SAA 

and  a  Cha i rperson o f  SAAT.   In  t ha t  I  rece ived k i ckbacks  

and br ibes.  She  a lso  sa id  tha t  I  rece ived an amount  o f  10 

R4.3  m i l l ion .    

I  ins t ruc ted  my a t to rney to  wr i te  a  le t te r  to  the  

commiss ion  request ing  Ms Hofmeyr  to  name the  bas is  o f  

those a l legat ions .   No rep ly  was rece ived to  the  f i rs t  le t te r  

nor  to  the  second  le t te r  wh ich  we a lso  wro te .  

I  was adv ised by  my a t to rney o f  record  tha t  I  wou ld  

app ly  fo r  recusa l  o f  Ms Hofmeyr  on  the  grounds tha t  she i s  

b iased aga ins t  me because bas i ca l l y  she sa id  on  more  than 

one occas ion  she  puts  i t  to  the  w i tness tha t  I  am invo lved  

in  cor rup t  ac t i v i t i es  w i thout  even be ing  in te rv iewed;  w i thout  20 

even be ing  g i ven  an oppor tun i ty  to  s i t  he re .   I  am happy 

Cha i r  today tha t  I  am s i t t ing  here .   

I  however  dec ided tha t  I  shou ld  come to  the  

commiss ion  so  tha t  I  pu t  the  record  s t ra igh t  and in  pu t t ing  

the  record  s t ra igh t  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  s ta te  the  fo l low ing fac ts  
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wh ich  were  b rought  to  the  a t ten t ion  o f  the  invest iga tors  o f  

the  commiss ion  and a l so  conta ined in  Open Wate r  Repor t  

wh ich  is  w i th  the  commiss ion  tha t  fo r  some unknown 

reason are  no t  be ing  dea l t  w i th  i n  the  proceed ings o f  the  

commiss ion .  

Cha i r  I  wou ld  f i r s t  l i ke  to  ta lk  genera l l y  about  the  

f inanc ia ls  o f  SAA.   I  had an oppor tun i ty  o f  look ing  a t  the  

f inanc ia ls  fo r  e igh teen years  f rom 2000 up to  2017.   I  

wanted to  go  fu r ther  to  2018/19/20 March and I  requested 

those f inanc ia ls  bu t  they –  I  unders tand they are  no t  ye t  10 

ava i lab le .  

But  I  want  to  b r ing  i t  to  the  a t ten t ion  o f  the  South  

A f r i cans tha t  s ince  2000 the  year  tha t  I  s ta r ted  to  rev iew 

the  f inanc ia l  s ta tements  the re  is  no t  a  s ing le  year  f rom 

2000 up to  2017 there  i s  no t  a  s ing le  year  tha t  SAA 

incu r red  opera t ing  pro f i t s .  

What  I  mean by  opera t ing  pro f i t s  I  mean where  the  

revenue o f  SAA is  enough to  cover  the  expenses o f  SAA 

wi thout  se l l ing  any o the r  i tem.   We a l l  know tha t  in  

2000/2001 a l l  the  f lee t  o f  SAA was so ld  to  f inance 20 

opera t ing  ac t iv i t ies .    

We know –  we  a l l  know the  s to ry  o f  Co lman  

Andrews tha t  he  went  away w i th  R250 mi l l ion  in  go lden  

handshake desp i te  the  fac t  tha t  SAA never  incu r red  any 

pro f i t s  f rom 2000 up to  2017 and I  am sure  even the  
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f inanc ia ls  o f  2018 tha t  a re  no t  ye t  ou t  w i l l  a lso  show 

exact ly  the  same th ing .  

Now le t  me go to  the  spec i f i cs  Cha i r.   In  June 2016 

SAAT under  my  leadersh ip  as  a  Cha i rperson ins t i tu ted  

invest iga t ions in to  spare  par ts  tha t  were  bought  and so ld 

immedia te ly  some o f  them a t  ze ro  rands.   They were  be  

purchased a t  a  h igher  ra te  and so ld  a t  the  compan ies  tha t  

a re  known to  the  SAAT employees.   We know tha t .   I t  i s  in  

the  newspapers .  

And in  fac t  Cha i r  because I  a r r i ved ear l y  he re  I  had 10 

an oppor tun i ty  o f  look ing  a t  a l l  these f i les .   None o f  these 

names tha t  I  am go ing  to  ment ion  here  as  are  here  they 

were  never  invest iga ted .   Noth ing  l i ke  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   And why d id  you not  g ive  the  names to 

the  commiss ion?   We –  I  have been te l l ing  –  ask ing  the  

pub l i c  f rom 2018 to  say anyone who is  aware  o f  co r rup t ion  

or  ac ts  o f  s ta te  capture  must  p lease br ing  tha t  in fo rmat ion  

to  the  commiss ion?  

MS KWINANA:   Cha i r  the  reason why I  am go ing  to  

ment ion  them today i s  because a l l  these names are  in  the  20 

Open Wate r  Repor ts  and they a re  a l l  Open Water  Repor ts  

a re  here  w i th  the  s ta te  commiss ion .   Yes so  now i f  the 

Open Wate r  Repor t  i s  here  and in  fac t  the  reason why I  am 

here  is  because  o f  the  Open Water  Repor t  I  do  no t  

unders tand why … 
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CHAIRPERSON:   I  do  no t  know about  you be ing  here  

because o f  the  Open Water  Repor t  because I  be l ieve  you 

are  here  because there  have been a  number  o f  w i tnesses 

who have ment ioned your  name in  cer ta in  contex ts  in  

regard  to  the  work  o f  the  commiss ion .  

MS KWINANA:   Okay a l r igh t  thank you Cha i r.   So  what  I  

am say ing  Cha i r  i s  tha t  the  names tha t  a re  in  the  Open 

Water  Repor t  the  repor t  tha t  the  commiss ion  has.   You are  

Cha i r  invest iga t i ng  the  s ta te  capture ,  the  cor rup t ion ,  

a l legat ions o f  f raud and b r ibe ry,  a l l  those th ings  and a l l  10 

tha t  in fo rmat ion  Cha i r  i s  in  the  those repor ts  tha t  you have.  

 I  w i l l  j us t  ment ion  fo r  –  tha t  the  repor t  has go t  a  lo t  

o f  peop le  Cha i r  and the  reason why I  ment ion  i t  i s  because 

they a re  in  the  repor t  tha t  you have.    

 I  w i l l  s ta r t  Cha i r  w i th  Leon Rober ts .   Leon Rober ts  

was the  Cha i rpe rson o f  FST –  PSFT.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Sor ry  Ms Kwinana.  

MS KWINANA:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You see i f  you  want  to  ment ion  o ther  

peop le  shou ld  you not  have prepared an a f f idav i t  and 20 

submi t ted  i t  to  the  commiss ion  ment ion ing  those peop le  so  

tha t  they cou ld  be  g iven Ru le  3 .3  Not ices  and be warned  

tha t  you in tend ment ion ing  them in  the  commiss ion? 

MS KWINANA:   As  I  sa id  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So  tha t  they –  they cou ld  pro tec t  the i r  
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r igh ts  as  we l l .  

MS KWINANA:   As  I  sa id  Cha i r  I  w i l l  then –  then I  w i l l  no t  

ment ion  the  name but  I  w i l l  ment ion  the  pos i t ions .   But  as  I  

sa id  the  names inc lud ing  the  pos i t i ons .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja  bu t  somet imes you –  i f  you  do not  

ment ion  my name but  you say the  Cha i rperson  o f  the  

commiss ion  everybody knows who the  Cha i rperson o f  the  

commiss ion  is .   I f  you  say the  Pres ident  o f  South  A f r i ca  in  

2020 everybody knows who tha t  i s .  

MS KWINANA:   Cha i r  I  do  no t  –  I  do  no t  in tend to  wr i te  an  10 

a f f idav i t  here .   What  I  in tend –  What  I  wou ld  do  is  to  say to  

Andrew you invest iga tor  why are  you ignor ing  th i s  repor t  

tha t  you a l ready have?  That  i s  what  I  wou ld  say because 

a l l  these names a re  in  tha t  repor t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   You see i f  you –  i f  you  want  to  say –  i f  

you  want  to  wr i te  to  the  commiss ion  and say there  is  

ev idence tha t  so  and so  and so  and so  was –  or  was  

invo lved or  i s  invo lved in  ac ts  o f  cor rup t ion  and s ta te  

capture  and he re  is  tha t  ev idence  or  tha t  ev idence is  to  

found in  a  ce r ta in  document  you may do so  and the  20 

commiss ion  wou ld  look –  look a t  tha t .    

 The one th ing  wh ich  I  want  to  men t ion  to  you is  tha t  

when you have fa i led  to  do  tha t  over  the  past  two and a  

ha l f  yea rs  tha t  th is  commiss ion  has been work ing  and you 

ment ion  i t  now wh ich  when we are  a t  the  ta i l  end o f  the  
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work  o f  the  commiss ion  we might  no t  be  ab le  to  –  to  look  

in to  tha t  because we are  a t  a  s tage now hav ing  th is  

commiss ion  has  been s i t t ing  and hear ing  ora l  ev idence  

f rom August  2018 .  

 We are  a t  a  s tage where  even some o f  the  

invest iga to rs  have le f t  because in  te rms o f  the  work  tha t  

we have got  to  do  they have done  –  they have done the i r  

par t  and we are  work ing  on  what  we have rece ived  in  the  

past .  

 So when we rece ive  someth ing  new tha t  has no t  10 

been the re  there  may be those cha l lenges.   I t  may  be tha t  

i t  i s  someth ing  tha t  we regard  as  so  impor tan t  tha t  we can 

see what  p lan  we can make to  pursue i t .   Bu t  genera l l y  

speak ing  we are  in  November  2020 the  a im  was to  

comple te  ora l  ev idence by  end th is  year  so  tha t  January,  

February  and March next  year  wh ich  wou ld  be  the  on ly  

o ther  months  when the  commiss ion  is  a l lowed to  con t inue.  

 I t  i s  no t  fo r  no t  the  hear ing  o f  o ra l  ev idence.   So I  

am a le r t ing  you to  th is  so  tha t  you can unders tand  i f  you 

g ive  us  someth ing  a t  th is  la te  s tage and we are  no t  ab le  to  20 

do  anyth ing  i t  m igh t  be  because o f  the  t im ing .   I f  you  had 

brought  to  our  a t ten t ion  much ear l ie r  there  m ight  have 

been t ime to  pursue i t .  

MS KWINANA:   Thank you fo r  tha t  Cha i r.   Your  inves t iga tor  

Andrew K i rk land was to ld  about  these and in  fac t  he  was  
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to ld  tha t  a l l  tha t  is  in  the  Open Water.   And what  he  sa id  – 

he  sa id  no ,  we are  look ing  fo r  spec i f i c  peop le .   In  fac t  tha t  

i s  what  he  a lso  conf i rmed in  the  Zoom in terv iew tha t  was 

he ld  on  28 September  tha t  they focussed on two  issues.   

The GPU’s  and components  because they were  look ing  fo r  

spec i f i c  peop le .  

 So wh ich  means  there fo re  tha t  your  invest iga t ion  

team was to ld  about  these peop le  tha t  a re  in  the  repor t  bu t  

they d id  no t  do  anyth ing  about  tha t  because they were  

look ing  a t  spec i f i c  peop le  wh ich  means there fore  tha t  you r  10 

invest iga t ion  team was to ld  about  these peop le  tha t  a re  in  

the  repor t  bu t  they d id  no t  do  any th ing  about  tha t  because 

they were  look ing  a t  spec i f i c  peop le .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes you see –  we l l  I  do  no t  know the  

contex t  in  wh ich  he  may have sa id  tha t  bu t  what  I  can te l l  

you tha t  we cannot  look  eve rybody in  South  A f r i ca  who 

aga ins t  whom there  are  a l legat ions o f  cor rup t i on .  We 

cannot  because we do not  have enough t ime fo r  t ha t .   To  

do  tha t  you wou ld  need years  and years  and years  okay.   

And i f  you have –  i f  you  have been fo l low ing the  work  o f  20 

the  commiss ion  you w i l l  know tha t  a l ready when the  

commiss ion  app l ied  a t  the  end o f  las t  year  to  the  h igh  

cour t  fo r  the  ex tens ion  o f  i t s  l i fespan i t  was repor ted  tha t  I  

had sa id  tha t  we wou ld  na r row our  focus even more  in  

o rder  to  f in ish  w i th in  the  t ime tha t  we have.    
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 There  are  many  peop le  tha t  may be t ransact ions  

tha t  we –  maybe  we shou ld  have  invest iga ted  –  we may  

have –  tha t  may  have deserved to  be  invest iga ted .   We 

have not  gone in to  mun ic ipa l i t ies  you know.   We have not  

gone in to  a l l  government  depar tments .   There  is  j us t  no t  

enough t ime and not  enough capac i ty.  

 So those who  responded to  the  ca l l  o f  the  

commiss ion  ear l y  when we sa id  p lease South  A f r i cans i f  

you  know o f  somebody who has been invo lved in  ac ts  o f  

s ta te  captu re  or  cor rup t ion  he re  ge t  g ive  –  ge t  us  –  g ive  us  10 

the  in fo rmat ion .  

 Those who responded ea r ly  and i f  what  they to ld  us  

appeared cred ib le  and appeared impor tan t  tha t  was  

ident i f ied  and fo l lowed.   We cou ld  no t  fo l low every th ing .   

You unders tand?  

MS KWINANA:   I  unders tand Cha i r  bu t  I  have a  cha l lenge 

when a  repor t  w i th  so  much damning ev idence tha t  the  

commiss ion  has and  the  commiss ion  dec ides to  p ick  and  

choose so  to  say.   And Cha i r  i f  there  i s  no  t ime  fo r  the  

peop le  who are  a l ready ment ioned in  the  repor t s  tha t  you 20 

have then I  rea l l y  do  have a  p rob lem.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  some o f  the  mat te rs  tha t  we  are  no t  

ab le  to  fo l low because o f  t ime const ra in ts  and you know 

wi l l  be  handed  over  to  Law Enforcement  Agenc ies  to  

invest iga te  fu r the r.  
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MS KWINANA:   Thank you Cha i r.   So what  I  am go ing  to  do  

because I  rea l l y  fee l  s t rong ly  –  s t rong ly  about  th is  and in  

fac t  the  reason why I  fee l  s t rong ly  about  th is  i s  when I  

ins t i tu ted  th is  invest iga t ion  my a im wh ich  bas ica l l y  I  d id  

no t  know tha t  bas ica l l y  I  am more  or  l ess  ac t ing  aga ins t  

the  t ide  o f  loo t ing  a t  SAA Techn ica l .    

And on the  o the r  hand the  ev idence is  the re  and in  

fac t  there  is  no t  a  s ing le  dec i s ion  Cha i r  tha t  I  reg re t  I  

made when I  was the  Cha i rperson o f  South  A f r i can 

Techn ica l  –  when I  was the  Cha i rperson o f  the  Aud i t  10 

Commi t tee  and when I  was a  board  member  o f  SAA I  can 

s tand w i th  a l l  the  dec i s ions tha t  I  made.    

I  t r ied  by  a l l  means in  respect  o f  th is  invest iga t ion  

we even found ou t  tha t  an  asset  o f  about  R175 mi l l ion  was 

g iven away fo r  f ree .   To  whom was  i t  g iven fo r  f ree?   I t  was 

g iven to  the  en t i t ies  tha t  a re  l inked to  SAA Techn ica l .   I  

mean rea l l y  why  wou ld  your  invest iga tors  no t  look  in to 

tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   D id  you g i ve  us  an  a f f idav i t  w i th  tha t  

in fo rmat ion?  20 

MS KWINANA:   Cha i r  –  Cha i r  as  I  sa id  th is  in fo rmat ion  is  

w i th  the  commiss ion .   So I  d id  no t  see a  reason fo r  me to 

see –  to  g ive  ev idence –  o r  to  g ive  an  a f f idav i t  on  the  

in fo rmat ion  tha t  your  invest iga to rs  have.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  no  Ms Kwinana we are  no t  go ing  to  
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ta lk  in  c i rc les  now.   We have had th is  engagement .   I t  has  

been more  than ten  m inutes .   P lease wrap up.  

MS KWINANA:   Thank you Cha i r.    

ADV HOFMEYR:   Thank you Cha i r.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Cha i r  there  were  a  few aspects  tha t  I  jus t  

need to  address in  response to  what  Ms Kwinana has sa id .   

I f  you  w i l l  jus t  g ive  me a  moment  to  hand a  no te  to  my… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  yes .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   R igh t .   So Cha i r  as  I  have i t  Mr  Kwinana  10 

began by  s ta t ing  tha t  on  two prev ious occas ions here  

a t to rney Ms Mban jwa had asked fo r  de ta i l s  about  the  

a l leged ly  cor rup t  re la t ionsh ip  she  was in ,  the  k ickbacks  

she rece ived and  the  R4.3  m i l l ion  tha t  was re ferenced in  

Mr  Ndzeku ’s  ev idence.   And she sa id  c lear ly  tha t  has been 

no response to  tha t  when tha t  request  was made.  

 Cha i r  tha t  i s  fa lse .   There  was a  de ta i led  response 

sent  to  her  a t to rney on  the  28  October  –  sor ry  ear l i e r  than 

tha t  –  le t  me f ind  the  r igh t  one.   On the  30  September  and 

Cha i r  tha t  le t te r  i s  qu i te  an  impor tan t  le t te r  because Ms  20 

Kwinana ’s  a l ready… 

CHAIRPERSON:   You might  w ish  to  e i ther  read i t  in to  the  

record .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   I  w i l l  read i t  in to  the  record  i f  I  may 

Cha i r.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   A l l  the  re levant  par ts  yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   I t  i s  jus t  cor respondence.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Because I  cannot  fo r  some reason she 

might  no t  be  aware  o f  i t .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Indeed.  

MS KWINANA:   I  am aware  o f  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MS KWINANA:   I t  d id  no t  address what  we were  

address ing  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   R igh t  so… 10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a l r igh t .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   What  happened is  Monday the  28  

September  th is  year  there  was a  Zoom meet ing  he ld  w i th  

Ms Kwinana and Ms Mban jwa.   That  was the  f i rs t  meet ing 

tha t  the  commiss ion  was ab le  to  secure  w i th  Ms Kwinana 

desp i te  inv i t ing  her  as  fa r  back as  the  28  November  2019  

to  meet  w i th  the  commiss ion .    

She was repea ted ly  requested  to  p rov ide  an  

a f f idav i t  to  the  commiss ion .   Ne i ther  o f  tha t  took p lace unt i l  

Monday the  28  September  th is  year  when a  Zoom meet ing  20 

was conducted  w i th  Ms Kwinana,  Ms Mban jwa and  

members  o f  the  lega l  team and invest iga t ion  team o f  the  

commiss ion .  

 That  meet ing  I  can on ly  say de ter io ra ted  qu i te  

rap id ly.   I t  was a  meet ing  tha t  was rea l l y  to  vent  a  ser ies  o f  
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a t tacks  f rom Ms Kwinana and Ms  Mban jwa a t  me;  a t  the  

invest iga to rs  e t ce tera .  

 Luck i l y  we have a  t ranscr ip t  o f  tha t  meet ing  wh ich  

we w i l l  make ava i lab le  i f  necessary  because s ince  tha t  

meet ing  there  have been repeated  c la ims made about  what  

was sa id  a t  tha t  meet ing  wh ich  aga in  a re  jus t  fa lse .

 But  what  Ms Kwinana and Ms Mban jwa got  on  the  

30  September  was a  response to  th is  very  i ssue.   We 

began w i th  the  Open Wate rs  Repor ts  in  the  response  

because as  Ms Kwinana has done today re ference was  10 

made to  o ther  Open Waters  Repor ts .   And repeated  

s ta tements  were  made… 

ADV MBANJWA:   Cha i r  today I  rea l l y  do  no t  want  to  ob jec t  

there fo re  what  I  w i l l  do  is  to  s imp ly  p lace  on record  the  

manner  o f  p resent ing  ev idence.   And I  wou ld  beg Ms  

Hofmeyr  to  p lease dea l  w i th  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   No,  no ,  Ms Mban jwa Ms Hofmeyr  i s  s t i l l  

add ress ing  me.   I  w i l l  g ive  you a  chance a f te r  she has  

f in ished.  

ADV MBANJ WA:   Bu t  Cha i r  he  led  us  aga in  w i th  tha t… 20 

CHAIRPERSON:   You w i l l  respond a f te r  she has f in ished.   

She a l lowed your  c l ien t  a t  your  request  –  we a l lowed your  

c l ien t  to  address  me.  She addressed –  Ms Hofmeyr  never  

in te r rup ted  her  when she was address ing  me.   Ms Hofmeyr  

never  i n te r rup ted  you when you made a  request .   Why a re  
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you  in te r rup t ing  her  when she is  address ing  me?  Ms  

Hofmeyr.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Thank you.   Cha i r  the  issue o f  the  Open 

Waters  Repor t  came up in  tha t  Zoom meet ing .   There  was  

an a l legat ion  tha t  the  Open Wate rs  Repor t  was the  –  the  

every th ing  to  the  commiss ion .   That  i s  was the  beg inn ing  

and end o f  our  invest iga t ions.    

 We made i t  repea ted ly  c lea r  in  tha t  meet ing  tha t  we  

look a t  whatever  comes to  us ,  we assess i t  bu t  i t  does not  

d ic ta te  our  invest iga t ive  methods.   The ro le  o f  the 10 

commiss ion  is  to  take  what  p rev ious fo rens ic  inves t iga tors  

and o thers  have done and probe fu r ther  and tha t  is  what  

we have done.  

 And then what  happened was we  c la r i f ied  tha t  the  

day a f te r  in  the  30  September  le t te r  and then there  was 

a lso  the  response to  the  request  about  we l l  where  was Ms  

Kwinana imp l ica ted  and how? 

 And th is  i s  what  was sa id  Cha i r  and I  th ink  i t  i s  

impor tan t  jus t  to  read th is  par t  in to  the  record .   And Cha i r  I  

do  no t  want  to  de lay  t ime in  th i s  commiss ion .  We have so  20 

l i t t le .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  yes .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Bu t  Cha i r  there  are  j us t  repeated 

a l legat ions bo th  tha t  I  behave inappropr ia te l y  and  shou ld  

be  recused.   I  w i l l  come to  tha t  in  a  moment .   That  the  
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invest iga to rs  ac t  in  a  b iased and unpr inc ip led  manner.   

Last  week the  Secre tar ia t  o f  the  commiss ion  go t  to ld  by  Ms  

Mban jwa tha t  i t  ac ts  w i th  bad fa i th .   So i t  a  l i tany  o f  

a t tacks  on  th is  commiss ion ,  i t s  Secre tar ia t ,  i t s  

invest iga to rs  and  i t s  lega l  team and there  comes a  po in t  I  

submi t  Cha i r  where  i t  ac tua l l y  needs to  be  pu t  to  bed so  

tha t  we can proceed w i th  mat te rs  o f  g rea t  impor tance to  

th is  count ry.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Th is  i s  what  was sa id .  10 

“ In  cor respondence p r io r  to  the  meet ing”  

That  i s  a  re fe rence to  the  Zoom meet ing .  

“You asked the  commiss ion  to  ind ica te  the  

respects  in  wh ich  Zano Spark  P ty  L im i ted  

had been imp l ica ted  in  the  ev idence 

presented before  the  commiss ion . ”  

Cha i r  you w i l l  reca l l  the  R4.3  m i l l ion  comes f rom JM 

Av ia t ion  Ms Hendr icks  in to  Zano Spark ’s  account .  

“ In  response to  th is  request  the  commiss ion  

sent  you a  l ink  o f  the  t ranscr ip t  o f  the  20 

ev idence o f  Mr  Vuy is i le  Ndzeku who  

tes t i f ied  be fore  the  commiss ion  on  the  26  

August .   Mr  Ndzeku ’s  tes t imony about  tha t  

Zano Spark  i s  c lear l y  re f lec ted  in  the  

t ranscr ip t .   A t  Monday ’s  meet ing  you  
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demanded tha t  the  commiss ion  po in t  ou t  the  

spec i f i c  par ts  o f  the  t ransc r ip t  where  Zano  

Spark  was imp l ica ted .   Th is  i s  no t  the  ro le  

o f  the  lega l  team o f  the  commiss ion  

par t i cu la r l y  where  a  par ty  aga ins t  whom a  

summons has been issued is  lega l l y  

rep resented.   Nonethe less  we d raw your  

a t ten t ion  the  fac t  tha t  the  ev idence  

per ta in ing  Zano Spark  appears  f rom pages”  

And then we g ive  a l l  the  pages re ferenced  in  the 10 

t ranscr ip ts .   We then go on;  

“These passages  f rom Mr  Ndzeku ’s  tes t imony dea l t  

w i th  the  fac t  tha t  a f te r  JM Av ia t ion  made a  R6 mi l l ion  

pro f i t  on  the  sa le  o f  GPU’s  to  Swiss  Por t  South  A f r i ca  

an  aggregate  amount  o f  R4.3  mi l l ion  was pa id  by  Mr  

Ndzeku to  JM Av ia t ion  and h is  w i fe  Ms Hendr icks  to  

Zano Spark .   Th is  money was then  pa id  ou t  to  Ms  

Kwinana ’s  persona l  account .   Whi le  Mr  Ndzeku c la imed 

tha t  th is  money had been pa id  in  o rder  fo r  Zano Spark  

to  invest  money in  fo rex  t rad ing  on  h is  beha l f  the  bank 20 

s ta tements  show tha t  the  money was ins tead pa id  

d i rec t l y  to  Ms Kwinana.   In  fac t  Zano Spark  d id  no t  

have any l i cence to  t rade in  fo rex  or  any l i cenced 

f inanc ia l  service provider,  which i t  would have required 

i f  i t  were to have been legal ly  invest ing money on Mr 
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Ndzeku’s behal f .    

Zano Spark,  therefore,  appeared to have been used to 

di rect  funds f rom JM Aviat ion to Ms Kwinana shor t ly  

af ter she seized to be a member of  both SAA and SAA 

Technical .  

This impl icates Zano Spark as a potent ia l  congruent  for 

k ickback payments f rom one of  SAAT’s suppl iers to  i ts 

former chai rperson,  Ms Kwinana. ”  

Chai r,  nothing could be c learer,  I  submit  to you today,  than 

precisely  what the impl icat ion was.   Precisely  what  10 

Ms Kwinana is going to be asked about in her quest ion 

today.  

 So the suggest ion that  we are playing cat  and mouse in  

some way by not  be ing upfront  wi th Ms Kwinana about the 

al legat ions against  her is again simply false.  

 Chai r,  Ms Kwinana then just  made reference in the 

passing to the fact  that  she has been advised that  there wi l l  

be an appl icat ion for my recusal  today.   Wel l ,  there is no 

appl icat ion before you. 

 And Chai r,  because of  the repeated at tacks on me 20 

throughout our interact ions in the correspondence with 

Ms Mbanjwa, what the secretar ia t  eventual ly did  on the 

28t h of  October,  which was last  week,  was made i t  very clear,  

that  i f  there was to be a recusal  appl icat ion i t  would need to 

be brought t imeously and appropriately.    
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 Let  me just  read that  let ter into the record.   I t  is the 

let ter of  the 28t h o f  October at  paragraph 7.   I t  says:  

“Final ly,  your let ters contain numerous al legat ions of  

bias and improper conduct  on the part  of  the 

Commission’s evidence leader,  Ms Hofmeyr.    

I f  you regard her conduct  as in any way 

compromis ing Ms Kwinana’s r ights,  you are invi ted 

to make any appl icat ion you deem necessary to the 

Chairperson of  the Commission.  

Please ensure that  such appl icat ion compl ies wi th  10 

the rules of  the Commission and is  made out  not ice 

of  mot ion supported by an aff idavi t . ”  

 The response to that  came, I  th ink i t  was the next . . .   No,  

even on the same day.   And the response f rom Ms Mbanjwa 

on the same day was:  

“Thank you for the legal  advice on how to handle 

Ms Hofmeyr.   Please advise us what we should do 

about your prejudicial  conduct . ”  

 This is wri t ing to the secretar iat  towards Ms Kwinana i .e.  

wi thhold ing of  the evidence bundle.   There was an issue of  20 

an evidence bundle.   I  take i t  to be resolved because 

Ms Kwinana did not  raise i t  today.  

 So Chai r  in summary.   Ms Kwinana was invi ted to  

engage this Commission as far  back as November of  2019.   

She provided no aff idavi t  nor did not  meet wi th the 
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Commission unt i l  the 28t h of  September this year.   

Thereaf ter,  she st i l l  fa i led to provide an aff idavi t  despi te 

being requested to do so and invi ted to do so.    

 And eventual ly when no aff idavi t  was forthcoming Chai r,  

you issued a Regulat ion 10(6) di rect ive to Ms Kwinana to ask 

her to please f inal ly gives this Commission her account on 

var ious aspects.   That  aff idavi t  was furnished.   I  wi l l  deal  

wi th i t  today.   I t  is  br ief .  

 Subsequent to  that ,  there was a request  f rom 

Ms Kwinana to provide her wi th al l  of  the Open Water ’s 10 

reports.   We d id so and we asked her in preparat ion for  

today to draw the Commission’s part icular at tent ion to any 

parts of  those reports to which she wanted to make speci f ic 

reference today.  

 She was invi ted to produce her own evidence bundle 

f rom the hundreds of  documents,  pages of  documents that  

she requested and was provided wi th an no evidence bundle 

has to th is moment been received by Ms Kwinana.  

 So Chai r  wi th that  background in  place,  there is  no 

recusal  appl icat ion in respect  of  me before you today and so 20 

my submission is that  we get  on wi th the work of  th is  

Commission.   Thank you,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Ms Mbanjwa, Ms Hofmeyr was 

responding to  Ms Kwinana’s address.   I f  you want  to say 

something,  not  both of  you can talk,  namely Ms Kwinana and 
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yoursel f .   Only one wi l l  respond.  You must  decide whether i t  

wi l l  be Ms Kwinana who responds or you wi l l  respond but  

only one of  you wi l l  be a l lowed to respond.  

MS MBANJWA :    With your permission Chai r,  i t  wi l l  be me 

who wi l l  respond.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MS MBANJWA :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MS MBANJWA :    And i f  I  can begin responding now? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  10 

MS MBANJWA :    You see Chai r,  the unfortunate part  about  

th is is.   There has been a statement that  the al legat ion that  

there was no response to the speci f ic let ters in support .   You 

did point  out  Chair  that ,  that  let ter  which was in response 

should that  i t  has been shown to Ms Kwinana and to mysel f .    

CHAIRPERSON :    She says she knows the let ter.   

Ms Kwinana said she knows the let ter.  

MS MBANJWA :    I f  I  recal l  wel l  Chai r.   What was 

Ms Kwinana said.   She said:   You are referr ing to an 

incorrect  let ter.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MS MBANJWA :    Be that  as i t  may be.   And this is  what I  

was object ing to in the beginning and I  was saying.   I  am 

placing the object ion so that  i t  covers a l l  object ions.   

Whenever a person is  referred. . .   Whenever a document  is 
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p laced in  evidence,  and I  am saying this,  wel l -aware that  the 

Commission is not  a Court  of  Law but  . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Let  me.. .   Ms Mbanjwa, let  me just  

tabulate to me f i rst  what the points are you want to respond 

to so that  I  can weight  them and see whether there is rea l ly 

a need for us to delay the commencement of  Ms Kwinana’s 

evidence.  

MS MBANJWA :    That  is also our  di ff icul ty Chai r.   When 

Ms Hofmeyr ta lks,  she is f ree to f loor.   And when we place 

something – and I  th ink we are . . . [ indist inct ]   10 

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  i t  is . . . [ intervenes]   

MS MBANJWA :    . . .as legal  representat ive . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  Ms Kwinana was . . . [ intervenes]   

MS MBANJWA :    [ Indist inct ]  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  no,  no.   No,  no.   Ms Kwinana was 

al lowed to talk.   You are al lowed to talk.   You have 

previously been al lowed to talk . . . [ in tervenes]   

MS MBANJWA :    No,  Chair  I  was not  a l lowed . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    But  I  do not  want  you to take too long.  

MS MBANJWA :    Okay.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    I  want  to know and advance the points.  

MS MBANJWA :    Let  us put  i t  on record now Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

MS MBANJWA :    I  have not  been al lowed to talk because 

what I  am here to do is to represent  Ms Kwinana.  And the 
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f i rst  th ing I  asked is not  even . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ms Mbanjwa.. .   Ms Mbanjwa, I  am not  

going to  actual ly  al low you to waste this Commission’s t ime.  

Tel l  me the points on which you want to respond.  

MS MBANJWA :    I t  is . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Then I  can assess whether i t  is necessary 

for me to give you t ime to respond on those points.  

MS MBANJWA :    I t  is the let ters Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    What about  the let ters?  What is the point  

about  the let ters? 10 

MS MBANJWA :    We did not  receive a response to the 

let ters.  

CHAIRPERSON :    That  is f ine.   You did not  receive the. . .   

Ja,  that  is f ine.   I t  is  on record.   You have now said i t .   What 

else?   

MS MBANJWA :    [No audible reply]   

CHAIRPERSON :    What other point  you want to address me 

on? 

MS MBANJWA :    I t  is the fact  that  i t  is not  correct  to say we 

received the response to th is  let ter.   That  is what I  was 20 

addressing.  

CHAIRPERSON :    That  is f ine.   I f  you say you did not  

receive the let ters.   As far as I  am concerned,  at  th is stage,  I  

am not  even sure what is  important  about  those let ters for  

purposes of  today.   I f  you say you d id not  receive those 
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let ters and Ms Hofmeyr says you received the let ters 

. . . [ intervenes]   

MS MBANJWA :    Can I  address to say on the important  

. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    For purposes of  today,  what  is the 

importance of  that  – of  your response to that? 

MS MBANJWA :    Thank you,  Chai r.   Thank you,  Chai r.   The 

importance of  these let ters and the reasons why they were 

wri t ten and the reason why a d irect  answer was needed is  

because we are taking the view that ,  what  Ms Hofmeyr does 10 

is to make conclusions on evidence that  has not  been tested 

and somet imes even incorrect .    

 I t  is for that  reason why we even provided the page on 

the let ter to say this is what we say.   Please f ind the source 

of  the argument.    

 But  in any event ,  what we are going to  do Chai r.   The 

reason why we needed to put  th is th ing on record is because 

we are going to  ask for your assistance that  whenever a 

conclusion is made.  

 And that  conclusion is not  based on evidence but  i t  is 20 

based on speculat ion or on the opinion of  Ms Hofmeyr,  we be 

al lowed to object  to that  evidence.  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  you see Ms Mbanjwa.  Ms Hofmeyr is 

not  the Chairperson of  the Commission.   Ms Hofmeyr is an 

ent i t led to put  cer tain proposi t ions to a wi tness and g ive the 



02 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 296 
 

Page 30 of 257 
 

wi tness an opportuni ty to respond to that .    

 The wi tness is  ent i t led to say:   But  your  proposi t ion has 

got  no foundat ion,  no factual  foundat ion because of  A,  B,  C,  

D.   The witness gets that  opportuni ty.    

 Later on when you get  an opportuni ty to ei ther present  

argument or make wri t ten submissions wi th regard to cl ient ’s 

evidence,  you be able to say:   The fol lowing proposi t ions 

made by – put  to  my cl ient  to the wi tness by Ms Hofmeyr 

were incorrect .   B lah-blah-blah.    

 And when you re-examine your cl ient ,  you are ent i t led to  10 

go to re-examine her on those proposi t ions.   So there is 

real ly,  most  of  the t ime, no need to interrupt  the proceedings 

because I  wi l l  g ive you a chance to re-examine.    

 And the purpose of  re-examinat ion is,  is to clar i fy th ings 

that  might  not  have been clar i f ied dur ing the quest ioning.   

So you wi l l  get  that  chance.  

MS MBANJWA :    One last  response Chai r.   This is the 

second witness I  am coming wi th to the Commission.   You 

wi l l  recal l  that  we have a wi tness who test i f ied Chair  in  

February.   Up unt i l  today,  we have not  even received the 20 

date for the re-examinat ion.   That  is number one.    

 And secondly,  the other prejudice which we suffer  is 

th is.   When Ms Hofmeyr makes these deposi t ions which we 

are of  the respect ful  v iew that  they are unfounded and we 

are not  al lowed to respond.  Let  us say for argument sake,  
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because with the last  wi tness,  she took f ive days.    

 And then when we ask for a chance to re-examine,  we 

were told that  we wi l l  only  re-examine for two days.   Now i f  

Ms Kwinana is go ing to be here for two days,  using basic 

mathemat ical  whatever,  I  th ink that  we wi l l  only be given 50-

minutes to re-examine.    

 I t  is for that  reason why we are asking.   Chai r,  p lease.   

When a document is given to the wi tness,  can she f i rst  

before a conclusion is made about the document  

. . . [ intervenes]   10 

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  no,  no.   Ms Mbanjwa, you are not 

going to dictate to the ev idence leader how to do her  job.   I  

now you stop you addressing me.  I  have asked you on what  

issues you want to address.   I  now stop you f rom addressing 

me on those issues.   I  have heard enough of  you.   We need 

to move on.   Ms Hofmeyr,  go ahead and start  quest ioning 

Ms Kwinana.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Thank you,  Chair.   Ms Kwinana, I  would 

l ike to. . .   Oh,  just  before we begin.   Ms Kwinana’s evidence 

bundle Chai r.   I f  we could enter i t  into the record as Bundle 20 

BD33?  And as we have done previously.   When I  go to 

speci f ics documents,  we wi l l  ident i fy them as the BD33 

exhibi ts and we wi l l  enter them individual ly wi th your leave.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  the f i le that  we are going to use of  

the evidence of  Ms Kwinana wi l l  refer to as BUNDLE BD33.  
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REFERENCE BUNDLE USED IN MS YAKHE KWINANA’S 

EVIDENCE IS MARKED AS BUNDLE BD33 

ADV HOFMEYR :    Thank you,  Chair.   And the f i rst  of  those 

documents in the bundle is in  fact  the aff idavi t  that  

Ms Kwinana did provide to the Commission in response to 

your  Regulat ion 10(6) di rect ive and i t  commences at  page 1 

and i t  runs to  page 10 wi th  a single annexures,  a  

memorandum of  understanding annexure.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    And i f  so i f  that  can be I tem 1 and I tem 2? 10 

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  goes up to – the aff idavi t  goes up to 

page.. .  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Ten.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  I  see that  th is bundle appears to have 

only red numbers.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Yes,  i t  does.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Or my one,  at  least .  

ADV HOFMEYR :    And there should . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.   Does yours also have only red 

paginat ion? 20 

ADV HOFMEYR :    Mine was pr inted at  my computer at  home 

which does not  have colour pr int ing.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    So I  have lost  any colour but  I  suspect  

everyone e lse ’s bundles have the red . . . [ intervenes]   
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CHAIRPERSON :    Ms Kwinana, the bundle in f ront  of  you.   

The page numbers at  the top,  have you got  both wri t ten in 

red and those wr i t ten in black or they have got  on ly one 

colour? 

MS KWINANA :    Only red Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Only red? 

MS KWINANA :    [No audible reply]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Is that  the same with you Ms Mbanjwa? 

MS MBANJWA :    Thanks,  Chai r.   Thank you.   And we 

understand the numbering.   There was a gent leman here who 10 

explained the numbering to us before we commenced.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.   No,  i t  is just  that  for qui te some t ime 

now the bundles have been coming wi th two paginat ions,  

black and whi te.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Oh.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And we have been using black.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Oh,  r ight .   For us i t  wi l l  be red.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Now . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV HOFMEYR :    As I  have i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    So. . .   Anyway,  that  is the. . .   We wi l l  use 20 

the only paginat ion that  there is.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Indeed Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Indeed.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay a lr ight .   So i t  goes to. . .   The 
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aff idavi t  goes up to. . . [ intervenes]   

ADV HOFMEYR :    Page ten.  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .page ten.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Correct .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay.   Ja.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Thank you.   Ms Kwinana,  i f  I  can then just  

commence with  a bi t  about  your  background?  As I  

understand i t  you are an audi tor.   Is  that  correct? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    And what qual i f icat ions do you hold? 10 

MS KWINANA :    I  am a qual i f ied Chartered Accountant .  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Ms Kwinana, I  th ink you just  need to move 

a bi t  c loser.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  please face this side and do not  speak 

too far f rom the microphone so that  I  can hear you properly.  

MS KWINANA :    I  am a Chartered Accountant .  

CHAIRPERSON :    You are a Chartered Accountant .   Okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    And are you registered wi th any 

professional  bodies? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes.  20 

ADV HOFMEYR :    And which are they? 

MS KWINANA :    SAICA and I IA.    

ADV HOFMEYR :    I IA.   Thank you.   Just  for the record.   And 

. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sorry.   Just  for the record also.   Just  
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g ive the ful l  name of  SAICA and I IA? 

MS KWINANA :    South Afr ican Inst i tute of  Chartered 

Accountants (SAICA) and Inst i tute of  Internal  Audi tors(I IA).  

CHAIRPERSON :    Thank you.    

ADV HOFMEYR :    And. . .   Sorry,  I  d id not  just  catch your 

degree,  is which degree? 

MS KWINANA :    Bcom  Account ing.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Bcom Account ing.   And where did you 

obtain i t?  

MS KWINANA :    UNISA.  10 

ADV HOFMEYR :    UNISA.  And when . . . [ intervenes]   

MS KWINANA :    No,  I  obtained my Bcom at  UNITRA(?) and 

Bcom Honours at  UNISA.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    And in what year was that? 

MS KWINANA :    Bcom 1985.  Bcom Honours 1990.   

ADV HOFMEYR :    And you jo ined the Board of  SAA in 

December of  2009.   Is that  correct? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    And do you recal l  how long the 

appointment was for? 20 

MS KWINANA :    Sorry? 

ADV HOFMEYR :    Do you recal l  how long that  f i rs t  

appointment was for? 

MS KWINANA :    The appointments are normal ly for three 

years subject  to renewal.  
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ADV HOFMEYR :    And then you were reappointed on the 

19t h of  September 2012.   Is that  correct? 

MS KWINANA :    I  do not  remember the dates Chai r.   The 

reason being that  there have been resignat ions and 

appointments and so on.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    But  you did serve a second three-year  

term, did you not? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  I  d id.   

ADV HOFMEYR :    And that  would have been f rom 2012 i f  

your f i rst  appointment was 2009, correct? 10 

MS KWINANA :    H’m.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    I f  you wi l l  just  say yes into the microphone 

so that  the t ranscr ibers can pick i t  up.  

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.    

ADV HOFMEYR :    And then in October of  2014 – so that  is  

just  short  of  the end of  your second three-year term – you 

were retained on the Board of  SAA when a number of  

members of  the Board of  SAA were not  retained.   Do you 

recal l  that? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.    20 

ADV HOFMEYR :    Yes.   The six members who were not  

retained were six  members who had for many months been 

t ry ing to engage the minister about  their  concerns regarding 

Ms Myeni ’s leadership of  the board.   Do you have knowledge 

of  those events? 
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MS KWINANA :    No,  Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    You do not? 

MS KWINANA :    No.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Did you at tend a meet ing wi th 

Ms Lynne Brown short ly af ter she was appointed as the 

Minister of  Publ ic Enterpr ises to  replace former Minister  

Gigaba in  the middle of  2014 about  these issues that  the six  

board members were rais ing,  concerning Ms Myeni ’s  

conduct? 

MS KWINANA :    No,  Chai r.  10 

ADV HOFMEYR :    And you have no recol lect ion of  Ms Myeni  

responding to  the board members who were cr i t ic is ing her  

management and leadership-style in  the ear ly part  of  2014? 

MS KWINANA :    In the meet ing wi th the minister? 

ADV HOFMEYR :    No,  you have conf i rmed for me, you were 

not  at  the meet ings.   So then I  would l ike to move to the fact  

that  there was a let ter of  complaint  wi th the minis ter  and 

Ms Myeni  in January of  2014.   And then there was a 

response to that  by Ms Myeni  sent  to al l  the board members,  

which I  assume would have included you.   Were you not  20 

aware of  that  issue and her response? 

MS KWINANA :    I f  you can show me Chai r,  I  would be able 

to say yes or no,  I  was in that  meet ing or I  d id receive i t .  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Okay.   But  as you si t  here now, you do not  

have any independent recol lect ion that  s ix members of  the 
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Board of  SAA in ear ly 2014 were very concerned about the 

leadership of  Ms Myeni  as the chai rperson of  the board? 

MS KWINANA :    I  know that  there has been some complaints 

but  I  would not  say when was that .  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Thank you.   And when did you – when 

were you appointed to the Board of  SAA Technica l?  

MS KWINANA :    I  wi l l  not  have the date Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Do you have a year? 

MS KWINANA :    Maybe 2014 or 2015.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Right .   And do you recal l  when you were 10 

appointed as the chairperson of  the Audi t  and Risk 

Commit tee at  SAA? 

MS KWINANA :    No,  but  I  th ink the company secretary would 

be in a posi t ion to give you al l  those dates.   I  real ly  do not  

have that .  

ADV HOFMEYR :    That  is f ine.   We wi l l  go to pert inent  

documents when i t  becomes relevant .  

MS KWINANA :    H’m.  H’m.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    I  was just  get t ing a sense of  the 

landscape of  your  background at  SAA at  th is point .  20 

MS KWINANA :    H’m.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    I  would then l ike to move to your 

re lat ionship wi th Mr Vuyisi le Ndzeku.   Now th is is something 

that  you did address in your aff idavi t  in response to the 

Chairperson’s Regulat ion 10(6) di rect ive and we can pick 
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that  up at  page 8 of  Exhibi t  BD33 in  f ront  of  you.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  Ms Hofmeyr.   Unless I  d id not  hear 

you.   I t  looks l ike you may have forgot ten to ask Ms Kwinana 

to conf i rm that  th is is her aff idavi t  and to ask me to admit  i t  

as an exhibi t .  

ADV HOFMEYR :    We did admit  i t  as an exhibi t  DCJ but  that  

then I  missed actual ly asking her to conf i rm her signature.   

So we issued i t  as the . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  I  . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV HOFMEYR :    . . .Exhibi t  1,  pages 1 to 10.   I  th ink.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    You may have asked me and I  d id not  

hear.   Because I  d id not  mark i t .  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Oh.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Normal ly,  when I  admit  i t ,  I  mark i t .  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Indeed Chai r.   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Wel l ,  let  us do that .   Apologies.  

CHAIRPERSON :    But  has she conf i rmed?  Or she has not  

conf i rmed that . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV HOFMEYR :    No.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  let  us get  her to conf i rm i t  

. . . [ intervenes]   

MS KWINANA :    That  is my aff idavi t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .and her signature.   Then I  can admit  i t .  

ADV HOFMEYR :    So i f  we turn to page 10.   Can you conf i rm 
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that  that  is our s ignature,  the f i rst  s ignature at  page 10 at  

the top of  the page? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.    

ADV HOFMEYR :    And that  th is is your aff idavi t  that  you 

deposed to on the 14t h of  October? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.    

ADV HOFMEYR :    And you conf i rm the correctness and 

t ruths of  the averments in that  aff idavi t?  

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.    

ADV HOFMEYR :    And then Chai r,  i f  we could enter i t  as 10 

Exhibi t  1 in Bundle BD33? 

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  

MS KWINANA :    Thank you,  Chai r.   Apologies for missing 

that .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am not  sure whether. . .   Maybe we should 

not  just  Exhibi t  1 even i f  i t  is in th is  bundle.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  th ink what one would t ry  do is,  so that ,  i f  

possible,  every exhibi t  is . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV HOFMEYR :    Correct  . . . [ intervenes]   20 

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .and the d i fferent  number.   No matter 

which bundle i t  fa l ls under.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Yes,  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    So maybe, we might  say Exhibi t  BD33.1? 

ADV HOFMEYR :    Yes,  certainly.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    And Chai r,  actual ly,  i f  you go to  the index,  

that  is precisely how i t  has been arranged on the index.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    So the document managers(?) were very 

helpful  in that  regard.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    So i t  wi l l  a lways be BD33 point  something.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    And this wi l l  be BD33.1.   So the index wi l l  10 

cover.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  so this – wi l l  th is be 33,  ja? 

ADV HOFMEYR :    33.  

CHAIRPERSON :    33.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Indeed.  Point  1.   Thank you,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    33.1.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    I  might  have said B1.   I  am sorry Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    The aff idavi t  of  Ms Yakhe Kwinana start ing 

at  page 1 is admit ted as Exhibi t  BD33.1.  

AFFIDAVIT OF MS YAKHE KWINANA IS ADMITTED AND 20 

MARKED AS EXHIBIT BD33.1 

ADV HOFMEYR :    Thank you,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    And we wi l l  fo l low that  approach for the 

remainder.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    And then we were going to go to page 8 of  

that  bundle and Exhibi t  BD33.1 Ms Kwinana because then 

you were asked by the Chai rperson of  the Commission to 

explain your rela t ionship and interact ions wi th Mr Ndzeku 

before,  dur ing and af ter your per iod on the board.   Can you 

tel l  us what the nature of  your re lat ionship was at  var ious 

stages? 

MS KWINANA :    We have a professional  relat ionship.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Not  a personal  one? 10 

MS KWINANA :    No.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    No.   And a professional  relat ionship 

ar is ing out  of  SAA and SAA Technical?  Is that  r ight? 

MS KWINANA :    Let  me phrase i t  d i fferent ly.   As I  said in my 

aff idavi t .   I  d id not  know Mr Ndzeku before I  jo ined SAA.  

And I  got  to know him during the road shows when we were 

doing the BEE(?)  road shows at  SAA.  And my relat ionship,  

professional  relat ionship cont inued af ter I  lef t  SAA.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    So i t  started wi th Mr Ndzeku at  SAA 

. . . [ intervenes]   20 

MS KWINANA :    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    . . .pursuant  to the road shows.  

MS KWINANA :    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    And those road shows occurred in 2015.  

Correct? 
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MS KWINANA :    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    And i t  persisted whi le you were at  SAA 

Technical  and SAA and then i t  cont inued af terwards.   Is that  

correct? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    And pr ior  to  road shows, you had no other 

re lat ionship wi th h im? 

MS KWINANA :    No.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    And i t  only remained a professional  

re lat ionship,  correct? 10 

MS KWINANA :    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Even whi le you were at  SAA and SAA 

Technical? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    You had deal ings wi th him around the 

Swissport  Ground Handl ing Contract ,  d id you not? 

MS KWINANA :    Not  real ly.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    No,  is. . .   Explain not  real ly.   Did you or 

did you not? 

MS KWINANA :    I  wi l l  not  say yes or  no but  let  me explain.  20 

ADV HOFMEYR :    H’m.  

MS KWINANA :    The only t ime that  I  met wi th him in  respect  

of  Swissport  was when they wanted some l ike. . .   The 

Swissport  Contract  basical ly was – had a problem.  I t  was 

i rregular.   And i t  had been extended for mult ip le per iods of  
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t ime.  And the extension resul ted in  that  cont ract  being more 

expensive for SAA.  I t  was expensive,  f i rst ly.    

 And secondly,  i t  was tedious because af ter s ix months,  

there was the submission f rom management.   Af ter every six 

months,  submission f rom management and i t  became 

expensive.    

 And therefore,  when we wanted to regular ise i t  because 

also again,  i f  you are paying a contract  a service wi thout  the 

roper cont ract ,  then that  is an audi t  query.    

 So dur ing those meet ings,  there were also these road 10 

shows that  I  was talk ing about where basical ly we were 

saying SAA is open for business to get  people.    

 And then I  remember him in one meet ing wi th  the CEO 

of  Swissport .   And in  fact ,  that  meet ing did not  even take f ive 

minutes.    

 So basical ly that  was the only t ime.   In fact ,  that  was the 

only t ime that  I  met h im and the CEO of  Swissport .  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Thank you.   And did you have any other  

interact ions wi th h im, te lephonical ly or otherwise? 

MS KWINANA :    Oh,  yes.   We had many telephone cal ls.   20 

Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Why? 

MS KWINANA :    You see,  the BEE issue at  SAA has been a 

problem and people do not  know and did not  know how to 

implement i t .   We also did not  know exact ly how to 
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implement i t .    

 Hence,  at  some stage,  we sought  guidance f rom 

Nat ional  Treasury to say:   How do we implement th is BEE?  

So also in the road shows that  we were doing,  we were 

get t ing a lot  of  quest ions as to how do we intend doing th is?   

 Because basical ly,  no one knew exact ly what is i t  that  

needed to be done.  And therefore,  many people wanted 

guidance including him.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    And at  that  meet ing that  you refer  you 

where the CEO of  Swissport  was present  and Mr Ndzeku was 10 

present .   Who was the Swissport  representat ive that  you 

were deal ing wi th namely? 

MS KWINANA :    No,  I  was not  deal ing wi th the Swissport  

person.   We were in that  meet ing t ry ing to te l l  them that  we 

are going to go out  to  tender because the contract  i s  

i r regular  and therefore we need to make sure that  – because 

Swissport  is a lso an important  service provider of  SAA.   

 And therefore,  there is no way that  we would just  not  

have a formal meet ing to te l l  them.   But  I  do not  remember 

why – did the meet ing take such a short  per iod of  t ime.   20 

 And I  have been t ry ing to f ind out  why did i t  happen l ike 

that .   I  real ly cannot remember why did i t  happen l ike that .   

And as a resul t ,  i f  the CEO of  Swissport  can come to ident i fy  

then.   

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  why were  you then dea l ing  w i th  Mr  
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Ndzeku?  I  thought  tha t  he  had been present  a t  tha t  

meet ing  because he was a  Swisspor t  representa t i ve .  

MS KWINANA:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    He was a  Swisspor t  representa t i ve .   

However,  when we ta lked on the  phone we wou ld  ta lk  about  

no t  necessar i l y  Swisspor t ,  we wou ld  ta l k  about  BEE in  

genera l .   Yes.   So –  and I  unders tand Mr  Ndzeku is  

respons ib le  fo r  many compan ies  and there fore  he  wou ld  

no t  say  I  am phon ing  on beha l f  o f  Swisspor t  bu t  he  wou ld  10 

say te l l  me,  how does th is  BEE work?  What  i s  i t  tha t  we 

shou ld  do  fo r  th is  BEE to  work?   G ive  us  the  d i rec t i on .   So  

bas ica l l y,  tha t  i s  more  or  less  what  we wou ld  …[ in te rvenes]  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And d id  you g i ve  h im d i rec t ion?  

MS KWINANA:    As  to  the  ex ten t  tha t  I  knew.   Remember  

tha t  th is  BEE 30% set  as ide ,  we d id  no t  know exact ly  how 

to  imp lement  i t ,  much as  i t  was our  des i re  to  do  i t  bu t  we 

d id  no t  know.   So bas ica l l y  I  wou ld  say le t  me  go and  

consu l t  and f ind  ou t  how do we do th is  th ing  because no 

one knew exact l y  how to  imp lement  the  30% set  as ide .   20 

Hence there  was  a  who le  lo t  o f  med ia  hype f rom B idvest  

who was compla in ing  and we – they repor ted  us  to  Nat iona l  

Treasury  and they repor ted  us  to  DTI  tha t  we are  

imp lement ing  the  30% set  as ide  and in  fac t  th is  30% set  

as ide ,  you know,  much as  we d id  no t  imp lement  i t ,  tha t  i s  
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one  o f  the  th ings tha t  I  fee l  sad about  them because I  

s t rong ly  fee l  tha t  30% set  as ide  fo r  the  b lack  peop le  who 

rep resent  70% of  South  A f r i ca  i s  s t i l l  no t  enough.   

However,  tha t  p ronouncement  was made a t  the  Sta te  o f  the  

Nat ion  a t  the  t ime but  we d id  no t  know how to  imp lement  i t  

and no one knew how to  imp lement  i t  bu t  because  o f  the 

w i l l  to  want  to  empower  b lack  peop le ,  we had to  make sure  

tha t  we do s ta r t  and unfo r tunate ly ,  i t  d id  no t  happen unt i l  I  

le f t .   And,  there fore ,  the  30% set  as ide  was not  

imp lemented dur ing  my t ime,  un for tunate l y .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Sor ry ,  Ms Mban jwa,  p lease swi tch  o f f  

your  m ic .   Yes,  thank you.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Thank you,  Cha i r.   Ms Mban jwa,  my 

quest ion  was …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ms Kwinana.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Apo log ies ,  Ms Mban jwa jus t  tu rned o f f  

her  m icrophone.   Ms Kwinana,  my quest ion  was about  you r  

conversa t ions w i th  Mr  Ndzeku and you sa id  he  was seek ing  

BEE gu idance and then you sa id  to  h im you d id  no t  know 

a l l  tha t  much because i t  was d i f f i cu l t  to  know how you were  20 

go ing  to  imp lement  the  30% set  as ide  and so  you sa id  to  

h im you wou ld  go  and consu l t  w i th  o thers  and come back to  

h im.   Do I  have your  ev idence cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And then d id  you go back to  h im? 
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MS KWINANA:    Yes,  I  wou ld  go  back h im.   I  go  back to  

everyone.   When I  sa id  I  w i l l  go  back,  I  do  go  back.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And what  d id  you te l l  h im when you went  

back?  

MS KWINANA:    I  wou ld  te l l  h im the  in fo rmat ion  tha t  I  

have,  one person who wou ld  know some b i t  here  and the  

o ther  person wou ld  know some b i t ,  the  o ther  pe rson wou ld  

know  –  or  say  I  do  no t  know about  th is  por t ion .   So 

bas ica l l y  …[ in tervenes]  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  you were  adv is ing  h im on b ids .  10 

MS KWINANA:    On?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    B ids ,  d id  you say b ids?  

MS KWINANA:    No,  I  am say ing  …[ in tervenes]  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Apo log ies .  

MS KWINANA:    B i t s  and b i t s  o f  in fo rmat ion .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Oh sor ry.   B i t s ,  I  see .   Sor ry,  I  d id  no t  

hear  tha t  cor rec t l y.   So you gave h im a  b i t  o f  in fo rmat ion  

here  and a  b i t  o f  in fo rmat ion  the re  about  BEE supp l ie rs  

and SAA and SAA Techn ica l ,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MS KWINANA:    No necessar i l y  a t  SAA and SAA Techn ica l .   20 

As I  am say ing ,  he  wou ld  no t  say  how do you app ly  i t  a t  

SAA?  He wou ld  say te l l  me about  th is  BEE,  no t  

necessar i l y  –  he  wou ld  no t  spec i f i ca l l y  say  a t  SAA.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Bu t  I  thought  you had on ly  a  

pro fess iona l  re la t ionsh ip  w i th  h im.  



02 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 296 
 

Page 49 of 257 
 

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  we had a  pro fess iona l  re la t ionsh ip ,  

remember  tha t  …[ in tervenes]  

ADV HOFMEYR:    A r is ing  f rom SAA and SAA Techn ica l?  

MS KWINANA:    Remember  tha t  I  was not  on ly  a  board  

member  o f  SAA and he was not  on ly  serv ic ing  SAA.   So 

bas ica l l y  –  and there fo re ,  I  wou ld  assume tha t  when he  

wants  the  in fo rmat ion  on  BEE and when I  g ive  h im the  

in fo rmat ion  on  BEE,  I  wou ld  no t  g ive  h im the  in fo rmat ion  

tha t  I  go t  a t  SAA,  I  wou ld  ge t  the  in fo rmat ion  f rom DTI ,  I  

wou ld  ge t  the  in fo rmat ion  f rom Na t iona l  Treasury,  I  wou ld  10 

get  the  in fo rmat ion  f rom our  o ther  c l ien ts  how do you 

imp lement  BEE and the re fore  I  wou ld  say as  fa r  as  I  know,  

th is  i s  what  i s  happen ing  where ,  th is  i s  what  i s  happen ing  

is  where ,  th is  i s  where  we are  a t  SAA.   So bas ica l l y  I  do 

no t  want  you to  l im i t  what  you are  say ing  to  SAA because  

he is  a  bus iness person who i s  respons ib le  fo r  o the r  

compan ies  o ther  than SAA and I  am a lso  a  bus iness person 

respons ib le  fo r  o ther  compan ies  o ther  than SAA.   So 

bas ica l l y  when you say the  BEE a t  SAA,  tha t  does not  

cor rec t l y  re f lec t  our  conversa t ion .  20 

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  your  p ro fess iona l  re la t ionsh ip  

ex tended –  ah ,  Cha i r,  I  see  we are  a t  the  tea  ad journment  

t ime.   Shou ld  we take the  b reak now? 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  we can take  r i gh t  now un less  you 

par t i cu la r l y  wanted to  ask  tha t  [ inaud ib le  –  speak ing  
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s imu l taneous ly ]  

ADV HOFMEYR:    No,  no ,  there  is  go ing  to  be  a  b i t  more  to  

exp lore .    

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  we can take  the  break.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Le t  us  take  the  tea  break.   I  am go ing  to  

take  a  longer  tea  break than  normal  to  a t tend to  

someth ing ,  we w i l l  t ry  and make up fo r  our  la te  s ta r t  th is  

morn ing  and th is  ex tended tea  break in  the  a f te rnoon.   I  

am ava i lab le  to  s i t  beyond fou r  and beyond f i ve .   I  can  s i t  10 

up  to  s ix  i f  we need to .   Le t  me check now.   Ms Mban jwa,  

wou ld  tha t  be  f ine  w i th  you?  Okay.   Ms Kwinana ,  wou ld  

tha t  be  f ine  w i th  you?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r,  thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  thank you ve ry  much.   We wi l l  

take  the  tea  ad journment  now and we w i l l  resume a t  

quar te r  to  twe lve .    

ADV HOFMEYR:    Thank you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    We ad journ .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 20 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  le t  us  proceed.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Thank you,  Cha i r.   Cha i r  and Ms  

Kwinana,  I  have jus t  been not i f ied  by  the  sound peop le  tha t  

i t  i s  somet imes to  p ick  up  your  speak ing ,  Ms Kwinana,  so  i f  
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you  w i l l  jus t  make sure  tha t  you move as  c lose  to  the 

m icrophone as  poss ib le  and fee l  f ree  to  leave the  

m icrophone on a t  a l l  t imes.  

 Ms Kwinana,  jus t  be fore  the  break we were  jus t  

ta lk ing  about  your  in te rac t ions w i th  Mr  Ndzeku  and I  

unders tood you to  say you had been to  one meet ing  w i th  

h im and tha t  was  the  meet ing  w i th  the  Swisspor t  CEO,  i s  

tha t  cor rec t?   

MS KWINANA:    H ’m.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    I f  you  w i l l  jus t  say  yes fo r  the  record .  10 

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Thank you.   And tha t ,  was tha t  the  

meet ing  on  the  10  February  2016? 

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Thank you.   And there  were  no  o the r  

meet ings w i th  Mr  Ndzeku.  

MS KWINANA:    No tha t  I  remember.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Bu t  cou ld  there  have been?  

MS KWINANA:    Ja .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And a t  the  …[ in tervenes]  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  le t  us  check whether  tha t  is  be t te r  

fo r  the  sound peop le .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes.   Oh,  i t  seems to  be  bet te r,  I  th ink  I  

see a  thumbs up,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  
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ADV HOFMEYR:    Good.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay.   I  th ink ,  Ms Kwinana,  your  

vo i ce  seems to  be  natura l l y  so f t  o r  low so  do t ry  to  ra ise  i t .   

Okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Thank you.   And a t  tha t  meet ing  on  the  

10  February  2016 ,  I  unders tand you to  say Mr  Ndzeku was 

there  and Mr  Koh l ,  the  CEO of  Swisspor t ,  was there .   Were  

there  any o ther  representa t i ves  f rom any o ther  en t i t ies 

there?  

MS KWINANA:    I  th ink  there  were  a lso  peop le  f rom 10 

B idvest .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    R igh t .  

MS KWINANA:    And then the re  was a lso  the  CFO of  SAA,  

Ro l f  Meyer.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    R igh t .   And Mr  Da luxo lo  Pete r,  was he  

there?  

MS KWINANA:    No,  I  wou ld  no t  conf i rm.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Do you know Mr  Da luxo lo  Peter?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And how do you  know h im? 20 

MS KWINANA:    From the  road shows.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    F rom the  road shows as  we l l .   What  

company d id  he  represent?  

MS KWINANA:    He was go ing  w i th  Swisspor t  peop le .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    How? 
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MS KWINANA:    I  do  no t  know.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    You do not  know.   Do you know what  

company he was rep resent ing?  

MS KWINANA:    No.   My unders tand ing  was tha t  he  was  

par t  o f  Swisspor t .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Par t  o f  Swisspor t?   

MS KWINANA:    H ’m.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So somewhere  in  the  Swisspor t  

s t ruc ture ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    H ’m.  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:    Not  somebody outs ide  o f  Swisspor t .  

MS KWINANA:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And then jus t  your  conversa t ions w i th  Mr  

Ndzeku.   You sa id  –  we were  so r t  o f  p rob ing  qu i te  what  

they invo l ved and you sa id  you wou ld  speak to  h im qu i te  

regu lar l y  on  the  phone,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And i t  was no t  conf ined to  h i s  ro le  a t  

Swisspor t ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    No.  20 

ADV HOFMEYR:    You ment ioned o ther  compan ies  in  wh ich  

he  was invo lved,  cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    I  know tha t  he  is  invo lved in  o the r  

compan ies ,  so  I  sa id  when we spoke he wou ld  no t  say  now 

I  speak on beha l f  o f  Swisspor t .  
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ADV HOFMEYR:    No,  cer ta in ly.  

MS KWINANA:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Bu t  he  had o ther  compan ies  l i ke  JM 

Av ia t ion ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?   

MS KWINANA:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And any o ther  compan ies  tha t  he  wou ld  

ever  ment ion?  

MS KWINANA:    I  do  no t  know o f  any o ther  compan ies .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Okay,  so  i f  you  were  speak ing  a t  a l l  

about  h is  bus iness dea l ings i t  was l i ke ly  to  be  Swisspor t  o r  10 

JM Av ia t ion ,  cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    I  sa id ,  Cha i r,  he  wou ld  no t  say  I  am now 

speak ing  fo r  Swisspor t  and I  am now speak ing  fo r  JM.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Bu t  you knew h im on ly  as  a f f i l i a ted  w i th  

those two compan ies ,  cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And wou ld  he  have had any reason to  

phone you and speak to  you in  the  contex t  o f  any o the r  

company o the r  than SAA or  SAAT in  te rms o f  h is  20 

in te rac t ion  w i th  you?  Cou ld  he  approach you to  ta l k  about  

some o ther  company o f  wh ich  you were  no t  a  board  

member?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r,  somet imes he wou ld  phone 

and ask some f inanc ia l  adv i ce ,  tha t  he  is  buy ing  someth ing  
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o r  maybe he is  a  buy ing  a  bus iness somewhere  and so  on  

and so  on .   So bas ica l l y  tha t  wou ld  no t  be  Swisspor t  o r. . .  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  he wou ld  ca l l  you  somet imes in  

regard  to  e i ther  h is  –  in  regard  to  h is  o ther  persona l  

mat te rs  o r  o the r  bus iness dea l ings in  wh ich  he  was 

invo lved tha t  had  noth ing  to  do  w i th  SAA or  such.  

MS KWINANA:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .   Would  tha t  have been in  

your  capac i ty  as  a  char te red accountant ,  aud i to r,  o r  what  

was your  unders tand ing  o f  why he  wou ld  be  ta lk ing  to  you  10 

about  such mat te rs?  

MS KWINANA:    I  wou ld  say in  my  capac i ty  as  a  char te red  

accountant  because l i ke  fo r  ins tance he wou ld  say I  am in  

the  process o f  buy ing  th is  bus iness,  I  want  you to  adv ise  

me on -  bas ica l l y  tha t  wou ld  be  f inanc ia l  mat te rs  because  

he knew tha t  I  am a  char te red accountant .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   Were  there  on ly  a  few o f  such 

requests  o r  wh ich  had noth ing  to  do  w i th  SAA? 

MS KWINANA:    There  wou ld  be ,  there  wou ld  be  a  few.  

CHAIRPERSON:    There  wou ld  be  a  few.  20 

MS KWINANA:    H ’m.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Was i t  on  the  bas is  tha t  you wou ld  

charge h im fees or  was i t  on  the  bas is  o f  jus t  do ing  h im a  

favour?  

MS KWINANA:    No,  I  wou ld  no t  charge h im fees because  
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maybe he wou ld  speak br ie f l y,  l i ke  say maybe one  minute  

or  two minutes  and there fore  I  rea l l y  wou ld  no t  –  I  wou ld  

no t  charge fees.   I  d id  no t  cha rge h im anyth ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .   Ms Hofmeyr?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Thank you,  Cha i r.   And,  as  I  unders tand 

i t ,  you  ind ica ted  ear l ie r  tha t  you do not  have a  ve ry  good 

reco l lec t ion  o f  tha t  10  February  2016 meet ing ,  i s  tha t  

r igh t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And –  bu t  you d id  say i t  was  ove r  in  10 

about  f i ve  m inutes ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    Ja ,  I  th ink  i t  was a  ve ry  shor t  meet ing .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    R igh t .   Mr  Koh l ,  the  CEO of  Swisspor t ,  

has prov ided an  a f f idav i t  to  the  Commiss ion .   That  was  

dea l t  w i th in  the  p rev ious ev idence  o f  Ms Memela .   I  wou ld  

l i ke  to  take  you to  what  he  says about  meet ing  and  fo r  tha t  

purpose I  am go ing  to  ask  you to  be  ass is ted  and Zwel ih le ,  

the  Cha i r ’s  reg i s t ra r,  i f  he  wou ld  no t  m ind ass i s t ing  the  

Cha i r.   We are  go ing  to  need EXHIBIT DD25A.   Thank you.  

MS KWINANA:    May I  ask ,  Cha i r,  why is  tha t  no t  inc luded  20 

in  my bund le?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Because,  Ms Kw inana,  you were  re fer red  

to  the  fac t  tha t  you wou ld  be  in  add i t ion  to  your  bund le  

re fer red  to  the  ev idence o f  o ther  w i tnesses.   Your  lawyer  

was g iven a  l i s t  o f  a l l  o f  those w i tnesses.   She was to ld  the  
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exact  days on  wh ich  they tes t i f ied  and she was to ld  where  

the i r  bund les  cou ld  be  obta ined.   So you were  g iven  

fo rewarn ing  tha t  I  wou ld  take  you to  o ther  bund les .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Have you got  the  page number?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes,  we w i l l  tu rn  to  page 300,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    300.   And jus t  be fore  we go fu r the r,  Ms 

Kwinana,  I  wou ld  jus t  l i ke  to  ge t  a  sense o f  how much o f  

the  Commiss ion ’s  p roceed ings you  have watched.   D id  you  

watch  Mr  Nzeko ’s  ev idence?  10 

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes.   And how you watched Ms Memela ’s  

ev idence before  the  Commiss ion?  

MS KWINANA:    Some o f  tha t .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Some o f  i t .   She gave ev idence both  in  

February  and then more  recent ly  on  the  1  October.   Which 

o f  those d id  you watch?  

MS KWINANA:    No,  I  wou ld  no t  be  ab le  to  say I  watched  

th is  one.   No,  I  de f in i te ly  w i l l  no t  be  ab le  to  do  tha t .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Okay,  bu t  you  have seen some o f  Ms  20 

Memela ’s  ev idence,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Thank you.   And  you have conf i rmed you 

d id  see Mr  Ndzeku ’s .   R igh t ,  so  le t  us  go  to  page 300.   

Now,  Cha i r,  we have a l ready dea l t  w i th  th is  emai l  because  
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i t  was an emai l  tha t  we dea l t  w i th  –  we l l ,  le t  me go back a  

b i t .   Mr  Koh l ’s  a f f idav i t  was dea l t  w i th  bo th  in  Mr  Ndzeku ’s  

ev idence and in  Ms Memela ’s  ev idence.   I t  appears  in  Ms 

Memela ’s  bund le ,  DD25,  wh ich  is  why we have i t  in  f ron t  o f  

us  a t  the  moment .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And what  th is  is ,  i s  th is  i s  an  emai l  tha t  

Mr  Koh l  wr i tes  on  the  12  February  2016 wh ich  is  two days  

a f te r  the  meet ing  on  the  10  February  2016.   You can  

conf i rm,  Ms Kwinana,  tha t  the  meet ing  took p lace on the  10  10 

February  2016,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    You know,  I  do  no t  even th ink  tha t  I  wou ld  

ca l l  i t  a  meet ing .  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Oh,  r igh t .   Yes,  f i ve  m inutes  

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Encounte r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Encounte r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Does encounte r  make i t  appropr ia te?  

MS KWINANA:    Okay.   Wel l ,  Mr  Koh l  thought  tha t  i t  was a  

meet ing .   So le t  us  go  to  paragraph 5  on  page 300 o f  h is  20 

emai l  o f  the  12  February  and he is  send ing  the  

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry,  so  j us t  to  –  le t  us  record  jus t  

who th is  emai l  i s  f rom.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes,  cer ta in ly,  thank you.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Who i t  i s  to  and  what  the  sub jec t  mat te r  

was.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Thank you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  th is  i s  an  emai l  f rom Mr  Peter  Koh l  

da ted  the  12  February  2016 sent  a t  6 .58  in  the  morn ing  

and i t  i s  send to  Andres A lvez,  Johan Joose or  Josse,  

p robab ly,  Ib rah im@water fa l l . co .za ,  Yahya@wate r fa l l . co .za ,  

what  appears  to  be  Er ic  Bourne,  Vuyo Ndzeku and a lso  

Werner@water fa l l . co .za  and the  sub jec t  i s  10 

“SAA:   Cr i t i ca l  s i tua t ion ”   

And i t  i s  recorded as  hav ing  h igh  impor tance and i t  i s  

addressed to :  

“Dear  Board  Members  o f  Swisspor t  South  A f r i ca . ”  

And then in  tha t  f i f th  parag raph he ind i ca tes  –  I  sa id  he  

thought  i t  was meet ing ,  we l l  tha t  i s  based on what  he  says 

in  paragraph 5  and I  wou ld  l i ke  to  read tha t  in to  the  record .   

He records the re :  

“Yakhe Kwinana cha i red  the  meet ing  and dec lared  

tha t  the  purpose  o f  the  meet ing  is  to  f ina l i se  a l l  20 

cont rac tua l  mat te rs  and tha t  no  one w i l l  leave the  

room befo re  an  agreement  has been reached and 

s igned.   What  sounded l i ke  a  promis ing  s ta r t  qu i ck ly  

tu rned in to  ca lami ty  when both  the  head o f  

p rocu rement  and  Yakhe ins i s ted  tha t  p r io r  to  the  
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par t ies  f ina l i s ing  and s igned cont rac ts  Swisspor t  

wou ld  be  requ i red  to  s ign  supp lementa ry  

agreements  emai led  by  SAA to Swisspor t  in  

December  2015.   Yakhe in fo rmed the  meet ing  

a t tendees tha t  i f  Swisspor t  does not  s ign  these 

agreements  any dea l  i s  o f f  the  tab le  and SAA wou ld  

make a  dec i s ion  on  whether  i t  g ives  no t ice  to  

Swisspor t  and re tenders  the  bus iness.   Yakhe  

fu r ther  in fo rmed  tha t  Swisspor t  i s  to  ignore  the  

2012 tender  award  and tha t  the  new award  o f  10 

December  ’15  sha l l  app ly  wh ich  conta ins  add i t iona l  

requ i rements  and  two add i t iona l  ag reements . ”  

And then he goes  on to  a r t i cu la te :  

“SAA’s  demand essent ia l l y  bo i led  down to  th is : ”  

Cha i r,  I  w i l l  j us t  read the  fo l low ing  two pa ragraphs a lso  fo r  

Ms Kwinana ’s  benef i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  tha t  i s  f ine .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    He says:  

“SAA’s  demand essent ia l l y  bo i led  down to  th is :   

Swisspor t  i s  to  s ign  agreement  …[ in tervenes]  20 

MS KWINANA:    Sor ry,  where  are  you read ing  f rom now? 

CHAIRPERSON:    Page 300.  

MS KWINANA:    Page 300?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    I  am cont inu ing  a f te r  the  f i f th  paragraph,  
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I  am now a t  the  seventh  paragraph .    

“Swisspor t  i s  to  s ign…”  

Do you have i t  Ms Kwinana?  

MS KWINANA:    7  i s  on  the  o ther  s ide  on  201.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Oh.  

CHAIRPERSON:    D id  you see the  one she was  read ing  

tha t  s ta r ts  w i th :  

“Yakhe Kwinana cha i red  the  meet ing . . ”  

Can you see tha t  one a t  page 300? 

MS KWINANA:    Ja ,  Kwinana ’s  demand.    10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Then she was read ing  the  paragraph –  

no ,  she was read ing  the  paragraph tha t  s ta r ts  w i th :  

“Yakhe Kwinana cha i red  the  meet ing  and  

dec lared…”  

Can you see tha t  parag raph?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Ja .   She f in ished read ing  tha t .   She now 

wants  to  read the  next  one and she w i l l  te l l  you  wh ich  one.  

MS KWINANA:    Oh.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  20 

ADV HOFMEYR:    Thank you.   So then i t  goes on,  a f te r  

tha t  f i rs t  parag raph ident i f y ing  you as  hav ing  cha i red  the  

meet ing  and then  i t  says :  

“SAA’s  demand essent ia l l y  bo i led  down to  th is : ”  

And then i t  says  the  fo l low ing.  
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“Swisspor t  i s  to  s ign  agreements  wh ich  fo resee 30% 

of  the  SAA revenues due to  Swisspor t  to  be  

w i thhe ld  by  SAA.   SAA wou ld  subsequent ly  d iver t  

these 30% to  a  BEE company o f  the i r  cho ice  wh ich  

essent ia l l y  equa tes  to  30% of  Swisspor t  SAA’s  

revenues be ing  d i ver ted  to  char i t y.   Swisspor t  wou ld  

fu r ther  commi t  to  t ra in  s ta f f  o f  such company on 

how to  run  SAA ground hand l ing  opera t ion  so  tha t  

the  BEE company can eventua l l y  take  ove r  the  job .   

In  o ther  words,  o f  annua l  SAA revenues o f  300 10 

mi l l ion ,  Swisspor t  wou ld  need to  par t  w i th  90  mi l l ion  

in  favour  o f  a  BEE company o f  SAA’s  cho ice .   Apar t  

f rom be ing  i l l ega l  and ent i re ly  ou ts ide  the  

prov is ions o f  the  South  A f r i can BBBEE Act ,  SAA’s  

demands wou ld  bankrupt  Swisspor t ’s  g round  

hand l ing  bus iness because the  demand equates  to  

more  than tw ice  the  EBIT. ”  

Cou ld  you jus t  he lp  us ,  what  does EBIT s tand fo r?  

MS KWINANA:    Earn ings be fo re  in te res t  and taxes .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Thank you.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry,  p lease look th is  s ide  and  

repeat?  

MS KWINANA:    Earn ings be fo re  in te res t  and taxes .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  jus t  to  go  back:  

“The demand equates  to  more  than tw ice  the  EBIT 
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Swisspor t  genera tes  w i th  the  en t i re  g round hand l ing  

ac t i v i t ies  i n  Sou th  A f r i ca  (no t  on ly  SAA but  a l l  

cus tomers  and bus iness combined)  hence Yakhe ’s  

demand fe l l  no th ing  shor t  o f  demand ing tha t  the  

CEO of  Swisspor t  South  A f r i ca  must  s ign  on  the  

spot  tha t  he  accepts  the  bankrup tcy  o f  Swisspor t ’s  

g round hand l ing  d iv is ion  or  e lse  SAA wi l l  sever  the  

re la t ionsh ip  w i th  Swisspor t . ”  

I  th ink  he  says severe  bu t  he  ac tua l l y  means to  say sever.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  ja ,  ja .  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:    Ms Kwinana,  does tha t  re f resh your  

memory  about  what  t ransp i red  a t  tha t  meet ing?  

MS KWINANA:    Def in i te ly  no ,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    I t  does not?  

MS KWINANA:    No.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Why does i t  no t?  

CHAIRPERSON:    You do not  remember?   You  do not  

remember  the  meet ing?  

MS KWINANA:    There  was a  mee t ing ,  Cha i r,  tha t  i s  why I  

am say ing  i t  was an encounter.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MS KWINANA:    Yes.   So bas ica l l y  I  do  no t  remember  us  

d iscuss ing  th is .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    You have no  memory  o f  tha t  be ing  

d iscussed?  
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MS KWINANA:    No.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So is  he  jus t  mak ing  up a  ve ry  de ta i led  

account  o f  a  mee t ing  two days a f te r  i t  occur red?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  Ms Kwinana,  a re  you sure  tha t  i t  

what  you want  to  say?  Are  you sure  tha t  you wan t  to  say  

he  is  mak ing  i t  up  or  do  you want  to  say he  might  no t  be  

mak ing  i t  up  bu t  you might  genu ine ly  no t  be  remember ing  

because he dec ides to  address th is  emai l  to  board  

members  o f  Swisspor t  South  A f r i ca  and when you read 10 

even jus t  what  Ms Hofmeyr  was read ing  you can see i t  i s  

someth ing  qu i te  ser ious,  tha t  he  takes ve ry  ser ious ly.   Do  

you want  to  say he  is  fabr ica t ing  a l l  o f  tha t?  

MS KWINANA:    He i s  fab r ica t ing  i t ,  Cha i r.   There  is  no  

way tha t  we wou ld  say –  bas ica l l y,  how I  unders tand h im to  

say is  tha t  we are  impos ing  30% set  as ide  on  h i s  company,  

tha t  means we a re  now get t ing  in to  the  boardroom of  h is  

company wh ich  bas i ca l l y  we canno t  do  tha t .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  he has fabr ica ted  th is ,  co r rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes.  20 

ADV HOFMEYR:    R igh t .   There  was another  a t tendee a t  

tha t  meet ing  a lso  f rom Swisspor t  who d id  no tes  o f  the 

meet ing  tha t  bear  a  s ta r t l ing  resemblance to  Mr  Koh l ’s  

account  two days la te r.   I  wou ld  l i ke  to  take  you to  h i s  

no tes  o f  the  meet ing  you w i l l  f ind  tha t  a t  page  
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…[ in te rvenes]  

MS KWINANA:    Where  are  the  m inutes  o f  the  meet ing  

because I  w i l l  no t  agree to  the  no tes  tha t  a re  taken outs ide  

the  meet ing .   Can you show me where  are  the  m inutes  o f  

th is  meet ing?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    No,  Ms Kwinana,  I  am jus t  go ing  to  pu t  

to  you the  no tes  taken by  another  Swisspor t  

rep resenta t i ve .  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r,  bu t  I  need the  m inutes .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    There  were  no  minutes  taken  10 

unfor tunate ly.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ms Kwinana,  Ms  Kwinana …[ in tervenes]  

MS KWINANA:    I  am say ing  you,  Cha i r  …[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ms Kwinana,  answer  the  quest i ons tha t  

w i l l  be  pu t  to  you .   I f  you  want  to  say I  do  no t  accept  tha t  

th is  emai l  o r  th is  no te  i s  a  cor rec t  re f lec t ion  o f  what  was  

sa id  because i t  i s  no t  the  m inutes  o f  the  meet ing ,  you 

make tha t  po in t .   Okay?  So le t  Ms  Hofmeyr  take  you to  the  

document  tha t  she wants  to  take  you to .   She w i l l  then put  

the  quest ion  to  you,  you respond to  the  quest ion .   I f  you  20 

want  to  say s ince  tha t  i s  no t  a  m inute  o f  tha t  meet ing  I  am 

not  accept ing  what  i s  sa id  there ,  you may make tha t  po in t .  

MS KWINANA:    Thank you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   Ms Hofmeyr?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Thank you,  Cha i r,  le t  us  go  to  page 309 
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o f  the  same bund le .   That  i s  DD25,  fo r  the  record .   So 

…[ in tervenes]  

MS MBANJWA:    Cha i r,  I  am not  ob jec t ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Sor ry?  

MS MBANJWA:    I  jus t  want  a  –  i n i t ia l l y  Mrs  Hofmeyr  had 

sa id  t ha t  she i s  tak ing  Mrs  Kwinana to  the  a f f idav i t  tha t  

was submi t ted  by  Peter  Koh l .   I  do  no t  know,  can I  

[ inaud ib le  –  speak ing  s imu l taneous ly ]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay.   No,  I  th ink  you are  r i gh t ,  she 

had sa id  she was  go ing  to  take  us  to  the  a f f idav i t .  10 

MS MBANJWA:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes,  apo log ies ,  these are  exh ib i t s  to  the  

a f f idav i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    To  the  a f f idav i t .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    I  jus t  fa i led  to  g ive  the  re fe rence to  the  

a f f idav i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    The a f f idav i t  commences a t  page  229.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay and these are  annexures  to  the  

a f f idav i t .  20 

ADV HOFMEYR:    Indeed.   Apo log ies ,  I  d id  move qu ick l y  

ahead but  Ms Mban jwa is  abso lu te ly  cor rec t ,  the  a f f idav i t  

commences a t  229,  these a re  the  exh ib i t s  to  the  a f f idav i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    We have looked  prev ious l y  a t  EXHIBIT 6  
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wh ich  was Mr  Peter  Koh l ’ s  no tes  about  the  mee t ing two 

days a f te r  i t  occu r red  and then I  am tak ing  Ms Kwinana to  

page 309 wh ich  were  meet ing  no tes  prepared by  a  Mr  Bob  

Gur r ,  who was Swisspor t  South  A f r i ca  commerc ia l  d i rec tor  

a t  the  t ime and you w i l l  see  these are  meet ing  no tes  and  

under  a t tendees,  the  a t tendees inc lude Mr  Koh l  and Mr  

Gur r .   They a lso  –  Mr  Pete r ,  Mr  Du laxo lo  Peter  was a t  tha t  

meet ing .   Does tha t  re f resh your  memory?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes,  so  you can  conf i rm he was there .  10 

MS KWINANA:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And you unders tood h im to  be  the re .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Sor ry?  

MS MBANJWA:    Sor ry,  Cha i r,  I  know tha t  there  is  a  

p ressure  he re  about  t ime but  there  is  a l so  a  p rob lem.   

L ike ,  fo r  ins tance,  who Ms Hofmeyr  has sa id  th is  i s  the 

a f f idav i t  and th is  i s  an  annexure  to  the  a f f idav i t ,  so  

persona l l y  I  cannot  re la te  th is  to  the  a f f idav i t ,  I  have to  

page and see i f  th is  EXHIBIT 6  is  ment ioned the re .    I s  i t  

poss ib le  fo r  you to  gu ide  us  to  your  document  [ inaud ib le  –  20 

speak ing  s imul taneous ly ]  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  Ms Mban jwa  …[ in tervenes]  

MS KWINANA:    Then why do we not  s ta r t  w i th  the  a f f idav i t  

so  tha t  i t  can  a lso  make sense fo r  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ms Kwinana,  p lease,  w i l l  bo th  o f  you jus t  
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wa i t  fo r  your  tu rn ,  okay?  Ms Mban jwa… 

MS MBANJWA:    Yes?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ms Hofmeyr  says th is  i s  one o f  the 

annexures to  Mr  Koh l ’s  a f f idav i t .   Mr  Koh l ’s  a f f idav i t  and  

he has ind i ca ted  –  she has ind i ca ted  on what  page Mr  

Koh l ’s  a f f idav i t  s ta r ts .   Now she has no in te res t  in  go ing  to  

the  a f f idav i t  where  the  annexure  is  ment ioned,  you a re  

supposed to  have read the  a f f idav i t  in  advance i f  i t  i s  one 

o f  the  documents  tha t  you were  warned wou ld  be  used and 

then you wou ld  know what  the  contex t  i s .   We cannot  now 10 

go there  i f  Ms Ho fmeyr  …[ in te rvenes]  

MS MBANJ WA:    I f  I  can  answer ,  Cha i r?   Genera l l y  i f  a  

person makes an  a f f idav i t  and I  know tha t  Cha i r  and Ms 

Hofmeyr  w i l l  agree w i th  me,  i f  you  have annexures to  tha t  

a f f idav i t ,  normal ly  the  annexures w i l l  be  numbered 

annexure  th is  and tha t .   So the  d i f f i cu l t y  I  have i s  tha t  save  

fo r  the  i pse  d ix i t  o f  Ms Hofmeyr  to  say tha t  th is  i s  an  

annexure  to  th is  a f f idav i t  there  is  no th ing  [ ind is t inc t ]  23 .30  

the  a l leged annexure  tha t  l inks  tha t  annexure  to  the  

a f f idav i t .   So tha t  i s  a l l  I  was ask ing  to  say …[ in tervenes]  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MS MBANJWA:    How can I  see [ inaud ib le  –  speak ing  

s imul taneous ly ]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  have you checked whether  i t  i s  no t  

re fe r red  to?  
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MS MBANJ WA:    That  i s  the  f i rs t  th ing .   And then the  

second th ing  wh ich  I  want  answered cha i r ,  concern ing  th is  

s ta tement  tha t  I  shou ld  have read  th is .   I f  you  look a t  the  

le t te rs  wh ich  we had a  prob lem wi th ,  one o f  the  th ings tha t  

we asked in  the  le t te rs ,  we have sa id  we want  the  ev idence 

bund le  tha t  i s  go ing  to  be  g iven  to  Ms Kwinana and we  

were  g iven documents  and these documents  were  no t  par t  

o f  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  she sa id  you were  g i ven the  l ink  to  

show –  tha t  to ld  you where  the  f ind  o ther  ev idence tha t  w i l l  10 

be  used.  

MS MBANJWA:    Which  means then,  Cha i r  –  i t  i s  l i ke ,  fo r  

ins tance,  th is  a f f idav i t  o f  Mr  Koh l ,  wh ich  is  here ,  because  

the  way I  unders tand i t ,  i f  there  i s  a  document  in  te rms o f  

the  ru les  o f  the  Commiss ion ,  i f  there  i s  a  document  tha t  

imp l ica tes  a  par t y  then a  par ty  i s  supposed to  answer  to  

tha t  document .   I  know tha t  there  i s  a  p rob lem o f  t ime.   I t  

i s  l i ke ,  fo r  ins tance,  when Mrs  Kw inana wanted to  ment ion  

those names she  was to ld  tha t  she cannot  ye t  she was not  

g iven a  3 .2  fo r  Mr  Ndzeku.  So i f  [ inaud ib le  –  speak ing  20 

s imul taneous ly ]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  i f  you  are  warned tha t  the 

fo l low ing documents  w i l l  be  or  may be used du r ing  Ms 

Kwinana ’s  quest ion ing ,  you are  supposed to  go  th rough a l l  

o f  them because you have now been warned so  tha t  – we l l ,  
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go  th rough them and she shou ld  -  Ms Kwinana shou ld  a lso  

go  th rough them so tha t  you a re  ready –  she is  ready to  be  

asked any quest ions in  regard  to  tha t .  

MS MBANJ WA:    I f  I  can  be d i rec ted  to  where ,  Cha i r ,  I  was  

warned tha t  there  wou ld  be  th is  a f f idav i t  o f  Peter  Koh l  I  

wou ld  apprec ia te .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Cer ta in ly ,  Cha i r ,  jus t  so  tha t  there  is  no  

suggest ion  o f  p re jud ice .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    On the  28  October  a  le t te r  went  to  Ms 10 

Mban jwa f rom the  secre tar ia t  o f  the  Commiss ion  mak ing  

var ious proposa ls  about  how to  dea l  w i th  her  ev idence.   

Paragraph 5  the  fo l low ing is  sa id :  

“ In  add i t ion  to  the  documents  in  Ms Kwinana ’s  

bund le  she w i l l  be  re fer red  to  the  ev idence o f  the  

fo l low ing w i tnesses who have tes t i f ied  be fore  the  

Commiss ion  on  av ia t ion - re la ted  mat te rs .   Be low we 

have se t  ou t  the  re levant  w i tness  and the  da te  on  

wh ich  they tes t i f ied  fo r  your  conven ience. ”  

That  i s  fo l lowed  by  the  tab le  l i s t ing  a l l  o f  the  w i tnesses  20 

inc lud ing  Ms Memela .   The le t te r  then goes on:  

“The t ranscr ip ts  o f  the  ev idence and wi tness  

bund les  are  up loaded on the  Commiss ion ’ s  webs i te .   

I f  you  have any d i f f i cu l t ies  in  access ing  these  

documents  on  the  webs i te  p lease le t  us  now. ”  
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Le t  me a l so  read  in to  the  record  what  the  response f rom 

Ms Mban jwa was  to  tha t  paragraph o f  the  le t te r  on  the  

same day:  

“We see the  i r re levant  l i s t  o f  w i tnesses fu rn i shed to  

us  and note  i t  fo r  record  purposes.   I  must  confess  I  

a lways f ind  i t  te r r ib ly  i r r i ta t ing  when th ings a re  done  

mere ly  fo r  show and w i thout  a  t rue  des i re  to  ass is t .   

P lease read paragraph 3 .3 ,  Ru les  Govern ing  

Proceed ings o f  the  Jud ic ia l  Commiss ion  o f  Inqu i ry  

in to  A l legat ions o f  S ta te  Capture ,  Cor rup t ion  and  10 

Fraud in  the  Pub l ic  Secto r  inc lud ing  Organs o f  

S ta te .   You w i l l  see  what  ought  to  have been g i ven 

to  a  w i tness and compare  i t  to  what  has been g iven  

to  us . ”  

MS MBANJWA:    Can I  respond,  Cha i r?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MS MBANJWA:    Yes,  I  wro te  tha t  le t te r  and the  reason 

why I  wro te  tha t  le t te r  i s  because  fo r  th ree  weeks we had  

been ask ing  fo r  th is  ev idence bund le  and everybody knows 

tha t  I  am in  p r i va te  prac t ice .   We wanted the  ev idence 20 

bund le  ear l y .   We were  g iv ing  the  ev idence bund le  

de l ibe ra te l y  –  I  say  i t ,  Cha i r  –  a t  the  very  las t  m inute .   I  

th ink  we rece ived  i t  on  Thursday.   

 And the  o ther  th ing ,  I  want  Ms Hofmeyr  –  because 

tha t  I  what  I  wan ted he r  to  do ,  I  wanted her  to  re fe r  there  
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to  someth ing  tha t  sa id  tha t  Peter  Koh l ’s  a f f idav i t  w i l l  be  

inc luded because  th is  a f f idav i t  o f  Peter  Koh l  was not  even 

g iven to  us ,  i t  was even requested by  Ms Memela .   So i f  

she  can on tha t  l i s t  re fe r  me to someth ing  tha t  says the  

ev idence o f  Peter  Koh l  w i l l  be  there .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  I  thought  she sa id  tha t  le t te r  i s  a lso  

in  Ms Memela ’ s  …[ in tervenes]  

ADV HOFMEYR:    I t  i s  in  her  bund le .  

MS MBANJWA:    No,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON:    In  the  bund le .  10 

MS MBANJWA:    Cha i r ,  tha t  i s  why we wanted th is  

cor rec t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MS MBANJWA:    The a f f idav i t  o f  Peter  Koh l  was not  par t  o f  

Ms Memela ’ s  bund le .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    I t  was.  

MS MBANJ WA:    No –  to  a  po in t  where  –  we can  maybe 

s tand down and see because i f  I  reca l l  we l l ,  Mrs  Memela ,  

two a f f idav i t s  tha t  she wanted to  be  g i ven to  he r  was the  

a f f idav i t  o f  Peter  Koh l  and the  a f f idav i t  o f  th is  o ther  person 20 

who spoke o f  GPUs.   You w i l l  remember ,  Cha i r ,  I  even sa id  

tha t  there  has been suppress ion  o f  ev idence because tha t  

i s  the  a f f idav i t  tha t  exp la ins  c lear l y  how the  pr i ce  

de terminat ion  o f  GPUs was made and Ms Memela ’s  name 

was not  ment ioned.   So she d id  no t  tes t i f y  th is  quest ion  
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about  these th ings,  i t  was never  pu t  to  Ms Memela .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Le t  me hear  Ms  Hofmeyr  about  whethe r  

Mr  Koh l ’s  a f f idav i t  was one o f  the  a f f idav i t s  re fe r red  to .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes,  i t  was,  Cha i r .   I t  i s  in  Ms Memela ’s  

bund le .   The bund le  tha t  we a l l  have before  us  a t  the  

moment  i s  EXHIB IT DD25A.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Which  is  the  f i rs t  o f  th ree  o f  Ms 

Memela ’s  bund les .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:    And Ms Mban jwa was to ld  las t  week tha t  

amongst  the  ev idence and bund les  tha t  wou ld  be  re fer red  

to  in  Ms Kwinana ’s  ev idence was tha t  o f  Ms Memela .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   Do you have bund le  DD25A,  Ms  

Mban jwa.  

MS MBANJWA:    Cha i r ,  I  am go ing  to  say th i s  th ing  fo r  the 

las t  t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  no ,  jus t  answer  my quest i ons,  do  

you have tha t  bund le?  

MS MBANJWA:    I  have bund le  what?  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    What  page is  Mr  Koh l ’s  a f f idav i t ,  Ms 

Hofmeyr?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  229.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    I t  s ta r ts  a t  page  229,  co r rec t ,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Have you got  Mr  Koh l ’s  a f f idav i t  
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…[ in te rvenes]  

MS MBANJWA:    Yes,  I  have.  

CHAIRPERSON:    S tar t ing  a t  page  229?  

MS MBANJWA:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    You have got  tha t .   A re  you now say ing  

tha t  you were  no t  to ld  tha t  Mr  Koh l ’s  a f f idav i t  i s  one  o f  the  

a f f idav i t s  tha t  w i l l  be  re fer red  to?  

MS MBANJWA:    Yes,  I  was not  to ld .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   Ms Hofmeyr ,  do  you want  to  say 

someth ing  on  tha t?  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:    Cha i r ,  Ms Mban jwa was a le r ted  to  every  

s ing le  w i tness ’s  bund le .  

CHAIRPERSON:    yes .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Who was go ing  to  be  re fer red  to  in  Ms 

Kwinana ’s  ev idence.   The bund les  were  -  she was to ld  a re  

ava i lab le  and she was even inv i ted  to  come back  i f  there  

was any d i f f i cu l t y  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    I f  there  were  any d i f f i cu l t ies .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    . . .on  her  pa r t  in  access ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   And I  guess . . . [ in te rvenes]   20 

MS MBANJWA:    Cha i r  a l l  tha t  Ms  Hofmeyr  needs to  do  is  

to  read the  le t te r  a le r t ing  you tha t ’s  a l l  o r  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Ms Mban jwa . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS MBANJWA:   . . . tha t  i s  a l l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    We are  go ing  to  move ahead now,  I  am 
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sa t i s f ied  tha t  you  were  g i ven the  a f f idav i t ,  you were  a le r ted  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS MBANJ WA:    No I  wasn ’ t  g iven Cha i r,  we made 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Le t  us  move ahead.   I  do  no t  want  any 

wast ing  o f  the  Commiss ion ’s  t ime  Ms Mban jwa.    I  do  no t  

want  any wast ing  o f  the  Commiss ion ’s  t ime.  

MS MBANJWA:   And we . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    We don ’ t  have t ime.  

MS MBANJWA:   Can we move ahead Cha i r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Le t  us  proceed.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   We were  go ing  to  look  a t  page 309  

because tha t  i s  t he  no tes  made by  another  a t tendee a t  the  

meet ing  on  the  10 t h  o f  February  and they are  meet ing  

no tes  compi led  by  Mr  Bob Gurr  who is  the  commerc ia l  VP 

a t  Swisspor t  and  you w i l l  see  the i r  Ms Kwinana tha t  Mr  

Gur r  g ives  a  very  s im i la r  account  o f  the  meet ing  to  the  one  

tha t  we looked a t  Mr  Peter  Koh l .   I f  you  go down to  the 

meet ing  no tes  you w i l l  see  the  f i rs t  bu l le t  on  tha t  page  

says:  20 

“That  the  meet ing  commenced a t  8  o ’c lock  YK tha t  

i s  an  ind ica t ion  tha t  i t  i s  a  re fe rence to  you f rom the  

code above opened the  meet ing  by  express ing  the  

concern  tha t  SWPSA tha t  a lso  is  a  shor t  hand fo r  

Swisspor t  South  A f r i ca  was de lay ing  the  process by  
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in t roduc ing  a  non-s tandard  agreement  and no t  

agree ing  to  the  BBBEE terms as  s t ipu la ted  in  SAA’s 

cor respondence  fo rwarded to  Swisspor t  in  

December  2015. ”  

I t  goes on:  

“Yakhe Kwinana  expecta t ion  was tha t  feedback  

wou ld  be  rece ived f rom Swisspor t  South  A f r i ca . ”  

LP,  who i s  tha t?  Oh tha t  i s  Lester  Peter :  

“Adv ise  no  response rece ived to  da te .  PK – tha t  is  

Mr  Peter  Koh l  –  adv i sed tha t  Swisspor t  South  A f r i ca  10 

had not  p roposed any changes to  SAA’s  or ig ina l  

agreement  templa te  and had in  fac t  responded to  

SAA’s  cor respondence o f  December. ”  

And then Mr  Gurr  records :  

“Yakhe Kwinana ind ica ted  tha t  the  par t i c i pants  

wou ld  be  –  and he puts  in  quota t ions “ locked in  the  

room unt i l  an  ag reement  had been  reached a l though 

she was requ i red  to  a t tend a  board  meet ing  and 

may have to  excuse herse l f . ”  

And then i t  goes  on you adv i se  h im tha t  there  were  two 20 

documents  and there  had been no agreement  regard ing  the  

le t te r  o f  in ten t  and Mr  Peter  Koh l  adv ised tha t  Swisspor t  

cou ld  no t  take  pa r t  in  tha t  30% set  as ide  ar rangement .   Ms  

Kwinana aga in  i s  th is  a  fa lse  repor t ing  o f  the  meet ing?           

MS KWINANA:    I t  i s  de f in i te ly  a  fa lse  repor t ing .   



02 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 296 
 

Page 77 of 257 
 

CHAIRPERSON:    A re  you su re  about  tha t?   

MS KWINANA:    100%,  Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  th is  i s  what  Mr  Gurr  recorded.   

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes,  Mr  Gur r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   

ADV HOFMEYR:    He was the  commerc ia l  v ice  pres ident  o f  

Swisspor t  a t  the  t ime and h i s  exh ib i t s  re fe renced jus t  fo r  

record  purposes Cha i r  i f  you  go to  Mr  Koh l ’s  a f f idav i t  he 

in t roduces i t  a t  DD25 page 247 a t  parag raph 14.13.   

CHAIRPERSON:    So  is  my unders tand ing  co r rec t  tha t  10 

these are  two d i f fe ren t  peop le  who have sa id  someth ing  

about  what  t ransp i red  a t  th is  meet ing .     

ADV HOFMEYR:    Cor rec t .   

CHAIRPERSON:    One is  what  i s  ca l led  meet ing  no tes  and  

the  o ther  one in  an  emai l .   

ADV HOFMEYR:    Cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And cer ta in l y  bo th  o f  whom re fe r red  to  

Ms Kwinana hav ing  sa id  someth ing  a long the  l ines  tha t  

they wou ld  be  locked in  the  room unt i l  there  was an  

agreement .    20 

ADV HOFMEYR:    Cor rec t ,  Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  you say bo th  o f  them are  fabr ica t ing  

the  s to ry.    

MS KWINANA:    Cha i r  i t  i s  two d i f fe ren t  peop le  f rom the  

same company and I  am conf ident  tha t  they are  fab r ica t ing  
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i t .   

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t  Ms  Hofmeyr.   

ADV HOFMEYR:    Do you remember  what  tha t  agreement  

was tha t  they have been sent…[ in tervene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry  maybe le t  me  ask th is  

quest ion  Ms Kwinana.   Do you know why they wou ld  f ind  i t  

necessary  to  fab r ica te  a  s to ry  about  you in  te rms  o f  what  

they say you sa id  a t  tha t  meet ing .   Do you know o f  a  

reason why they wou ld  do  tha t?   

MS KWINANA:    No,  Cha i r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    You do not  know anyth ing .   

MS KWINANA:    Bu t  read ing  th is  i t  looks  l i ke  the re  has  

been a  prev ious meet ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Sor ry?  

MS KWINANA:    From read ing  th is  i t  looks there  has been 

a  prev ious meet ing  wh ich  I  am no t  sure  o f  wh ich  I  may not  

have been par t  o f  because when they are  say ing  Sw isspor t  

was de lay ing  the  process o f  in t roduc ing  a  non-s tandard  

agreement  wh ich  means tha t  there  may have been a  

meet ing  where  th is  s tandard  agreement  was requ i red  and I  20 

a lso  do  not  know tha t .   So bas ica l l y  to  me i t  seems as i f  

th is  i s  a  fo l low up  meet ing .   

CHAIRPERSON:    Ms Hofmeyr?    

ADV HOFMEYR:    And tha t  i s  you ev idence o f  why i t  i s  

fabr ica ted ,  cor rec t?  
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MS KWINANA:    I  do  no t  know why  i t  i s  fabr ica ted .   

ADV HOFMEYR:    And they keep re fer r ing  to  an  agreement  

tha t  they go t  sen t  in  December  o f  2015 in  these accounts .   

Do you remember  tha t  they were  sent  the  dra f t  ag reement  

in  2015 in  December?   

MS KWINANA:    Was the  agreement  sent  to  me Cha i r.   

ADV HOFMEYR:    I  w i l l  ask  you a  d i f fe ren t  quest ion .   A re 

you aware  tha t  they were  sen t  a  d ra f t  agreement  in  

December  o f  2015?  

MS KWINANA:    No.   10 

CHAIRPERSON:    I  con t inue to  be  concerned about  the  

so f tness o f  your  vo i ce  so  p lease do not  move away f rom 

the  mic  i t  i s  impor tan t  I  shou ld  hear  what  you have  to  say.   

Yes Ms Hofmeyr.    

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  you d id  no t  make any re ference to  

tha t  a t  the  meet ing ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    No,  I  a lso  want  to  f ind  ou t  a re  they say ing  

tha t  tha t  agreement  was sent  to  me? 

ADV HOFMEYR:    Cha i r  i f  we cou ld  jus t  ind i ca te  to  Ms  

Kwinana tha t  I  do  no t  ac tua l l y  answer  quest ions i n  these  20 

proceed ings I  ask  the  quest ions.   So I  am go ing  to  

cont inue to  so r ry  I  do  no t  answer  quest ions I  ask  quest ions 

and I  w i l l  happ i l y  d i rec t  you to  the  document .   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  i f  you  seek  c la r i f i ca t ion  Ms Kwinana  

fee l  f ree  to  ask  i f  you  seek c la r i f i ca t ion  and the  
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c la r i f i ca t ion  wou ld  be  requ i red  bu t  o therw ise  the  Ev idence 

Leader  w i l l  ask  quest ions and you g ive  answers .       

MS KWINANA:    Thank you Cha i r.   

ADV HOFMEYR:    You see both  recordab le  o f  the  meet ing  

say tha t  the  po in t  o f  th is  December  2015 agreement  tha t  

had been c i r cu la ted  and not  s igned was taken up by  you.   

But  I  unders tand your  ev idence to  be  you do not  know o f  a  

December  2015 agreement  tha t  was c i r cu la ted  to  them.   I s  

tha t  cor rec t?   

MS KWINANA:    What  meet ing  Cha i r.   10 

ADV HOFMEYR:    You do not  know? 

MS KWINANA:    I  do  no t  know.   

ADV HOFMEYR:    Thank you,  and  i f  I  then show you tha t  

agreement  tha t  was c i r cu la ted  to  them by Mr  Leste r  Peter  

the  Head o f  P rocurement  I  jus t  want  to  be  sure  whethe r  

you have ever  seen i t  be fore .   You w i l l  f ind  tha t  ear l ie r  in  

the  bund le  a t  page 291.    

MS KWINANA:    Cha i r  can I  ask  fo r  some gu idance.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   

MS MBANJWA:    So  tha t  I  do  no t  necessar i l y  ob jec t .   I f  20 

one goes to  page 309 those mee t ings those o f  SAA and 

Swisspor t  wh ich  Ms Kwinana is  be ing  examined on by  the  

Ev idence Leader.   I f  you  tu rn  to  page 310 i t  i s  jus t  wr i t ten  

Bob,  I  cannot  p ronounce tha t  name BP Commerc ia l  tha t  

document  i s  no t  even s igned.   
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CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  bu t  you can ra ise  tha t  in  your  re -

examinat ion .  

MS MBANJ WA:    Yes,  I  jus t  want  to  f ina l i se  because i t  i s  

fo r  tha t  reason why we appear  to  be  d i f f i cu l t  because  

genera l l y  i f  anybody puts  fo rward  a  document  wh ich  a 

person is  go ing  to  asked to  quest ion  on  a t  leas t  the  

document  shou ld  be  authent ica ted .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MS MBANJWA:   And we know the  manner  o f  au then t ica t ing  

documents  in  the  Commiss ion  is  tha t  the  person who has 10 

the  document  who ’s  tha t  document  o r  a f f idav i t  fo r.   Which  

is  now why my quest ion  is  why is  th is  w i tness be ing  asked  

on a  document  tha t  i s  no t  au thent ica ted .   

CHAIRPERSON:    Ms Mban jwa I  a l low tha t  she be asked  

on tha t  I  have  a l lowed o the r  w i tnesses to  be  asked  

quest ions where  there  is  no  a f f i dav i t  on  documents  bu t  

when you re-examine you a re  f ree  to  take  tha t  i ssue up in  

re -examinat ion .       

ADV HOFMEYR:    Cha i r  jus t  fo r  Ms Mban jwa ’s  benef i t  th is  

i s  no t  a  document  tha t  ac tua l l y  i s  no t  suppor ted  by  an  20 

a f f idav i t  tha t  i s  why I  re fe renced page 247 paragraph  

14.13.   tha t  i s  where  Mr  Koh l  in t roduces both  h is  no tes  o f  

the  meet ing  and the  meet ing  no tes  and he makes i t  c lear  

who the  au thor  was and tha t  they are  the  records  o f  the  

meet ing  on  the  Swisspor t ’s  s ide .   So they do  ac tua l l y  en ter  
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th is  Commiss ion  a t tes ted  to  an  a f f idav i t ,  au thent ica t ion  o f  

documents  i s  no t  the  po in t  qu i te  f rank ly.   

MS MBANJWA:    No I  do  no t  th ink  you unders tand Ms 

Hofmeyr  ev idence.   Th is  documents  come as an  

independent  document  remember  what  you are  present ing  

to  me.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Ms Mban jwa even i f  i t  i s  an  independent  

document  I  w i l l  a l low i t  to  be  used to…[ in tervene]  

MS MBANJWA:    Yes,  bu t  I  was  jus t  say ing  tha t  she is  

wrong Cha i r  she does not  unders tand th i s .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    No Ms Mban jwa  when I  am speak ing  you 

do not  speak.   I  w i l l  a l low her  t o  ask  quest ions  to  the  

w i tness.   The w i tness w i l l  be  ab le  to  say yes I  have an  

answer  or  you do  not  have an answer  when you re -examine 

you can take  the  issue up a t  tha t  s tage.  

MS MBANJWA:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ms Hofmeyr.   

ADV HOFMEYR:    Cha i r  th is  agreement  a t  page 291 is  the  

agreement  tha t  Mr  Lester  Peter  sent  to  amongst  o thers  to  

Mr  Koh l  on  the  15 t h  o f  December  2015 and I  jus t  wanted 20 

you to  take  a  look a t  i t  and te l l  us  i f  you  have any  

reco l lec t ion  o f  see ing  th is  agreement  p rev ious l y?    

MS KWINANA:    No,  Cha i r  I  never  saw th is  document  

be fore .    

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  i f  none o f  what  Mr  Koh l  and Mr  Gurr  
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record  o f  what  has happened a t  tha t  meet ing  ac tua l l y  

occu r red  on your  vers ion  what  d id  occur?   What  happened 

a t  tha t  meet ing?  

MS KWINANA:    There  was a  shor t  meet ing  and I  do  no t  

know why was i t  a  shor t  meet ing  and I  do  no t  even 

remember  tha t  i s  why I  was say ing  I  wou ld  no t  even ca l l  i t  

a  meet ing  and in  fac t  I  do  no t  know i f  you have got  the  

m inutes  o f  the  meet ing  tha t  cou ld  remind me what  was 

be ing  d iscussed  what  was in  the  meet ing .   But  th is  

agreement  in  f ron t  o f  me is  my f i rs t  t ime to  see i t  Cha i r  as  10 

I  am s i t t ing  here .    

ADV HOFMEYR:    Your  ev idence ear l ie r  was tha t  i t  was a 

shor t  meet ing .  

MS KWINANA:    Yes.   

ADV HOFMEYR:    And tha t  you dec ided to  go  ou t  to  tender  

a f te rwards,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    I  do  no t  know i f  we sa id  tha t  we a re  go ing  

to  go  ou t  to  tender  o r  we d id  go  ou t  to  tender  o r  maybe I  

wou ld  say maybe they went  ou t  to  tender  a f te r  I  le f t .   

ADV HOFMEYR:    No,  Ms Kwinana your  ev idence  ear l ie r  20 

was i t  was a  shor t  meet ing .  

MS KWINANA:    Yes.    

ADV HOFMEYR:    And you cance l led ,  those might  no t  be  

your  exact  words bu t  as  I  unders tood i t  and you w i l l  cor rec t  

me i f  I  am wrong  you te rm inated the  ongo ing  negot ia t ions  
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w i th  Swisspor t  so  tha t  you wou ld  go  out  and tender.   D id  I  

have your  ev idence wrong?  

MS KWINANA:    No,  Cha i r  I  am say ing  what  was go ing  to  

be  d i scussed in  the  meet ing  was  go ing  to  see a  cont rac t  

your  cont rac t…[ in tervene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  Ms Kwinana  f i rs t  te l l  her  whether  her  

unders tand ing  o f  you r  ear l ie r  ev idence is  r igh t  o r  wrong 

tha t  i s  her  quest ion .   

MS KWINANA:    What  was your  ea r l ie r  ev idence Cha i r?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    I  unders tood your  ev idence ear l i e r  to  be  10 

i t  was a  shor t  meet ing  f i rs t…[ in tervene]  

MS KWINANA:    Where in  I  wou ld  no t  even ca l l  i t  a  

meet ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Hang on,  hang on I  know you have sa id  

encounter  one bu t  le t  her  know your  unders tand ing  o f  what  

you sa id  and then you can say whethe r  she unders tood  

your  ev idence cor rec t l y.   

ADV HOFMEYR:    And tha t  i t  was communica ted  to  

Swisspor t  a t  tha t  meet ing  tha t  negot ia t ions  w i th  Swisspor t  

were  go ing  to  se ize  and you were  go ing  to  go  ou t  to  20 

tender.   D id  I  unders tand your  ev idence cor rec t l y?  

MS KWINANA:    No.   

ADV HOFMEYR:    What  d id  happen a t  the  meet ing?  

MS KWINANA:    The purpose o f  the  meet ing  was to  

communica te  tha t  the i r  cont rac t  has been i r regu lar  and  
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there fo re  –  because now I  th ink  now they were  on  a  month  

to  month  bas i s  and there fore  i f  i t  i s  i r regu lar  and they are  

on  a  month  to  month  bas is  then i t  requ i res  tha t  i t  goes out  

to  tender.   That  was the  purpose o f  the  meet ing .   What  was 

d iscussed in  the  f i ve  m inutes  or  ten  m inutes  or  two minutes  

tha t  I  ca l l  an  encounte r.   I  do  no t  know i f  we sa id  the  

purpose o f  the  meet ing  is  what  because I  do  no t  even th ink  

tha t  we sa t  down but  I  do  no t  remember  what  t ransp i red  

tha t  made the  meet ing  no t  to  happen.    

ADV HOFMEYR:    Ms Kwinana I  am s t rugg l ing  to  10 

unders tand tha t  answer  so  le t  me  jus t  b reak i t  down a  b i t .   

You say the  pu rpose o f  the  meet ing  was to  commun ica te  to  

them tha t  the i r  cont rac t  was i r regu lar.   Cor rec t?   

MS KWINANA:    Yes.   

ADV HOFMEYR:    Was tha t  communica ted  to  them? 

MS KWINANA:    That  i s  what  I  do  no t  remember  because 

the  meet ing  was shor t  and in  fac t  I  do  no t  know i f  you do 

have the  m inutes  o f  tha t  meet ing  where  I  wou ld  say o f  

course  SAA i s  b ig  and we do take  minutes  when we do get  

to  the  meet ings.   So now i f  in  th is  bund le  you have the 20 

minutes  o f  the  meet ing ,  the  o f f i c ia l  m inutes  o f  the  meet ing  

p lease show me so  tha t  you can remind me what  was  

d iscussed in  tha t  meet ing .    

ADV HOFMEYR:    Ms Kwinana  as  I  unders tand your  

ev idence i t  was not  even a  meet ing  i t  was an encounter  so  
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why wou ld  there  be  minutes?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  then i f  i t  i s  then where  are  we go ing  

to  w i th  the  m inutes  tha t  you have jus t  showed  me o f  

whoever.    

ADV HOFMEYR:    Ms Kwinana I  jus t  want  to  know what  you 

remember.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Ms Kwinana do you remember  o r  do  you 

not  remember  whether  the  pu rpose o f  the  meet ing  was  

communica ted  to  them?  

MS KWINANA:    I  do  no t  remember  Cha i r.   10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Were  you the  Cha i r  o f  the  encounter  o r  

meet ing?  

MS KWINANA:    I  was supposed to  –  what  the  Board  asked  

me to  do  they asked me to  go  and suppor t  the  CFO.   So 

wh ich  means the re fore  tha t  the  Cha i rperson o f  tha t  meet ing  

was supposed to  be  Wol f f  Meyer  because my br ie f  to  the 

Board  was to  go  and suppor t  and there fore  i f  I  go  and 

suppor t  the  person who wou ld  Cha i r  the  meet ing  wou ld  be  

Wol f f  Meyer.    

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  I  do  no t  unders tand tha t  Ms Kwinana  20 

I  thought  tha t  i f  there  i s  a  Board  member  i t  wou ld  be  a  

Board  member  ra ther  than an execut ive  who wou ld  Cha i r  

meet ings.   My  own unders tand ing  wou ld  be  tha t  an 

execut ive  cannot  and wou ld  no t  Cha i r  a  meet ing  when 

there  is  a  Board  member  because o f  sen ior i t y.     
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MS KWINANA:    No,  Cha i r  i t  wou ld  depend  on  the  s ta tus  o f  

the  meet ing .   I f  i t  i s  an  opera t iona l  meet ing  tha t  wou ld  be  

cha i red  by  an  opera t iona l  pe rson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  why wou ld  a  Board  member  go  to  an  

opera t iona l  meet ing?   

MS KWINANA:    To  g ive  suppor t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    For  what  because Board  members  are  

no t  supposed to  be  invo l ved in  opera t iona l  mat te rs  i s  i t  

no t .    

MS KWINANA:    I  was requ i red  Cha i r  to  go  and g ive  10 

suppor t .   

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  why must  a  Board  member  go  to  a  

meet ing  wh ich  is  supposed to  dea l  w i th  opera t iona l  mat te rs  

go  there  are  there  no t  o ther  execut ives  to  g ive  suppor t  to  

tha t  execut i ve?  

MS KWINANA:    Cha i r  when th i s  mat te r  i s  d iscussed and 

any mat te r  tha t  is  d iscussed the re  maybe s t ra teg i c  i ssues 

wh ich  needed to  be  taken up to  the  Board .   I t  does not  

necessar i l y  mean tha t  when a  Board  member  i s  in  a  

meet ing  we do a t tend the  execu t ive  meet ings wh ich  are  20 

cha i red  by  the  execut ive  members .   We go there  e i t her  by  

inv i ta t ion  or  to  g i ve  suppor t  o r  to  g ive  gu idance o r  to  g ive  

d i rec t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Why d id  you get  yourse l f  invo lved in  

opera t iona l  mat te rs  as  Board  members?    
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MS KWINANA:    Cha i r  the  opera t iona l  peop le  are  gu ided 

by  the  Board .   They are  g iven the  suppor t  by  the  Board  and 

they are  d i rec ted  by  the  Board  and there fore  I  do  no t  see  

anyth ing  wrong w i th  tha t  and we t i l l  th is  day s t i l l  do  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    A re  you say ing  Ms Kwinana there  is  

no th ing  wrong in  Board  members  ge t t ing  invo l ved in  

meet ings where  management  and execut ives  d iscuss 

opera t iona l  mat te rs ,  i s  tha t  what  you are  te l l ing  me?   

MS KWINANA:    We do go Cha i r  by  inv i ta t ion ,  we rea l l y  go  

the i r  Cha i r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    You say i t  is  in  o rder  fo r  a  Board  

member  to  do  tha t?   

MS KWINANA:    I t  i s  in  o rder  Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:    S joe ,  ja  Ms Hofmeyr.   

ADV HOFMEYR:    Thank you Cha i r.   So Ms Kw inana I  

cannot  reca l l  wha t  was ac tua l l y  sa id  a t  the  meet ing  bu t  you  

have been c lear  about  i t s  purpose .    

MS KWINANA:    Yes.   

ADV HOFMEYR:    I t s  purpose was  to  communica te  tha t  the  

Swisspor t  agreement  was i r regu lar  and tha t  i t  needed to  go  20 

out  on  tender.   I s  tha t  cor rec t?   

MS KWINANA:    Yes.   

ADV HOFMEYR:    Why d id  i t  no t  go  ou t  on  tender?  

MS KWINANA:    Maybe i t  i s  because o f  the  p rocesses  

Cha i r.   
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ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes.   

MS KWINANA:    We needed to  fo l low the  p rocesses .   

ADV HOFMEYR:    Bu t  no  processes a t  a l l  were  fo l lowed,  

why were  they no t  fo l lowed? 

MS KWINANA:    You say no  processes were  fo l lowed.   

ADV HOFMEYR:    None.   

MS KWINANA:    And as  I  am s i t t ing  here  I  am say ing  there  

is  no  way tha t  SAA wi l l  no t  fo l low the  processes.   

ADV HOFMEYR:    Wel l  by  the  15 t h  o f  March remember  th is  

meet ing  was in  the  10 t h  o f  February  2016 by  the  15 t h  o f  10 

March SAA s igned the  ground hand l ing  agreement  w i th  

Swisspor t  fo r  f i ve  years  and there  was no tender  p rocess  

be tween the  10 t h  o f  February  and  the  15 t h  o f  March.   A re  

you aware  o f  tha t?    

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.   

ADV HOFMEYR:    Bu t  then why  were  you not  concerned 

tha t  no  tender  p rocess had been fo l lowed? 

MS KWINANA:    You know as a  Board  member  you  wou ld  

s i t  here  and say  in  fac t  i t ’s  l i ke  30% sat is f ied  tha t  I  was 

ta lk ing  about .   I  wou ld  come here  and say th is  must  20 

happen,  th is  mus t  happen and you  w i l l  f ind  ou t  tha t  i t  has  

no t  happened because i t  i s  no t  p rac t ica l  fo r  tha t  to  happen 

not  because –  l i ke  fo r  ins tance  me remember  tha t  the  

Board  members  s t i l l  a re  supposed to  be  in  the  meet ing 

th ree  or  fou r  t imes a  year.   Now when we come and say  



02 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 296 
 

Page 90 of 257 
 

management  needs to  do  A ,  B ,  C and D we do not  know 

how prac t ica l  tha t  i s  and in  fac t  i t  has  been c lear  in  the  

30% set  as ide .   Where  we wanted to  imp lement  the  30% 

set  as ide  and say management  imp lement  the  30% set  

as ide  and you f ind  tha t  i t  i s  no t  imp lementab le .   So we may 

say th is  cont rac t  i s  i r regu la r  because we have been 

read ing  i n  the  aud i t  repor ts  tha t  th is  cont rac t  i s  i r regu la r.   

For  you to  regu lar ise  th is  what  you shou ld  do  A ,  B ,  C,  D 

and E  and you w i l l  f ind  ou t  tha t  A ,  B ,  C,  D and E  is  no t  

imp lementab le  maybe A ,  C and E  is  imp lementab le  bu t  now 10 

fo r  you as  a  Board  member  you were  th ink  tha t  A to  D w i l l  

be  imp lementab le .   So tha t  cou ld  be  what  happened there .            

ADV HOFMEYR:    Ms Kwinana so  le t  me jus t  ge t  c lea r.   So 

your  ev idence tha t  a t  no  po in t  were  you mot iva t ing  fo r  a  

BEE par tner  to  be  brought  in  w i th  Swisspor t  to  ob ta in  30% 

of  the  Swisspor t  g round hand l ing  agreement?   

MS KWINANA:    No,  Cha i r  what  we were  say ing  about  the  

30% set  as ide  was tha t  the  compan ies  need to  comply  w i th  

BEE so wh ich  means there fore  i f  Swisspor t  and in  fac t  tha t  

i s  the  reason why  Swisspor t  d id  no t  have the  BEE because  20 

they were  comply ing  in  te rms o f  the  scor ing .     

ADV HOFMEYR:    Sor ry  I  do  no t  unders tand tha t  as  an  

answer  to  my quest ion .   D id  you a t  any po in t  requ i re  

Swisspor t  to  par tner  w i th  a  BEE par tner  on  the i r  g round 

hand l ing  agreement  to  the  va lue  o f  30%? 



02 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 296 
 

Page 91 of 257 
 

MS KWINANA:    No,  Cha i r.   

ADV HOFMEYR:    No.   

MS KWINANA:    We sa id  to  them they must  comply ;  we d id  

no t  say  par tner  w i th  a  BEE.   We sa id  comply  w i th  BEE 

requ i rements .    

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  when they were  sent  tha t  d ra f t  

agreement  tha t  requ i red  then to  g ive  30% away tha t  was 

done w i thout  your  au thor i t y,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?    

MS KWINANA:    Def in i te ly.   

ADV HOFMEYR:    Def in i te ly  and when Mr  Darwa was  10 

requ i red  to  pu t  le t te rs  o f  award  togethe r  in  o rder  to  

fac i l i ta te  the  30% to  se t  as ide  and he res is ted  do ing  so  

tha t  was not  coming f rom you.   

MS KWINANA:    Def in i te ly  no t .   

ADV HOFMEYR:    And what  you  were  concerned  about  I  

unders tand your  ev idence to  be  is  tha t  p roper  p rocesses  

were  fo l lowed,  i s  tha t  r igh t?   

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.   

ADV HOFMEYR:    And you wanted to  make sure  tha t  the  

Swisspor t  ag reement  was proper,  you d id .    20 

MS KWINANA:    Yes.   

ADV HOFMEYR:    And when you met  w i th  them on  the  10 t h  

o f  February  and your  in ten t ion  was  to  communica te  to  them 

tha t  they needed to  go  on  a  tender  p rocess what  wou ld  you  

then do to  ensure  tha t  the  tender  p rocess was fo l lowed?  
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MS KWINANA:    Cha i r  I  gave the  d i rec t ion  to  say th is  i s  

what  shou ld  happen the  imp lementa t ion  is  no t  m ine.    

ADV HOFMEYR:    No because opera t iona l  mat te rs  a re  no t  

yours ,  a re  they?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes.   

ADV HOFMEYR:    Bu t  you were  a t  an  opera t iona l  meet ing ,  

encounter  apo log ies  your  in ten t ion  was to  communica te  

tha t  p rocess had  to  be  fo l lowed and you gave d i rec t ion  

a f te rwards tha t  p rocess must  be  fo l lowed.   I s  tha t  cor rec t?     

MS KWINANA:    To  g ive  suppor t .   10 

ADV HOFMEYR:    No you were  a t  the  meet ing  fo r  suppor t  

bu t  you gave d i rec t ion  a f te rwards  as  I  unders tand  i t  tha t  

p rocess must  be  fo l lowed.   

MS KWINANA:    No,  I  d id  no t  g ive  d i rec t ion  you know SAA 

s ta f f  i s  h igh ly  qua l i f ied  and SAA s ta f f  i f  you  ta lk ing  about  

the  execut ive  a t  SAA you are  ta lk ing  about  –  in  fac t  

inc lud ing  the  manager  a t  SAA i t  has  h igh ly  qua l i f ied  

peop le .  So bas i ca l l y  when we say –  in  fac t  in  each and  

every  meet ing ,  when we say regu lar ise  we do not  te l l  them 

how because we rea l l y  do  no t  have to  te l l  them how 20 

because o f  the  ca l ib re  o f  the  peop le  who are  there .   

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l  tha t  i s  a lso  what  I  expected,  I  do 

no t  know what  the i r  qua l i f i ca t ions were  bu t  anybody who is  

an  execut ive  a t  SAA I  thought  wou ld  no t  need you  know a  

Board  members  suppor t  to  dea l  w i t h  opera t iona l  mat te rs .   I  
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mean those peop le  ge t  pa id  a  lo t  o f  money they are  

supposed to  know what  to  do  tha t  i s  why I  d id  no t  

unders tand why you wou ld  have gone to  a  meet ing  to  dea l  

w i th  opera t iona l  mat te rs  to  g ive  suppor t  to  the  CEO o r  

whoever  o r  CFO or  whoever  t he  person was  o f  SAA 

because those peop le  shou ld  be  ab le  to  hand le  those 

th ings w i thout  a  Board  member  coming to  g ive  them any  

suppor t .          

MS KWINANA:    Cha i r  the  issue  o f  a  BEE is  a  s t ra teg ic  

i ssue and there fore  tha t  i s  why I  was requ i red  to  go  and  10 

g ive  suppor t  and repor t  to  the  Board .    

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  the  CEO is  supposed to  g ive  

s t ra teg ic  d i rec t ion  leadersh ip  to  the  who le  organ isa t ion  as  

we l l .   He knows those th ings,  he  knows he is  supposed to 

know what  the  pr io r i t ies  o f  the  organ isa t ions are ,  he  is  

supposed to  know what  the  ob jec t i ves  o f  the  organ isa t ions  

are ,  he  is  supposed to  know what  leg is la t ion  must  be  

compl ied  w i th  and i f  he  does not  know he can seek lega l  

adv ice .    

MS KWINANA:    Cha i r  tha t  means  your  a rgument  i s  say ing  20 

tha t  there  must  no t  be  a  Board  a t  a l l  because the  CEO is  

ab le  to  be  s t ra teg ic  there fore  there  i s  no  need fo r  the  

Board .  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  the  Board  m ight  g ive  the  overa l l  

s t ra tegy bu t  in  te rms o f  who sees to  the  imp lementa t ion  is  



02 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 296 
 

Page 94 of 257 
 

the  execut ive ,  i s  i t  no t  and the  CEO is  a t  the  top  o f  tha t .  

MS KWINANA:    Cha i r  I  was requ i red  to  go  and g ive  

suppor t  …[ in te rvene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   

MS KWINANA:    And in  fac t  I  d id  g ive  the  suppor t  and I  

repor ted  i t  to  the  Board .   

CHAIRPERSON:    What  fo rm o f  suppor t  d id  you g ive  in  

p rac t ica l  te rms in  tha t  meet ing?  

MS KWINANA:    A lso  Cha i rpe rson  to  make su re  tha t  I  am 

there  and whatever  be  i t  in fo rmat ion  tha t  they wou ld  ask  I  10 

wou ld  a l so  g ive  d i rec t ion  and I  wou ld  s ta te  how fa r  a re  we  

w i th  the  imp lementa t ion  o f  tha t  and what  i s  Nat iona l  

Treasury  say ing  and what  i s  DTI  say ing .   So bas ica l l y  tha t  

i s  the  suppor t  tha t  I  wou ld  g i ve .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ms Hofmeyr.    

ADV HOFMEYR:    I  jus t  wanted to  p ick  up  on one  or  two 

th ings you sa id  tha t  South  A f r i can A i rways has  h igh ly  

qua l i f ied  peop le ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    Oh yes,  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Does tha t  inc lude the i r  lawyers?  20 

MS KWINANA:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    In  the  lega l  depar tment?     

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    You wou ld  re l y  on  them regu lar ly,  i s  tha t  

cor rec t?  
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MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And another  th ing  I  jus t  wanted to  p ick  

up  on you sa id  your  v iew as tha t  the  Swisspor t  agreement  

was i r regu lar  and  tha t  needed to  go  ou t  on  tender,  cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  when in  March a  cont rac t  was  

conc luded w i th  Swisspor t  w i thou t  hav ing  gone out  on  

tender,  d id  you ra ise  concerns about  tha t?  

MS KWINANA:    Cha i r  the  cont rac t  was not  conc luded on 

the  26 t h  o f  March.  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:    I  d id  no t  say  the  26 t h  o f  March I  sa id  in  

March.  

MS KWINANA:    In  March,  the  cont rac t  was not  conc luded 

in  March.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    O f  2016?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  the  cont rac t  was not  conc luded and  

in  fac t  fo r  the  reason tha t  I  have been say ing  in  tha t  we as  

the  Board  we wou ld  say do  th is  and you w i l l  f ind  ou t  tha t  to  

cor rec t  tha t  does  not  necessar i l y  mean tha t  management  

do  what  the  Board  says bu t  as  long as  they cor rec t  i t  to  20 

make sure  tha t  we are  no t  exposed.   

ADV HOFMEYR:    Why do you say the  cont rac t  was not  

conc luded in  March 2016?  

MS KWINANA:    I t  was def in i te ly  i t  was not  conc luded.  

MS MBANJWA:    I  go t  a  concern .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Sor ry?  

MS MBANJWA:    Apo log ies  Cha i r  I  th ink  th is  i s  a  document  

wh ich  we consu l ted  on  i f  you  cou ld  jus t  have s igh t  o f  th is  

cont rac t  tha t  was  conc luded.  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  wa i t  Ms Mban jwa there  is  a  quest ion  

tha t  has been put  to  the  w i tness,  the  w i tness needs  to  dea l  

w i th  tha t  quest ion .   That  i s  -  why  do you say the  cont rac t  

was not  conc luded 2016?  

MS KWINANA:   I t  is because I  am not  aware Chair  of  the 

contract  that  was concluded in March 2016.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Are you aware of  a  cont ract  that  was 

concluded some other t ime? 

MS KWINANA:   I  am aware of  the Swiss Port  contract  that  

was concluded in 2012.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You are not  aware of  a cont ract  that  was 

concluded somet ime in 2016 at  any t ime? 

MS KWINANA:   No Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   And are you not  aware of  the contract  in  

terms of  which GPU’s f rom SAA Technical  was required to be 20 

purchased by Swiss Port? 

MS KWINANA:   I  am aware of  that .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   That  is the same contract .  

MS KWINANA:   Where is th is contract?  Is i t  here in th is  

bundle? 
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ADV HOFMEYR:   You are aware of  the cont ract  that  required 

Swiss Port  to buy GPU’s f rom SAAT is that  your evidence? 

MS KWINANA:   Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   But  you not  aware of  a cont ract  that  was 

concluded for them to provide ground handl ing services for 

f ive years.  

MS KWINANA:   Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   From the 1 Apri l  2016? 

MS KWINANA:   Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Okay they are the same cont ract .   I  wi l l  10 

take you to them.  I t  is in the same – no,  no sorry which 

bundle?  Oh I  now need to go to Exhibi t  DD19 – 19.    

MS KWINANA:   DD25? 

ADV HOFMEYR:   You were in DD25 we are now going to 

DD19 – 19 you wi l l  be assisted wi th that .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Somebody wi l l  g ive i t  to you.    

ADV HOFMEYR:   19 and i t  wi l l  be [a]  sorry,  DD19[a]  thank 

you.    

MS KWINANA:   Are we done with this one? 

ADV HOFMEYR:   We are done with DD25 for now.   20 

MS KWINANA:   DD25 you want us to put  i t  away? 

ADV HOFMEYR:   We wi l l  not  need i t  immediately no so you 

can just  have DD19[a]  in f ront  of  you.   And Chai r  we wi l l  be 

picking i t  up at  page 132.44,  132.44.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Yes I  have got  i t .  
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ADV HOFMEYR:   132.44.   I f  I  may just  take a moment.  

MS KWINANA:   Is th is the IATA Standard Ground Handl ing 

Agreement?  

CHAIRPERSON:   She wi l l  te l l  you just  now.  

MS KWINANA:   Okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Apologies was there a quest ion? 

CHAIRPERSON:   She was asking whether i t  is the document 

headed IATA Standard Ground Handl ing Agreement.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   That  is correct  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   Okay.  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Ms Kwinana this agreement just  before we 

go further on i t .   So i t  is your ev idence today before th is 

commission that  when you were a board member of  SAA in 

March of  2016 you were not  aware that  th is agreement had 

been concluded, is that  correct? 

MS KWINANA:   Yes Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   And – but  you were aware of  the 

requi rement that  Swiss Port  buy GPU’s f rom SAAT, is  that  

correct? 

MS KWINANA:   Yes Chai r.  20 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Where did that  ob l igat ion come from? 

MS KWINANA:   I t  came f rom … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Look this side Ms Kwinana.  

MS KWINANA:   I t  came… 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  know a lot  of  people l ike looking at  the 
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evidence leader.  

MS KWINANA:   I t  came from the fact  that  I  th ink there was 

going to be some extension of  what  Swiss Port  was current ly  

doing where basical ly I  th ink SAAT had bought wi th the 

previous contract  I  th ink i t  was 2015 SAAT was supposed to 

do the in-house of  in-source other th ings that  they were 

doing which requi red the ground power uni ts.    

And then now they required l icence f rom ACSA and 

then there seemed to be some chal lenges in respect  of  th is  

l icence and therefore they – Swiss Port  ended up wi th those 10 

month to month or s ix month renewal ended up doing the 

work that  was supposed to be done by the in-house people.   

So now to g ive – because now SAA Technical  would not  be in 

a posi t ion to do what they did and then now in fact  I  was 

think – l ike we would pushed in a corner as SAA because of  

the l icence and therefore in the ci rcumstances especial ly 

wi th Swiss Port  maybe and other companies we would not  be 

able to perform the funct ions i f  for instance they said tools  

down, we are put t ing – we are doing tools down now.   

Because they are the ones who would be having the l icence 20 

to carry on ground handl ing.    

So i t  is for th is  reason that  Swiss Port  had to  

cont inue wi th  the contract  that  they had but  now regular ise 

i t .   That  means you do whatever was supposed to have been 

done in 2012 then that  needed to be done then because 
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there was no way that  we would say,  go because that  is the 

job that  they have the l icence for and SAA Technica l  d id not  

have the l icence for.    

So basica l ly my understanding f rom where I  am 

si t t ing is that  we were regular is ing the contract  that  

happened in 2012.   That  is my understanding.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Ms Kwinana what was the quest ion I  asked 

you? 

MS KWINANA:   I  cannot remember Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   The quest ion was where did the obl igat ion 10 

for  Swiss Port  to  buy GPU’s come f rom i f  not  the agreement 

between Swiss Port  and SAA? 

MS KWINANA:   I  wi l l  not  say i t  came from the agreement.   I t  

came from the board meet ing.   I  do not  know i f  the 

agreement fo l lowed the board meet ing but  i t  came from a 

board meet ing where i t  was noted that  SAA Technical  cannot 

do this work and this work requi res the l icence which Swiss 

Port  had the l icence and therefore the agreement  to buy 

GPU’s came from the meet ing.    

I  do not  know about  the agreement between Swiss 20 

Port  and SAA in  respect  of  the contract  l ike the bidder 

contract .   But  now in  respect  of  the GPU’s I  know that  i t  

came f rom a meet ing whether  then f rom a meet ing i t  

t ranslated into an agreement I  do not  know.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Why did you not  know about the SAA Swiss 
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Port  ground handl ing agreement for f ive years i f  you as a 

board member approved i t?  

MS KWINANA:   The agreement in 2012 I  know about i t .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   No the agreement in March 2016 was 

approved by the board as i t  had to be because i t  is an 

agreement worth more than R1 bi l l ion.  

MS KWINANA:   The agreement Chai r  is not  handled by the 

board.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   No i t  had to be approved by the board.  

MS KWINANA:   Yes which … 10 

ADV HOFMEYR:   So how could you not  know about an 

agreement that  you approved? 

MS KWINANA:   Which has to be approved.   I t  has to be 

approved the board.   The agreement has to be approved by 

the board but  I  do not  remember approving the agreement in  

2016.   However I  remember approving the agreement in 

2012.   And in 2016 I  remember us discussing the sale of  

GPU’s – the GPU’s to be sold to  Swiss Port  because now 

Swiss Port  needs to cont inue wi th  the agreement that  they 

have.  20 

ADV HOFMEYR:   So how then did you give your assent  to 

the approval  of  a  contract  that  you did not  know had been 

entered into? 

MS KWINANA:   Which cont ract?  The GPU’s? 

ADV HOFMEYR:   The Swiss Port  ground handl ing contract  of  
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March 2016? 

MS KWINANA:   I  am saying I  approved the ground handl ing.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   No you approved the SAA Swiss Port  

ground handl ing contract .  

MS KWINANA:   No,  no.   I  d id not  approve the contract .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Wel l  let  us go to the agreement that  you do 

not  recal l  as at  page 132.44.   You wi l l  see on the last  page 

of  i t  which is at  132.52 that  i t  was concluded on the 15 

March 2016.  

MS KWINANA:   You know… 10 

CHAIRPERSON:   What is the last  – I  am sorry.  

MS KWINANA:   I  th ink what wi l l  work for me is the – is the 

board resolut ion that  resul ts f rom this  because I  am not  

responsible for  the agreement  but  I  am responsible for  the 

decision of  the board.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   So Chair  I  have just  begun by di rect ing Ms 

Kwinana to the agreement that  was concluded.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Do you see that  Ms Kwinana? 

MS KWINANA:   Yes.  20 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Do you see that  i t  was concluded in  March 

of  2016? 

MS KWINANA:   Ja i t  does not  matter  which year because as 

I  said I  am responsible – you need to show me the board 

resolut ion.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Hang on,  hang on,  hang on.  

MS KWINANA:   That  resul ts f rom th is.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ms Kwinana hang on.   Just  answer the 

quest ion she is asking you.   Do not  answer quest ions she 

has not  asked because then i t  wi l l  waste t ime.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Then I  would l ike to take you to a 

part icular c lause in th is agreement  because i t  is the clause 

that  required Swiss Port  to buy the SAAT GPU’s.   That  is the 

one that  you do remember,  is that  correct? 

MS KWINANA:   Sorry Chair  I  am not  going to  answer 10 

anything on this agreement.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hang on one second.  

MS KWINANA:   I  wi l l  answer something on the board 

resolut ion.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ms Kwinana hang on one second.  Your 

at torney’s drawing my at tent ion to her.  

ADV MBANJ WA:   Yes so r ry  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV MBANJ WA:   I  ac tua l l y  wanted to  re f resh tha t  board  

reso lu t ion  and we are  no t  be ing  obst ruc t i ve  here .   The 20 

w i tness has sa id  many t imes tha t  she was a  board  member  

so  what  she wou ld  approve wou ld  be  conta ined  in  the  

board  reso lu t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Why shou ld  tha t  no t  wa i t  un t i l  you  re-

examine Ms Mban jwa?  



02 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 296 
 

Page 104 of 257 
 

ADV MBANJ WA:   No the  w i tness Cha i r  i s  want ing  the  

board  reso lu t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes bu t  the  ev idence leader   

[SPEAKING OVER ONE ANOTHER]  

CHAIRPERSON:   The ev idence leader  i s  d i rec t ing  what  she  

is  do ing  and you  are  here  to  look  a f te r  the  in te res t  o f  the  

w i tness.    You w i l l  p ick  up  wha t  the  w i tness wants  and 

when you re-examine you w i l l  go  there .  

MS KWINANA:   No Cha i r  w i th  a l l  due respects .   The 

w i tness is  say ing  p lease g ive  me the  board  reso lu t ion  10 

where  I  [Cha i r  speak ing  over  Ms Mban jwa]  

CHAIRPERSON:   Le t  the  ev idence  leader  hand le  tha t .  

ADV MBANJ WA:   How is  she go ing  to  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   You are  over ru led  Ms Mban jwa.   Ms  

Hofmeyr  cont inue .   I  rea l l y  do  no t  want  any wast ing  o f  t ime 

th is  t ime Ms Mban jwa.   P lease le t  us  go  ahead.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Le t  us  –  thank you Cha i r.   So I  am go ing  

to  take  you to  the  c lause o f  th is  agreement  wh ich  is  the  

very  c lause… 

CHAIRPERSON:   You see Ms Mban jwa.   I  am sor ry  Ms  20 

Hofmeyr.   The more  you –  you in te r rup t  Ms Hofmeyr  wh i le  

she is  quest ion ing  Ms Kwinana the  more  the  impress ion  is  

you are  t ry ing  to  ass is t  Ms Kwinana when she might  no t  be  

need ing  your  ass is tance.   She is  ab le  to  dea l  w i th  the 

quest ions on  her  own.  
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ADV MBANJWA:   No Cha i r  I  d isagree.   What  i s  Ms  

Kwinana… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay tha t  i s  the  end o f  –  tha t  i s  the  end  

o f  –  o f  tha t  i ssue now.  

ADV MBANJ WA:   She is  no t  –  she is  no t  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   That  i s  the  end  o f  tha t  i ssue now.   Go 

ahead Ms Hofmeyr.   

ADV HOFMEYR:   Thank you.   So Ms Kwinana your  

ev idence is  tha t  you d id  reca l l  tha t  Swiss  Por t  had an  

ob l iga t ion  to  buy SAAT GUP’s ,  i s  tha t  co r rec t?  10 

MS KWINANA:   Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   And tha t  ob l iga t ion  ar i ses  f rom th is  very  

agreement  and tha t  i s  why I  want  to  take  you to  i t .   You w i l l  

f ind  i t  a t  page 132.49.  

MS KWINANA:   Cha i r  as  I  sa id  be fore  I  am not  go ing  to  

re fer  to  th is  agreement .   I  am go ing  to  re fer  to  the  board  

reso lu t ion  tha t  resu l ts  in  th is  agreement .  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am a t  132.49 Ms Hofmeyr.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   R igh t .   So Cha i r  a t  tha t  page  and Ms 

Kwinana you w i l l  see  under  C lause  8  i t  says :  20 

“Equ ipment  and Enterp r ise  Deve lopment . ”  

And then there  is  C lause 8 .1  wh ich  ta lks  about  con t inu ing  

improvement  o f  i t s  BEEE and promot ing  the  government ’s  

deve lopmenta l  agenda.   I t  say :  

“The hand l ing  company w i l l  sub-cont rac t  
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some o f  i t s  serv i ces  or  en ter  in to  

agreements  w i th  51% b lack  owned  

compan ies  tha t  have the  representa t ion  o f  

a l l  e i ther  o f  women,  youths ,  d isab led  

persons and m i l i ta ry  ve te rans  fo r  the  

purchase o f  equ ipment  requ i red  as  par t  o f  

i t s  investments  to  th is  agreement . ”  

That  i s  the  BEEE aspect  tha t  you were  concerned about  on  

your  ev idence.   Is  tha t  cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:   Cha i r  as  I  sa id  I  am def in i te ly  no t  go ing  to  10 

re fer  to  th is  ag reement .   I f  you  show me the  board  

reso lu t ion  tha t  ta lks  to  tha t  then I  w i l l  say,  yes  Cha i r  you 

are  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  do  you know about  th is  51% b lack  

owned compan ies  re fer red  to  he re  and agreements  tha t  

were  to  be  en te red in to  w i th  51% b lack  owned compan ies  

tha t  a re  ment ioned here  even i f  you do not  know the 

agreement?  

MS KWINANA:   Where  are  they ment ioned?  

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  i s  page –  i t  i s  para  –  i t  i s  page 132.49.  20 

ADV HOFMEYR:   The page tha t  we  were….  

CHAIRPERSON:   Even i f  you do not  –  in  o ther  words even  

i f  you do not  know the  agreement  bu t  you know the  issue 

tha t  i s  covered there?  

ADV HOFMEYR:   And i t  i s  C lause 8 .1  tha t  I  read out .  
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MS KWINANA:   I  hea rd  o f  cont inuous improvement .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes indeed.   I  s topped the re  because 

tha t  i s  the  po in t  tha t  you have been tes t i f y ing  about .   That  

you were  there  fo r  your  suppor t  a t  the  Swiss  Por t  meet ing  

because o f  you r  gu idance on BEEE mat te rs ,  i s  tha t  

cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:   Cha i r  –  Cha i r  we were  ta lk ing  about  the  

30% set  as ide  bas ica l l y  tha t  i s  what  we have been ta lk ing  

about .   Now we t r ied  the  30% set  as ide  and i t  was huge ly  

re jec ted  and we ended up not  imp lement ing  i t  and 10 

there fo re  even i f  i t  was ta lk ing  about  the  30% se t  as ide  

there  the  30% set  as ide  was never  imp lemented because o f  

the  res i s tance f rom compan ies  l i ke  [00 :16 :33 ] ,  l i ke  

Nat iona l  Treasury,  l i ke  DTI .   So bas i ca l l y  the  51% tha t  i s  

be ing  sa id  there  I  am not  aware  o f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Ms Kwinana do you remember  … 

MS KWINANA:   However  I  do  suppor t  the  51% as I  sa id  

be fore  30% is  smal l .  51% is  smal l  i t  wou ld  be  bet te r  i f  i t  

was 70% so tha t  i t  i s  represents  the  demograph ics  o f  South  

A f r i ca .  20 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Do you remember  what  my quest ion  was?  

MS KWINANA:   I  do  no t  remember.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   The quest ion  was I  unders tood your  

ev idence to  be  tha t  you were  a t  the  meet ing  w i th  Swiss  

Por t  in  February.  
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MS KWINANA:   Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   In  o rder  to  o f fe r  gu idance o f  BEEE 

mat te rs ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:   Suppor t?  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Suppor t .  

MS KWINANA:   On BEEE mat te rs .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Thank you.   Now Clause 8 .3  t he  one I  

was about  to  ge t  to  i s  the  c lause tha t  requ i res  Swiss  Por t  

to  the  SAAT GPU’s .   The one tha t  you do have reco l lec t ion  

o f .  10 

MS KWINANA:   Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   I t  reads:  

“The hand ing  company –  tha t  i s  Swiss  Por t  

agrees to  purchase and or  a r range  

purchase o f  a l l  recent ly  acqu i red  su rp lus  

SAAT GPU’s  a t  cur ren t  book va lue  fa i r  

marke t  va lue  o r  o ther  such va lua t ion  as  

mutua l l y  agreed. ”  

Do you remember  tha t?  

MS KWINANA:   Le t  me read i t .    20 

ADV HOFMEYR:   That  i s  the  c lause tha t  was re fe r red  to  a t  

the  SAAT board  meet ing .  

MS KWINANA:   

“The hand l ing  company agrees to  purchase  

and o r  a r range  purchase o f  a l l  recent ly  
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acqu i red”  

Bas ica l l y  th is  wou ld  be  the  imp lementa t ion  wh ich  bas ica l l y  

does not  have anyth ing  to  do  w i th  the  board .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Bu t  th is  i s  the  very  c lause tha t  was dea l t  

w i th  a t  the  SAAT board  meet ing  when you d i scussed the  

sa le  o f  the  GPU’s  to  Swiss  Por t .   So how cou ld  you not  

know about  th is  agreement  i f  th is  i s  the  c lause tha t  

requ i red  Swiss  Por t  to  buy the  GPU’s?  

MS KWINANA:   Cha i r  I  do  no t  know the  ag reement  

however  i s  you show me the  board  reso lu t ion  then I  w i l l  10 

know the  board  reso lu t ion .   I  am not  par t  o f  the  agreement .   

I  am par t  o f  the  board  reso lu t ions.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Le t  us  go  to  the  board  reso lu t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  –  oh  okay.   A l r igh t .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Page 132.43 i t  i s  a  few pages back.  

CHAIRPERSON:   13?  

ADV HOFMEYR:   132.43.    

CHAIRPERSON:   132.43.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   3  –  yes Cha i r.   And le t  me read i t  in to  the  

record  because i t  i s  o f  some impor tance to  Ms Kwinana.  20 

“Th is  i s  the  SAA Board  o f  D i rec tors  wr i t ten  

reso lu t ion  Number  2016/B05.   Request  fo r  

SAA board  to  approve the  Terms and  

Cond i t ions  o f  the  Swiss  Por t  SA Cont rac t  

and note  the  cont rac t  dura t ion  per iod  
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e f fec t i ve  f rom 1  Apr i l  2016 unt i l  31  March 

2021 fo r  g round hand l ing  serv ices  and 

cargo serv ices  to  be  rendered a t  South  

A f r i ca  –  Johannesburg ,  Cape Town,  Durban,  

Por t  E l i zabeth  and East  London. ”  

And then the  document  records :  

“The board  by  Round Rob in  Reso lu t ion  –  by  

Round Rob in  2016/B05 as  o f  14  March 2016 

reso lved to   

1 .  Approve the  cont rac t  to  be  en tered  in to  w i th  10 

Swiss  Por t  South  A f r i can fo r  the  du ra t ion  o f  

f i ve  years  commencing  on 1  Apr i l  2016 to  

31  March 2021  cover ing  ramp hand l ing ,  

PAU’s ,  whee l  cha i rs ,  GPU’s  and  a i r  s ide  

crew t ranspor t  to  be  rendered a t  

Johannesburg ,  Cape Town,  Durban,  Por t  

E l i zabeth  and East  London w i th  the  

fo l low ing cond i t ions .  

a .  Swiss  Por t  South  A f r i ca  to  acqu i re  a l l  

GPU equ ipment  tha t  has been purchased  20 

by  SAAT.  

b .  Swiss  Por t  South  A f r i ca  to  en ter  in to  a  

cont rac t  w i th  a  BEEE company tha t  has 

rep resenta t ion  o f  b lack  women,  youth ,  

m i l i ta ry  ve te rans  and d isab led  person  
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f rom which  Swiss  Por t  w i l l  purchase a l l  

the i r  equ ipment  requ i red  fo r  the  SAA 

cont rac t .  

2 .  Note  the  feedback o f  the  negot ia t ions  and  

approve execut ing  o f  the  cont rac t  w i th  

Swiss  Por t  South  A f r i ca . ”  

So Ms Kwinana you d id  approve the  cont rac t ,  cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:   Th is  i s  an  approva l  o f  the  Terms and  

Cond i t ions  and  note  the  cont rac t  dura t ion .   That  i s  

bas ica l l y  what  we  approved yes.  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes bu t  un t i l  th is  moment  you have no 

knowledge o f  th is  cont rac t ,  cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:   Maybe I  wou ld  say to  me tha t  i s  no t  a  

cont rac t  because  the  cont rac t  because the  cont rac t  was  

entered in to  in  2012.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   No the  cont rac t  was entered  in to  in  

March o f  2016.  

MS KWINANA:   Th is  cont rac t… 

ADV HOFMEYR:   And as  a  board  member  you were  

requ i red  to  approve i t s  Te rms and  Cond i t ions .   How cou ld  20 

you approve i t s  Terms and Cond i t ions  i f  you  had no  

knowledge o f  the  cont rac t?  

MS KWINANA:   That  i s  what  I  am say ing .   I  had the  

knowledge o f  the  cont rac t  tha t  was  entered in to  in  2012.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   R igh t  so  your  approved… 
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CHAIRPERSON:   No,  no  Ms Kwinana you know tha t  Ms 

Hofmeyr  i s  no t  ta lk ing  about  the  2012 cont rac t .   She has 

to ld  you tha t  qu i te  a  few t imes.   We a re  ta lk ing  about  the  

cont rac t  o f  March  2016.   Th i s  reso lu t ion  is  about  tha t .  

MS KWINANA:   Th is  reso lu t ion  Cha i r  maybe i t  i s  because I  

am not  a  lawyer.   Th is  reso lu t ion  bas i ca l l y  fo r  me i t  i s  

no t ing  the  cont rac t  dura t ion  and approv ing  the  Terms and  

Cond i t ions .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes now d id  you not  approve the  cont rac t  

the  Terms and Cond i t ions  o f  the  cont rac t  then?  10 

MS KWINANA:   Yes we approved i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   You d id  approve them.  

MS KWINANA:   Cond i t ions .  

CHAIRPERSON:   So  how cou ld  you approve a  cont rac t  tha t  

you d id  no t  know?  Because you have sa id  you do not  know 

tha t  cont rac t .   I  have jus t  s topped you f rom go ing  back to  

the  2012 cont rac t  now to  remind you tha t  Ms Hofmeyr  i s  

ta lk ing  about  the  March 2016 cont rac t .   Now she has  

shown you a  reso lu t ion ,  you ag ree tha t  you approved so  

how cou ld  you have approved a  cont rac t  w i thout  knowing  20 

i t?  

MS KWINANA:   Cons ider ing  tha t  i t  i s  s ta ted  l i ke  th is  Cha i r  

i f  you  say then I  approved here  tha t  i s  f ine  le t  us  cont inue  

Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   No but  the  ques t ion  remains ,  how cou ld  
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you  have approved a  cont rac t  you d id  no t  know? 

MS KWINANA:   Cha i r  I  d id  no t  th ink  tha t  th is  i s  a  cont rac t .   

I  thought  we were  approv ing  on ly  the  Terms and Cond i t ions  

no t  the  who le  con t rac t .   The who le  cont rac t  wou ld  have the  

who le  lo t  o f  th ings… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ms Kwinana  

MS KWINANA:   Inc lud ing  the  pr i ce  and every th ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ms Kwinana.  

MS KWINANA:   And then the  Terms o f  Cond i t ions… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ms Kwinana.  10 

MS KWINANA:   Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You are  a  char te red accountant .  You are  

a  char te red accountant .   You have  sa id  you have approved 

th is  cont rac t .   In i t ia l l y  you sa id  you d id  no t  know about  th is  

cont rac t .   You were  shown a  reso lu t ion ,  you accept  tha t  

you –  you approved the  cont rac t  now what  a re  you say ing?  

MS KWINANA:   I  am say ing  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You say ing  you do not  know the  cont rac t .   

You know the  Terms and Cond i t ions .  

MS KWINANA:   I  am say ing  Cha i r  my knowledge  o f  the 20 

cont rac t  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Sor ry.  

MS KWINANA:   I  am say ing  Cha i r  my knowledge  o f  the 

cont rac t  when Ms Hofmeyr  i s  say ing  I  am approv ing  the  

cont rac t  the  cont rac t  w i l l  s ta r t  f rom page 1  up  to  the  las t  
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page.   However  the  Terms and Cond i t ions  wou ld  be  par t  o f  

the  cont rac t  no t  the  who le  cont rac t  and there fore  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   P rec i se l y  because the  Terms and  

Cond i t ions  o f  a  cont rac t  a re  par t  o f  the  cont rac t .   I t  i s  

p rec ise ly  because o f  tha t  tha t  you  know the  cont rac t  i f  you  

say you approved the  Terms and Cond i t ions .   What  i s  

perp lex ing  is  tha t  you say you do not  know the  cont rac t  bu t  

you know the  Terms?  

MS KWINANA:   No Cha i r.   I  am say ing  my unders tand ing  is  

tha t  as  I  was say ing  the  Terms and Cond i t ions  wou ld  be  10 

inc luded as  pa r t  o f  a  b igger  document .   That  i s  what  I  

unders tand.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MS KWINANA:   That  i s  number  1 .   Number  2  these Terms 

and Cond i t ions  o f  th is  cont rac t  my unders tand ing  was tha t  

they were  the  Terms and Cond i t ions  o f  the  cont rac t  tha t  

was entered many years  ago.    

So now when you are  say ing  there fore  the  cont rac t  

was entered in to  in  March 2016 tha t  means there fo re  here  

you are  say ing  we were  approv ing  the  Terms and  20 

Cond i t ions  o f  the  cont rac t  tha t  was entered in to  in  March  

2016.    

But  now my quest ion  wou ld  be  why wou ld  we  

approve on ly  t he  Terms and  Cond i t ions  ins tead o f  

approv ing  the  who le  cont rac t?  
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CHAIRPERSON:   I  mean you cannot  –  Ms Kwinana you 

cannot  know the  Terms and Cond i t ions  o f  a  cont rac t  

w i thout  knowing the  cont rac t .    

MS KWINANA:   O f  cou rse  you can.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Because the  Terms and Cond i t ions  are  

the  cont rac t .   A cont rac t  has go t  Terms and Cond i t ions  and  

i f  you know the  Terms and Cond i t ions  you know the  

cont rac t .   I s  i t  no t?  

MS KWINANA:   Cha i r  I  th ink  we shou ld  cont inue.  

ADV MBANJ WA:   Cha i r  i f  I  m igh t  in te r rup t  you?  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ms Kwinana do  you accept  wha t  I  am 

say ing  tha t  a  con t rac t  cons i s ts  o f  Terms and Cond i t ions .  

MS KWINANA:   And o ther  in fo rmat ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:   And i f  you know the  Terms and  

Cond i t ions  i t  means you know the  cont rac t .   Do you  accept  

tha t?  

MS KWINANA:   And o ther  in fo rmat ion  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Sor ry.  

MS KWINANA:   And o ther  in fo rmat ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes bu t  we a re  no t  ta lk ing  about  o ther  20 

in fo rmat ion .  

MS KWINANA:   And not  on ly  the… 

CHAIRPERSON:   We are  ta lk ing  about  the  Terms and  

Cond i t ions .   I  am not  ta lk ing  abou t  what  i s  the  address o f  

the  par t ies  or  the  addresses o f  the  par t ies  to  the  cont rac t .   
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We are  ta lk ing  about  the  Terms and Cond i t ions .   Do you 

accept  tha t  i f  you  know the  Terms and Cond i t ions  you 

there fo re  know the  cont rac t?  

MS KWINANA:   Yes Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a l r igh t .   Ms Mban jwa what  d id  you 

want  to  say?  

ADV MBANJWA:   What  I  wanted to  say Cha i r  i s  I  am –  I  do 

no t  know i f  th is  is  no t  one o f  those issues we shou ld  wr i te  

down fo r  re -exam inat ion .   Because  I  a lso  go t  a  [00 :27 :12] .   

Because in  the  beg inn ing  and we have consu l ted  w i th  –  in  10 

the  beg inn ing  what  the  w i tness was say ing  la te r  on  was the  

fac t  tha t  Swiss  Por t  w i thout  a  tender  was awarded a  

cont rac t  so  I  th ink  we w i l l  need t ime.   I  do  no t  want  to  

waste  your  t ime now to  br ing  in  tha t  c la r i f i ca t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  

ADV MBANJWA:   Because where  i t  sudden ly  jumped f rom 

i f  they  had tenders  fo r  th is  o f  g round hand l ing  se rv ices  to  

th is  spec i f i c  cont rac t  and got  [00 :27 :42]  w i th  the  d isposa l  

o f  GPU’s .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes no  tha t  i s  f ine .   Jus t  make a  no te  so  20 

when you re-examine i f  necessary  you can ra i se  tha t  for  

c la r i f i ca t ion .  

ADV MBANJ WA:   Yes p lease Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   We –  we shou ld  take  the  lunch 

ad journment  Ms Hofmeyr.  
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ADV HOFMEYR:   Indeed Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Un less  you wanted to… 

ADV HOFMEYR:   No,  no  i t  i s  appropr ia te  on  my 

quest ion ing  to  do  so  now.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a l r igh t .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay r igh t  we w i l l  take  the  lunch  

ad journment  and  we w i l l  resume a t  quar te r  past  two 

because i t  i s  about  four teen minutes  past  one now.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Thank you Cha i r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay we ad journ .  

REGISTRAR:   A l l  r i se .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES: 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay let  us cont inue.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Thank you,  Chai r.   Ms Kwinana,  do you 

know Mr Nick Linnel l?  

MS KWINANA :    [microphone on mute]  

ADV HOFMEYR :    I f  you wi l l  just  turn on your microphone.   

Sorry.   So i f  you wi l l  just  give the answer again just  for  the 20 

recording.  

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.    

ADV HOFMEYR :    And did you have . . . [ intervenes]   

MS MBANJWA :    Sorry,  co l league.   Chai r,  my apologies.   I  

th ink Chair  a l lowed us that  we can give one clar i f icat ion on 
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the confusing quest ion.   I f . . .   She can just  answer now where 

we said i f  we could just  be given clar i f icat ion i f  going – i f  

Ms Kwinana was going to talk,  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  but  I  th ink I  said there you can raise 

i t  in re-examinat ion.  

MS MBANJWA :    Oh,  not  now? 

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  not  now.  

MS MBANJWA :    That  is correct ,  Chai r.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  okay al r ight .  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Thank you,  Chai r.   What deal ings did you 10 

have with him whi le you were at  SAA? 

MS KWINANA :    He used to at tend our – some meet ings.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Which meet ings were those? 

MS KWINANA :    Mainly board meet ings or commit tee 

meet ings.   I  do not  remember exact ly.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Why would he at tend board and commit tee 

meet ings? 

MS KWINANA :    I  do not  know Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    You do not  know why he was there? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.  20 

ADV HOFMEYR :    Did you not  ask about an outside,  a th i rd  

party being present  at  your board and commit tee meet ings? 

MS KWINANA :    No,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Why did you not  ask?  I  mean,  a board 

meet ing is  supposed to be for  board members.   And i f  you 
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see there is an outside,  how can you keep quiet?  An outside 

is being – is hear ing what the board is discussing or  a 

commit tee of  the board may be discussing,  which might 

include sensi t ive matters that  should not  be mat ters for 

outsiders.  

MS KWINANA :    In some meet ings Chai r  we would have 

outsiders by inv i ta t ion.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Sorry? 

MS KWINANA :    In some meet ings Chai r  we would have 

outsiders by inv i ta t ion.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MS KWINANA :    Yes.   So I  would not  know who has invi ted 

him, in what capaci ty.  

CHAIRPERSON :    But  . . . [ intervenes]   

MS KWINANA :    And in fact ,  Chai r.   In the meet ings that  we 

would at tend,  I  do not  th ink there is any board member who 

quest ioned what his role is there.   So basical ly,  i t  was not  

only me who did not  quest ion i t .   No one quest ioned his 

existence at  the board.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  you see.   I t  might  be bad enough i f  20 

one board member ant ic ipates in discussions of  SAA matters 

that  are supposed to be discussed by the board,  some of  

which may be sensi t ive matters.   In the presence of  an 

outside wi thout  sat isfy ing hersel f  that  there is a good reason 

for an outsider to be present  but  once. . .    
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 I t  is a number of  members of  the board who behaves l ike 

that ,  then i t  may be worse because i f  a matter is supposed to 

be discussed by a board – unless there is a good reason for  

somebody who is not  a member of  the board – no one of  the 

board who is not  a member should be pr ivy to the 

discussions.    

MS KWINANA :    Chai r,  as I  said.   People who are not  

members of  the board would be inv i ted f rom t ime to t ime to 

at tend the board meet ings.   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  but  that  does not  answer the 10 

quest ion.   Nobody should at tend board meet ings who is not  a  

board member unless there is a good reason.   And every 

board member who sees an outside should seek to know why 

is th is outside here.   What is the reason?  So as to evaluate 

whether there is a good reason for th is outside to be in a 

board meet ing when he or she is not  a board member.   You 

understand? 

MS KWINANA :    I  do not  understand Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m? 

MS KWINANA :    I  do not  understand Chai r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    You do not  understand? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Is your view that  anybody who is not  – or 

was your v iew at  the t ime that  anybody could at tend a board 

meet ing of  the Board of  SAA even i f  there was no good 
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reason?  I f  they just  wanted to l is ten what you are talk ing 

about? 

MS KWINANA :    Chai r,  the board members would,  when 

necessary,  invi te members f rom outside who are not  board 

members to at tend the board members.  

CHAIRPERSON :    When necessary . . . [ intervenes]   

MS KWINANA :    That  is how i t  stands.   Yes,  when necessary.   

L ike for instance,  at  SAA Technical  we had . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  you do not  have to give examples.   

When you say when necessary . . . [ intervenes]   10 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . . I  am happy to accept  that .  

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.    

CHAIRPERSON :    But  does that  not  mean that  board 

members must  be sat isf ied that  i t  is necessary for th is 

person to be here? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Otherwise,  any member of  the board could 

object  i f  he or she does not  th ink i t  is necessary for that  

part icular person to at tend the board meet ing,  is i t  not? 20 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay Ms Hofmeyr.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Thank you.   I  understood you to say you 

did not  know why he was at tending.   Is that  correct? 

MS KWINANA :    No,  I  d id  not  know say I  d id not  know why.   I  
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was saying,  as and when necessary,  some outsiders would 

be inv i ted to the board meet ing.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    No,  I  was asking in part icular to 

Mr Linnel l .   Why was he at  those board meet ings and 

commit tee meet ings,  and your answer was you did not  know.   

Do you recal l  g iv ing that  evidence? 

MS KWINANA :    Which evidence? 

ADV HOFMEYR :    You test i f ied a moment ago when I  said to  

you:   Why was he at  the board and commit tee meet ings?  

And your answer was:   I  do not  know.   10 

MS KWINANA :    I  may not  know Chair  but  the person who 

would inv i te him would know why is he in the meet ing.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    So at  any point  in those meet ings that  he 

at tended, d id i t  ever get  revealed to  you why i t  was 

necessary for him to be there? 

MS KWINANA :    Somet imes Chai r  they would make the 

presentat ions.   Somet imes they would offer an opinion.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  Ms Kwinana.  The quest ion is  not  

what he did.    

MS KWINANA :    H’m.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    The quest ion is whether  i t  was never 

disclosed to you why he had been invi ted or why he was 

there.  

MS KWINANA :    No,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    No? 
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MS KWINANA :    No,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Did you,  other  than those board and 

commit tee meet ings that  he may have at tended f rom t ime to 

t ime, have other interact ions wi th him? 

MS KWINANA :    Sorry,  can you repeat your quest ion? 

ADV HOFMEYR :    Sure.   Other than the t ime that  he 

at tended those board and commit tee meet ings,  did you 

yoursel f  had other  interact ions wi th him? 

MS KWINANA :    No.  10 

ADV HOFMEYR :    No.   And those board meet ings – I  th ink 

you have indicated ear l ier happened about four  t imes a 

years.   Is that  r ight?  The scheduled ones.  

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.    

ADV HOFMEYR :    And can you g ive me a sense?  So in  an 

average year,  how many of  those meet ings might  he have 

at tended? 

MS KWINANA :    No,  I  would not  say on average how many 

t imes.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Was he a lways there or only somet imes? 20 

MS KWINANA :    Only somet imes.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    And did you ever seek advice f rom him? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  I  d id.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    So you did have interact ions outside of  

the board meet ings and commit tee meet ings? 
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MS KWINANA :    A lso in  the meet ings.   L ike for instance,  our 

understanding of  Nick Linnel l  is that  he is a legal  person.   So 

basical ly,  i f  there is some legal  matters l ike something that  

when he is l imi t ing(?),  the board would requi re l ike a quick 

legal  op inion that  does not  requi re maybe a research or 

something.   He is in  a meet ing and then we would say for 

instance:   What do you think about th is? 

ADV HOFMEYR :    And Ms Kwinana,  what about  al l  the highly 

qual i f ied lawyers wi thin SAA?  Why did you not  ask them 

those quest ions? 10 

MS KWINANA :    No,  those would not  be the st ructured 

previous quest ions.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Those would not  be what? 

MS KWINANA :    Those would not  pre-prepared quest ions.   

L ike for instance,  we know . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  the quest ion is.   Instead of  favouring 

Mr Linnel l  at  meet ings of  the board or some commit tees and 

get  legal  advice,  quickly legal  advice f rom him.  

MS KWINANA :    H’m? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Why did you not  have one of  those highly 20 

qual i f ied legal  people f rom the Legal  Department  of  SAA?  

That  is the quest ion? 

MS KWINANA :    The board meet ings of  SAA would not  be 

at tended by the head of  legal  because she was not  a board 

member.   However . . . [ intervenes]   
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CHAIRPERSON :    Mr Linnel l  was not  a board member ei ther.  

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.   I  am st i l l  saying.   She would not  

be a. . .   she would not  be invi ted as a board member,  the 

head of  legal .  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  she should not  be a inv i ted as a board 

member because she is not  a board member but  do you not  – 

did you not  say people who are not  board members were 

invi ted somet imes when i t  was necessary.? 

MS KWINANA :    I  am st i l l  saying Chai r.   The board members 

would at tend the meet ing and then somet imes Nick Linnel l  10 

would be there.   And then when there is a discussion,  

somet imes you would say:   Nick,  what is your opinion about 

th is?  Not  because that  legal  opinion was pre-determined.   

Because he is al ready there.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  but  you see Ms Kwinana.  He was 

there because he was a legal  person or a lawyer or  

somebody wi th a legal  background.  

MS KWINANA :    No,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    You did not  say that? 

MS KWINANA :    No,  I  d id not  say that .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    So what did you say about him?  Why 

. . . [ intervenes]   

MS KWINANA :    I  said Chai r.   He would be there wi thout  me 

knowing why he is  there.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m? 
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MS KWINANA :    But  I  knew that  he has a legal  background.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m? 

MS KWINANA :    So what i t  means,  therefore,  is that ,  i f  we 

are discussing here and there is some quick legal  reference 

guide that  is needed, consider ing that  we know him that  he 

has got  a legal  background, we would not  go and ask for 

Ms Figelepe,  for instance,  who is the Head of  Legal  because 

she is not  in that  meet ing.    

 However,  the things that  pre-planned and in fact  when 

Mr Linnel l  is not  there and we requi red the legal  advice.   So 10 

basical ly,  we would know that  the legal  advice is required 

f rom the head of  legal  but  now for  instance. . .   In fact ,  i t  is  

the same thing as i f  we are having a . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Can I  summarise i t  for you as I  understand 

what you want to  say?  Namely,  Mr Linnel l  would be in a 

board meet ing or a commit tee meet ing for whatever purpose 

he has cal led to at tend.  

MS KWINANA :    Yes.    

CHAIRPERSON :    And i f  in the meet ing a legal  quest ion 

arose that  board members that  wanted an answer on,  they 20 

would then ask him and that  is how you would make use of  

his legal  background? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Is that  what you say,  you are saying? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.    
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CHAIRPERSON :    Ms Hofmeyr.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    And so just  so that  I  can be clear.   He was 

not  there to f i l l  the role of  the lawyer? 

MS KWINANA :    No.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    You would just  ask h im a quick legal  

quest ion every now and then.  

MS KWINANA :    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Is that  r ight? 

MS KWINANA :    That  is correct .  

ADV HOFMEYR :    And outside of  that  – because I  asked you 10 

i f  you sought advice f rom him beyond those meet ings.   I  

understand your evidence to be you did not .  

MS KWINANA :    No,  Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Right .   Do you know whether  

Mr Nick Linnel l  was paid for his serv ices at tending those 

meet ings and giving that  quick legal  advice? 

MS KWINANA :    I  do not  know Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    You do not  know? 

MS KWINANA :    [No audible reply]   

ADV HOFMEYR :    You do not  remember having received 20 

invoices f rom him regular ly in 2015 and 2016? 

MS KWINANA :    No,  Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    You do not? 

MS KWINANA :    [No audible reply]   

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sorry Ms Hofmeyr.   From what you 
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have said,  i t  appears that  your understanding is that  i t  was 

not  Mr L innel l ’s  legal  background that  the board real ly 

needed him for.  

MS KWINANA :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    The legal  background just  came in  handy 

whenever there were quest ions and he was at  the meet ing.  

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.    

CHAIRPERSON :    What was your understanding of  what 

actual ly the board needed him for  in these meet ings?  Did 

you have an understanding of  that  or did  you not  have?  10 

What services,  what ski l ls did the board need him at  these 

meet ings for? 

MS KWINANA :    The board did not  need a sk i l l  f rom him 

Chair  because there was the head of  legal .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MS KWINANA :    But  as you have correct ly put  i t .   I f  he is  

there and we need quick legal  advice:   What do you think 

Nick?  Then that  –  that  type of  th ing.  

CHAIRPERSON :    You say the board did not  any part icular 

ski l ls f rom him? 20 

MS KWINANA :    No,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    A lr ight .   But  then the quest ions ar ises.  

Why was he brought in?  Are you able to share l ight  on that? 

MS KWINANA :    No,  Chai r.   I  am not  the one who can 

. . . [ intervenes]   
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CHAIRPERSON :    You are not  able to? 

MS KWINANA :    No.  

CHAIRPERSON :    A lr ight .   Ms Hofmeyr.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Did you gain an understanding of  who did 

invi te h im? 

MS KWINANA :    No,  Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    And you never asked? 

MS KWINANA :    No,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    You sa id he came to some meet ings and 

not  al l .   Are you able to say,  most  meet ings or you just  say 10 

some? 

MS KWINANA :    Some meet ings Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Some meet ings? 

MS KWINANA :    H’m.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Would you able to say,  when you say 

some, is i t  some l ike two,  three,  four or maybe f ive meet ings 

over a certain per iod or is that  someth ing you cannot 

remember? 

MS KWINANA :    No,  Chair  I  cannot  remember.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay but  certainly,  i t  was not  once? 20 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    And was i t  more than f ive? 

MS KWINANA :    I  real ly do not  know Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Can you set  out  a l imi t  f rom what you can 
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recal l ,  not  more than ten or something l ike that  to help us? 

MS KWINANA :    No,  Chai r  I  cannot answer that  quest ion.   I  

real ly do not  know because I  may say he was in a meet ing 

and maybe I  found him in the passage or something l ike that .   

So basical ly,  I  just  would not  know.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    H’m.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Thank you.   But  you did not  engaged him 

beyond his presence at  meet ings.   I  have that  evidence 

correct .   Is that  r ight? 10 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.    

ADV HOFMEYR :    Do you know i f  any other of  the board 

members engaged him beyond the conf ines of  meet ings? 

MS KWINANA :    I  do not  th ink so Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    And then I  was asking you.   Were you 

aware that  he was paid for h is services to SAA? 

MS KWINANA :    I  am not  aware Chair.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And do you have a recol lect ion of  what 

types of  presentat ions he made to the board at  some t imes 

because you did say he made some presentat ions.  20 

MS KWINANA :    No,  I  would not  remember.   Those would be 

l ike ad-hoc.   Ad-hoc presentat ions Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.    

MS KWINANA :    H’m.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay al r ight .  
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ADV HOFMEYR :    And I  have your  ev idence to be.   You did 

not  real ly  need him for  anything there.   So can I  understand 

your  at t i tude then to him being paid.   Would i t  surpr ise you 

then to learn that  he was paid by SAA? 

MS KWINANA :    Chai r,  of  course any person. . .   I  would have 

expect  a person to be paid for serv ices rendered.   They may 

have been rendering some services.   I  do not  know.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    No,  indeed.  I  am talking about the ones 

that  you do know about.   You said he at tended some board 

meet ings and some commit tee meet ings  Your ev idence a 10 

few moments ago was that :   We did not  need him for  

anything.   And what i f  I  to ld you he was being paid for that 

for which you did not  need h im?  Would that  concern you? 

MS KWINANA :    But  Chai r  i f  the other members of  the board 

needed him?   

ADV HOFMEYR :    No . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    I  th ink when Ms Hofmeyr ta lked about you 

not  needing him, based on your evidence,  her understanding 

was and that  would be my understanding,  was that  you were 

talk ing about the board that ,  in your view, the board did not  20 

need him.  That  you are not  ta lk ing about you yoursel f  

personal ly that  you did not  need him.  Because obviously,  he 

was not  there for you.   He was there for the board.  

MS KWINANA :    H’m.  

CHAIRPERSON :    So the understanding was,  that  your  
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evidence was,  in effect ,  that  the board did not  actual ly need 

any services f rom him.  That  is  why Ms Hofmeyr is asking 

whether i t  would concern you i f  somebody was being paid for 

being admit t ing when actual ly of  the board when the board 

actual ly did not  need him to be there? 

MS KWINANA :    As much I  d id not  feel  the need for  him to 

be there,  I  d id not  s i t  in al l  commit tees Chai r.   I  only sat  in  

the Audi t  Commit tee.   So the other  commit tees may see the 

need for him to be there.  

CHAIRPERSON :    But  in the Risk and Audi t  Commit tee of  10 

which you were the chai rperson,  is i t  not? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    He could only come there i f  you approve 

that  he should come there,  is i t  not? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.    

CHAIRPERSON :    As he the person.  

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.   And he never at tended the 

Audi t  Commit tee meet ing.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Did he ever at tend meet ings of  the 

Audi t  and Risk Commit tee wi th your  approval? 20 

MS KWINANA :    No,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    No.   Okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Sorry.   And I  do just  need to return to my 

quest ion because the quest ion is focussed in  on the board 

meet ings that  you were present  at  and he was present  at .   
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Let  us put  – let  us forget  the other meet ings.    

 What I  am interested in Ms Kwinana is your response to 

the fol lowing.   Your ev idence is  that  he at tended some of  

those meet ings and the board did not  need him for anything 

at  those meet ings.    

 And then I  say to you:   Wel l ,  i f  that  is so,  would i t  

concern you to learn that  he was being paid to be at  board 

meet ings where he was not  needed? 

MS KWINANA :    I  do not  know.  I  cannot say wi th  certainty 

that  i f  he was not  needed.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Sorry . . . [ intervenes]   

MS KWINANA :    Maybe the other . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Look this side Ms Kwinana.  Jus t  repeat 

your answer.  

MS KWINANA :    Chai r,  I  was st i l l  saying.   I  cannot  say the 

other board members did not  need him.  Maybe the other 

board members did need him because also,  SAA does al low 

for some ext ra special ised resource i f  i t  is going to add value 

to the company.   I t  does al low for that .    

 L ike for instance,  the outsourcing.   But  what I  am 20 

saying.   As for me, I  d id not  th ink the need for him to. . .   I  d id  

not  see h im adding value in my act iv i t ies as the board 

member.    

 However,  I  am not  saying other board members did not  

see the value because the other board member may come 
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here and say Nick added a lot  of  value for the board.   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   No,  no.   We wanted you to answer 

based on your observat ions and your experiences and what 

was discussed.   Was there any meet ing of  the board where 

there was a discussion about what value he was adding or 

why – whether anybody needed him? 

MS KWINANA :    No,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    No? 

MS KWINANA :    No.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ms Hofmeyr.  10 

ADV HOFMEYR :    And i f  he was being used for his serv ices 

because there was a sense f rom some members of  the board 

that  his services would be useful  to the company.   Then I  

assume they would need to go through the proper  processes 

to procure those serv ices,  would they not? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.    

ADV HOFMEYR :    Yes.   So a procurement process should be 

fol lowed in accordance with the const i tut ion and the PFMA 

before somebody whose services are requi red for SAA.  Is  

that  correct? 20 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.    

ADV HOFMEYR :    And are you aware of  any procurement 

process ever having been fol lowed before Mr Nick Linnel l  

appeared at  board meet ings? 

MS KWINANA :    I  do not  know Chai r.   The document process 
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is done at  Operat ions.   The only t ime i t  comes to the board 

is when the delegat ion requires i t  to happen.  

CHAIRPERSON :    So you. . .   A short  answer is,  you are not  

aware? 

MS KWINANA :    I  am not .  

CHAIRPERSON :    But  you are saying,  as far as you are 

concerned,  that  does not  necessari ly  mean that  no 

processes were fo l lowed . . . [ intervenes]   

MS KWINANA :    That  procurement processes were not  

fo l lowed.   10 

CHAIRPERSON :    You are not  aware? 

MS KWINANA :    They may be fol lowed.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.    

CHAIRPERSON :    A lr ight .  

ADV HOFMEYR :    So the board general ly does not  involve 

i tsel f  in those procurement process.   Is that  correct? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.    

ADV HOFMEYR :    And so a board member going to a 

meet ing wi th suppl iers about  f inal is ing contracts would 20 

unusual .   Is that  correct? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    And i f  a board member went on her own 

and met wi th suppl iers to SAA without  any member of  

management,  that  would also be unusual ,  would i t  not? 
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MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.    

ADV HOFMEYR :    Ms Kwinana, when d id you resign f rom 

SAA? 

MS KWINANA :    The 23 August  2016.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    And . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Your  voice is  low Ms Kwinana.  Just  

repeat  that  answer and face this side.  

MS KWINANA :    23r d of  August  2016. 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    And why did you res ign? 10 

MS KWINANA :    I  th ink Minister Gordan. . .   I  th ink there was 

issue wi th funding where basica l ly,  Minister Gordan wanted 

the new board members.    

ADV HOFMEYR :    I  am not  sure I  understand.   Could you 

just  elaborate?  Minister Gordan had an issue wi th funding 

and wanted new board members.   Is  that  r ight? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.    

ADV HOFMEYR :    So did he communicate that  to you? 

MS KWINANA :    I  do not  remember,  Ma’am.  I  th ink what you 

need to do.   I  d id  wri te the resignat ion let ter.   And my reason 20 

for resigning,  I  stated in that  le t ter.   And nothing has 

changed.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Right .   So do you remember those reasons 

now or would you l ike to go to the le t ter? 

MS KWINANA :    I  would l ike to go to  the let ter.  
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ADV HOFMEYR :    Right .   You wi l l  f ind that  in your  bundle 

which is BD33 at  Tab 10.   So Chai r,  th is wi l l  be Exhib i t  

BD33.10.   I f  we may enter i t  into the record? 

MS KWINANA :    33.10? 

ADV HOFMEYR :    I t  is under the f lag. . .   Sorry,  Tab 10 and i t  

is at  page 84.   So i f  you just  go to page 84,  that  might  be 

easier.  

MS KWINANA :    H’m.  You want me to read i t?  

ADV HOFMEYR :    I  do not  want you to read i t  and. . .   You 

said. . .   Maybe take a moment so that  i t  can refresh your  10 

memory about why you resigned.   And then you can tel l  us in  

your own words why you resigned.  

MS KWINANA :    Oh,  yes Chai r,  I  remember.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Thank you.   So what were your reasons 

for resign ing? 

MS KWINANA :    The main reason,  basical ly,  was that  the 

Nat ional  Treasury was not  issuing the guarantee which 

resul ted in the audi ted f inancial  statements not  to be 

f inal ised.   And so basical ly my understanding was that  the 20 

minister want the board that  he himsel f  has elected.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    But  how did you know he would not  select  

you? 

MS KWINANA :    I f  he would select  me..   At  least  he would 

start  f rom scratch and. . .   He would start  f rom scratch af ter I  
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have resigned.   And then when he appoints new board 

members,  i f  he wants to selected me then he would do so.   

So I  th ink i t  was going to be easy for me to resign because i f  

he wanted me, he would st i l l  se lect  me.   

ADV HOFMEYR :    So let  me just  understand this because I  

have to say,  I  d id  read your let ter of  resignat ion a few t imes 

and there were parts of  i t  that  just  were not  c lear to me.  So 

I  would l ike to give you an opportuni ty to assist  me.  I  

understand you to be saying that  you had some 

understanding that  the government guarantee that  SAA 10 

needed was not  going to be forthcoming unless the board,  

the current  board res igned.   Is that  r ight? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.    

ADV HOFMEYR :    Right .   Now imagine. .   Oh, sorry.   Let  me 

ask th is.   How was that  communicated to you,  that  issue? 

MS KWINANA :    Chai r,  you know, no one does not  see that  

there are some d isagreements between the shareholder for 

instance and the chairperson or maybe and the board or  

chairperson of  the board repor t ing(? )  can see i f  they  are  

cor rec t .  20 

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  you unders tand ing  was he was not  

i ssu ing  the  guarantee unt i l  th is  board  res igned,  i s  tha t  

cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r,  tha t  was my th ink ing .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And imag ine  the  who le  board  has  
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res igned,  what  then wou ld  have happened? 

MS KWINANA:    Then the  shareho lde r  wou ld  appo in t  new 

board .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Do you know tha t  i t  i s  qu i te  an  impor tan t  

p r inc ip le  o f  corpora te  governance  tha t  there  be  cont inu i t y  

on  boards bu t  –  o r  any company but  par t i cu la r l y  s ta te  

owned ente rpr i ses .  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  i f  the  who le  board  had res igned in  

o rder  to  re lease th is  government  guarantee there  wou ld  no  10 

cont inu i t y  on  tha t  board ,  wou ld  the re?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    D id  tha t  concern  you a t  a l l ,  tha t  you  

might  be  pu t t ing  th is  le t te r  o f  res ignat ion  in  w i th  a l l  you r  

fe l low board  members?  

MS KWINANA:    Cha i r,  one wou ld  have to  we igh  the  

op t ions and look  a t  what  wou ld  be  best  o f  the  company.   

Would  i t  be  best  fo r  me to  res ign  so  tha t  the  m in is te r  can 

appo in t  the  new peop le  o r  wou ld  I  s i t  here  and then the  

guarantee is  no t  fo r thcoming and  then the  company goes  20 

in to  l iqu ida t ion .   So I  had to  we igh t  the  op t ions.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Ms Kwinana,  I  have jus t  been to ld ,  i f  you 

cou ld  jus t  t ry  and ra ise  your  vo ice  a  b i t  more  and  jus t  do  

remember,  i f  you  cou ld ,  to  d i rec t  your  answers  to  the  

Cha i r.   You ment ioned in  par t i cu la r  tha t  you were  a l l  aware  
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a t  the  t ime o f  some le t  us  ca l l  i t  con f l i c t  be tween Min is te r  

Gordan and the  then Cha i rperson o f  SAA,  i s  tha t  co r rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Do you know when Min i s te r  Gordan  

made the  next  appo in tment  fo r  the  new board?  

MS KWINANA:    No,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  wou ld  i t  surpr ise  you to  learn  he  d id  

i t  jus t  more  than a  week a f te r  you res igned? 

MS KWINANA:    No,  I  was not  aware .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And wou ld  i t  surp r ise  you to  learn  tha t  10 

he  kept  on  Ms Myen i?  

MS KWINANA:    I  know tha t .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  what  happened to  tha t  you were  

aware  o f  and tha t  underscored your  reason fo r  res ignat ion?  

MS KWINANA:    Maybe I  was the  undes i rab le  e lement .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Was tha t  communica ted  to  you because I  

unders tood you to  say tha t  what  was a t  i ssue a t  the  t ime 

was Min i s te r  Gordan and Cha i rperson,  Ms Myen i .   D id  you  

rece ive  ind ica t ions tha t  you were  undes i rab le  on  the  

board?  20 

MS KWINANA:    No,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  i t  was not  tha t .  

MS KWINANA:    H ’m.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    D id  you have any o the r  reason fo r  

res ign ing ,  Ms Kwinana?  
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MS KWINANA:    Every th ing  –  a l l  the  reasons are  in  th is  

le t te r,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And none over  and above what  i s  in  the  

le t te r?  

MS KWINANA:    No,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Now I  take  i t  tha t  the  m in is te r,  Mr  

Gordan,  never  sa id  –  never  to ld  you tha t  the  guarantee  

wou ld  no t  be  prov ided unt i l  the  board  had res igned,  d id  no t  

say  tha t  h imse l f  to  you,  o r  d id  he?  

MS KWINANA:    I  cannot  remember,  Cha i r,  bu t  i t  was a  10 

we l l - known fac t  tha t  bas ica l l y  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    You cannot  remember  whethe r  he  to ld  

you?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    He might  have?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   I f  he  d id ,  wou ld  th is  have been in  

a  board  meet ing  o f  SAA or  wou ld  i t  have been a  separa te  

meet ing  encounte r  w i th  h im between the  two o f  you? 

MS KWINANA:    No,  de f in i te l y  no t  be tween the  two  o f  us .   20 

Def in i te ly  no t  a t  SAA.   Maybe a  Depar tment  o f  F inance.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Maybe a t  the  Depar tment  o f  F inance?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r,  bu t  I  am not  sure  bu t  i t  was a  

we l l - known th ing  tha t  …[ in te rvenes ]  

CHAIRPERSON:    I s  i t  someth ing  tha t  was conveyed  to  you 
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as  a  board  member  or  to  the  board  members  by  somebody 

such as  the  Cha i rperson o f  the  board  say ing  th is  i s  the  

pos i t ion  o f  the  m in is te r  o r  can you not  remember?  

MS KWINANA:    I  do  no t  remember,  Cha i r,  how i t  was  

communica ted  bu t ,  as  I  sa id ,  everybody knew about  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    And you cannot  remember  whether  i t  

was communica ted  in  wr i t ing  by  way o f  a  le t te r  o r  emai l?  

MS KWINANA:    No,  de f in i t ion  i t  cannot  –  i t  de f in i te ly  was 

not  in  wr i t ing ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:    Thank you.   And,  Ms Kwinana,  a re  you  

aware  o f  the  ev idence o f  Mr  Moth ibe ,  the  prev ious PwC 

aud i to r  be fore  the  Commiss ion?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  you d id  look  a t  tha t  ev idence as  we l l ,  

i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:   Yes,  Cha i r.    

ADV HOFMEYR:    Now Mr  Moth ibe  is  somebody you wou ld  

have had qu i te  a  few in te rac t ions  be ing  the  cha i r  o f  aud i t  

and r i sk   wh i le  PwC and Nkonk i  were  aud i t ing  SAA,  i s  tha t  20 

cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    D id  you regard  h im as a  good aud i to r?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    D id  you t rus t  h is  judgment?  
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MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And d id  you in te rac t  qu i te  f requent ly  

w i th  h im in  tha t  ro le?  

MS KWINANA:    Not  f requent ly  because remember  tha t  the  

ex te rna l  aud i to rs  come once a  year,  so  I  wou ld  no t  say  

f requent ly.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Bu t  you wou ld  engage h im a t  aud i t  and  

r i sk  commi t tee  meet ings tha t  they a t tended,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And how many o f  those are  there  a  10 

year?  

MS KWINANA:    Four.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Thank you.   I  wou ld  jus t  l i ke  to  ge t  a  few 

background issues about  ob l iga t ions o f  board  members  ou t  

o f  the  way w i th  you.   I s  i t  you r  unders tand ing  tha t  board  

members  o f  SOEs are  requ i red  to  comply  w i th  ob l i ga t ions  

under  the  PFMA? 

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And are  you aware  o f  the  ob l iga t ions  

tha t  the  PFMA p laces on board  members?  20 

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And can I  ask  one quest ion ,  in  Ms  

Memela ’s  ev idence –  I  th ink  i t  was in  February  th is  year  –  

she sa id  tha t  i t  was aga ins t  p rocu rement  ru les  fo r  a  b idder  

wh i le  a  tender  i s  s t i l l  open to  meet  w i th  somebody who is  a  
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dec is ion-maker  f rom the  s ta te  owned ent i t y  concerned.   Do 

you agree w i th  he r  on  tha t?  

MS KWINANA:    Not  en t i re ly,  Cha i r.   The reason why I  am 

say ing  no t  en t i re ly  i s  tha t  you wou ld  meet  w i th  a  person  

not  knowing tha t  there  i s  a  tender  go ing  on  and a l so ,  even  

tha t  person not  knowing tha t  there  i s  a  tender  go ing  on  and 

i f  you are  no t  invo l ved in  any tender  you wou ld  rea l l y  no t  

know tha t  there  is  a  tender  now tha t  i s  go ing  on .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Bu t  i f  you  d id  know tha t  a  tender  was 

go ing  on then wou ld  i t  be  aga ins t  p rocu rement  ru les?  10 

MS KWINANA:    I  wou ld  a l so  depend what  i s  you r  

invo l vement  in  tha t  tender.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    No,  she be l ieved tha t  i f  you  jus t  met  w i th  

somebody.   So you have got  a  tender  tha t  i s  open  and you  

have got  a  dec i s ion-maker  in  the  s ta te  owned ent i t y  who 

has gone out  on  tender  and tha t  pe rson mee ts  w i th  

somebody who is  a  b idder,  she sa id  tha t  wou ld  be  aga ins t  

p rocu rement  ru les .   Do you accept  tha t?  

MS KWINANA:    No,  I  do  no t  accept  i t .   I t  wou ld  a lso  

depend,  as  I  sa id ,  i t  wou ld  depend on the  invo lvement  o f  20 

tha t  person in  tha t  tender.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Why?  

MS KWINANA:    L ike ,  fo r  i ns tance,  you cannot  expect  a  

person -  l i ke  you meet  a  person  in  town and you do not  

know what  i s  happen ing  in  the  tender ing  process  bu t  i t  
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happens tha t  the  person is  work ing  in  th is  p lace  where  

there  is  a  tender  go ing  on .   No,  i t  cannot  be  taken l i ke  

tha t .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  i f  you  do know tha t  …[ in tervenes]  

MS MBANJ WA:    I  do  no t  know what  Ms Hofmeyr  i s  say ing  

was sa id  by  Mrs  Memela  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry,  Ms Mban jwa,  I  have not  sa id  

you may speak.   What  do  you want  to  ta lk  about?  

MS MBANJWA:    Oh,  I  must  apo log ise ,  Cha i r,  sor ry.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  10 

MS MBANJWA:    What  I  wanted,  Cha i r,  i s  i f  Ms Hofmeyr  

can re fer  us  to  tha t  ev idence tha t  Ms Memela  [ ind i s t inc t  –  

d ropp ing  vo ice ]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

MS MBANJWA:    Thank you,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Cha i r,  I  am jus t  go ing  to  have to  f ind  i t ,  

i t  i s  in  her  a f f idav i t ,  I  d id  no t  take  a  re ference,  I  d id  no t  

ac tua l l y  th ink  i t  wou ld  content ious bu t  i f  you  cou ld  g ive  me 

a  moment ,  I  wou ld  apprec ia te  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  i s  f ine .   I t  looks  l i ke  you  do not  20 

have any jun io r  he lp ing  you today,  Ms Hofmeyr.   

ADV HOFMEYR:    No,  I  do  have her  he lp ing  me but  she is  

no t  p resent  in  the  room.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    She is  ava i lab le  to  me on Whatsapp 
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communica t ion ,  so  she can cer ta in ly  be  look ing  fo r  i t  too .   

Cha i r,  my cha l lenge a t  the  moment  i s  –  we exp lored i t  –  I  

am look ing  fo r  i t  in  the  a f f idav i t ,  we exp lored i t  fur ther  in  

ev idence.   I  do  have a  re ference on my compute r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  i f  I  cou ld  come back to  i t ,  tha t  wou ld  

be  pre ferab le .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  la te r  on .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    I  do  no t  want  to  de lay  th ings too  long in  

f ind ing  i t .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  I  unders tood  you,  Ms Kwinana,  to  say 

tha t  i t  rea l l y  depends on the  c i r cumstances.   I s  tha t  r igh t?   

I f  you  happen to  encounter  somebody out  one even ing  and 

you do not  make the  assoc ia t ion  tha t  they are  a  b idder  and 

you are  dec i s ion -maker,  then you  cou ld  communica te .   I s  

tha t  r igh t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Bu t  i f  you  knew tha t  you were  the  

dec is ion-maker  and you knew tha t  they were  a  tendere r  20 

and they knew tha t  they were  a  tendere r,  then you shou ld  

no t  have commun ica t ion ,  shou ld  you.  

MS KWINANA:    S t i l l ,  Cha i r,  tha t  wou ld  depend.  

CHAIRPERSON:    You are  away f rom the  mic .   Your  

p rev ious answer  was yes,  i s  tha t  r igh t ,  to  the  quest ion  tha t  
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was asked ear l ie r  on .  

MS KWINANA:    Can you repeat  tha t  quest ion ,  Ms 

Hofmeyr?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes,  I  was say ing  i f  everyone knows tha t  

you are  a  dec is ion-maker  and tha t  they are  a  tenderer  and 

the  tender  i s  s t i l l  open you shou ld  no t  be  communica t ing  

and I  unders tand you to  say  no ,  you cou ld  s t i l l  

communica te ,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MS KWINANA:    You cou ld  s t i l l  communica te .   I t  wou ld  

depend what  i s  the  ro le  o f  the  pe rson a t  the  t ime and tha t  10 

is  one.   Second ly,  you know the  issue o f  conf l i c t  o f  

in te res t ,  the  issue o f  conf l i c t  o f  in te res t  i s  a  ser ious 

cha l lenge in  the  sense tha t  the  procurement  p rocess wou ld  

say you cannot  meet  w i th  the  person or  you  cannot  

communica te  w i th  the  person.    What  i f  you  are  meet ing  

and you are  communica t ing  on  someth ing  e lse?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Wel l ,  i f  the  procu rement  ru le  i s  you 

cannot  communica te ,  i t  does not  mat te r,  does i t?  

MS KWINANA:    So  tha t  i s  why I  am say ing  i t  depends on 

the  c i r cumstances.  20 

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes,  so  i f  the  procurement  ru le  says you 

cannot  communica te  and you were  a  dec is ion-maker  and 

they were  a  tendere r  –  and le t  me  add,  the  person you are  

dea l ing  w i th  i s  a  d i rec tor  o f  the  company who is  tender ing ,  

then do you accept  i t  wou ld  no t  be  in  compl iance w i th  



02 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 296 
 

Page 148 of 257 
 

p rocu rement  ru les  to  communica te  w i th  tha t  tendere r?  

MS KWINANA:    That  wou ld  need to  be  spec i f ied ,  Cha i r,  

tha t  wou ld  need to  be  spec i f ied  because,  as  I  sa id ,  i f  I  am 

not  invo lved in  th is  tender  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  remember,  she is  ta lk ing  now – Ms  

Hofmeyr  i s  ta l k ing  about  a  person  who is  a  dec i s ion-maker  

in  the  tender,  i s  no t  ta lk ing  about  somebody who is  no t  a  

dec is ion-maker.   So th is  who le  quest ion  about  whe ther  you 

may meet  …[ in tervenes]  

MS KWINANA:    You ta lk  w i th  a  person who is  a  dec i s ion -10 

maker  …[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Hang on,  hang  on,  hang on,  hang on,  

th is  who le  quest ion  about  whethe r  you may meet  o r  you  

may not  meet  somebody whose company has put  in  a  b id 

and the  tender  i s  s t i l l  open,  re la tes  the  contex t  o f  you 

be ing  a  dec is ion-maker  in  tha t  tender,  no t  some secre tary  

o r  somebody.  

MS KWINANA:    A dec is ion-mak ing  in  th is  tender  and then 

the  o ther  person is  a lso  a  b idder  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  20 

MS KWINANA:    And the  person knows tha t  there  is  a  b id .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes  and he  says bo th  o f  you  know.  

MS KWINANA:    And there  is  no  room to  d isc lose  because 

aga in ,  the  tender  p rocesses a l low fo r  a  d isc losu re .  

CHAIRPERSON:    What  Ms Hofmeyr  seeks to  tes t  w i th  you 



02 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 296 
 

Page 149 of 257 
 

i s  your  unders tand ing  o f  what  the  ru les  a t  SAA were  in  

regard  to  such communica t ion  be tween a  dec is ion-maker  in  

regard  to  a cer ta in  tender  tha t  i s  s t i l l  open and somebody  

who is  a  b idder  in  tha t  tender.   So you sa id ,  as  I  

unders tood what  you are  say ing ,  what  you sa id ,  you sa id  

tha t  a  communica t ion  be tween the  dec is ion-maker  and tha t  

tender  and somebody who has tendered or  whose company  

has tendered may be acceptab le  or  permi t ted  in  cer ta in  

c i rcumstances and she seeks to  es tab l i sh  wha t  those 

c i rcumstances a re  and she says le t  us  say you know tha t  10 

th is  person is  a  d i rec to r  o f  a  company tha t  has pu t  in  a  b id ,  

so  you know tha t  th is  person tha t  you are  communica t ing  

w i th  i s  a  d i rec tor  in  a company tha t  has pu t  in  a  b id  wh ich  

you w i l l  dec ide  and she asked the  quest ion  are  you  say ing  

tha t  you r  unders tand ing  was tha t  there  wou ld  be  noth ing  

wrong w i th  communica t ion  be tween a  dec is ion-maker  and  

such a  person wh i le  the  tender  was open a t  SAA? 

MS KWINANA:    I t  may happen,  Cha i r,  tha t  I  am a  

dec is ion-maker  th is  s ide  and the  b idder  on  tha t  o ther  s ide  

is  a  company and  th is  pe rson I  am ta lk ing  to  does not  even 20 

know h is  company has b idded fo r  th is .   So tha t  i t  is  why I  

am say ing  …[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Le t  us  say he  knows.    Ms Hofmeyr  sa id  

everybody concerned –  you know what  your  ro le  i s  in  the  

tender,  namely  dec i s ion -mak ing .   He knows a l so  or  she  
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knows –  tha t  person knows tha t  you are  a  dec is ion-maker  

in  th is  tender  where  h is  company  has put  in  a  b id .   You 

know tha t  he  is  a  d i rec tor  o r  she is  a  d i rec tor  o f  tha t  

company.   Everybody knows everyone ’s  ro le .  

MS KWINANA:    Cha i r,  i t  s t i l l  depends aga in .   I t  depends 

on a  who le  lo t  o f  th ings.   That  wou ld  a l so  inc lude,  as  I  

sa id ,  the  d isc losure  because the  tender  p rocesses,  even  

the  government  tender  p rocesses –  I  do  tenders  every  day.   

I  went  to  submi t  a  tender  today.   I t  does not  say  i f  you  

know a  person you must  no t  tender.   I t  says  i f  you  th ink  10 

tha t  you r  dec is ion  w i l l  be  impa i red  and you need to  

d isc lose  tha t ,  i t  does not  say  you must  no t  tender  and i t  

does not  say  you must  [ inaud ib le  –  speak ing  

s imul taneous ly ]  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  no ,  le t  us  ta lk  about  the  dec is ion-

maker.   Le t  us  ta lk  about  the  dec i s ion-maker,  no t  the  

b idder.   Can you,  on  your  unders tand ing ,  i f  you  were  a  

dec is ion-maker  i n  a  par t i cu la r  tender,  wh ich  has no t  

c losed,  cou ld  you –  wou ld  you have been permi t ted  to  

communica te  w i th  a  d i rec to r  o f  company tha t  had  put  in  a 20 

b id  and you were  to  make a  dec i s ion  on  the  b id  in  te rms o f  

p rocu rement  ru les  app l i cab le  a t  SAA? 

MS KWINANA:    No,  tha t  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Or  in  genera l .  

MS KWINANA:    No,  tha t  wou ld  no t  be  r igh t ,  Cha i r.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    I t  wou ld  no t  be  r igh t .  

MS KWINANA:    I f  I  am a  dec is ion -maker  th is  s ide  and the  

person is  a  dec is ion-maker  respons ib le  fo r  th is  tender,  

then tha t  wou ld  no t  be  r igh t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    I  d id  f ind  the re ference,  Cha i r,  and I  

have been ab le  ass i s ted  i n  tha t .   So the  f i rs t  p lace  you f ind  

i t  in ,  i t  i s  in  Ms Memela ’s  own a f f idav i t .   I  am go ing  to  read 

i t  in .   Cer ta in ly  Ms Mban jwa can  take  a  look a t  i t  i f  she  

wants  to  bu t  I  do  no t  suggest  anyone e lse  needs to .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    I t  i s  DD25A page 10,  paragraph  –  i t  i s  

very  d i f f i cu l t ,  Ms Memela ’s  paragraphs were  no t  numbered  

but  i t  i s  the  th i rd  parag raph on page 10.   She says there :  

“Th is  i s  a l so  the  t ime…” 

Because she is  –  page 10.   She says in  the  th i rd  paragraph 

there :  

“Th is  i s  a lso  the  t ime when A i r  France went  and met  

w i th  the  then Ac t ing  CEO,  Mr  N ico  Bezu idenhout  

and Mr  Bar ry  Parsons…”  20 

And th is  i s  the  pa r t  tha t  i s  impor tan t :  

“…aga ins t  the  ru le  o f  the  tender  tha t  does not  a l low  

the  b idders  to  meet  w i th  anyone who is  a  dec i s ion-

maker  f rom the  company wh i ls t  the  tender  i s  s t i l l  

runn ing . ”  
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So  tha t  i s  the  bas is  fo r  my quest ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    That  i s  why I  pu t  i t  –  i t  was e labora ted  

on in  ev idence bu t  tha t  i s  su f f i c ien t  fo r  p resent  purposes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    What  pos i t ion  d id  Ms Memela  ho ld  a t  

SAAT? 

MS KWINANA:    Head o f  p rocurement .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So the  head o f  p rocurement  a t  SAAT 

actua l l y  goes fu r ther  –  I  d id  no t  remember  th is  –  she goes 10 

fu r the r.   I  ta lked about  communica t ion ,  she says you 

cannot  meet  anyone who is  a  dec is ion-maker  f rom the  

company wh i le  the  tender  i s  s t i l l  open and do I  unders tand  

your  ev idence to  be  you d i sagree w i th  her?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    You can s t i l l  have  those 

communica t ions?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And i f  you are  a  dec is ion-mak ing  and 

they a re  a  b idder?  20 

MS KWINANA:    As  I  e labora ted ,  Cha i r,  i f  I  am a  dec i s ion-

maker  th is  s ide  and b idder,  assuming tha t  a  b idder  i s  a  

company.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes.  

MS KWINANA:    And I  meet  –  and the  Cha i rpe rson went  
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fu r ther  to  say i f  I  am a  dec is ion-maker  here  and I  am go ing  

to  dec ide  on  th is  tender  and the  pe rson on the  o ther  s ide  i s  

invo l ved in  th is  tender.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Then you accept  you  cannot  

communica te ,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  exact ly  and we both  know tha t  th is  i s  

the  tender,  then tha t  i s  no t  r igh t .   However,  i f  a  pe rson in  

tha t  company does not  know about  th i s  tender,  i s  no t  

invo l ved in  th is  tender,  then what  wou ld  make tha t  person  

not  to  communica te  w i th  the  person who i s  a  dec i s ion-10 

maker  here  because tha t  person is  no t  invo lved and I  was  

–  and as  I  was say ing ,  he  may no t  even know tha t  there  i s  

a  tender  tha t  i s  go ing  on .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    No but ,  Ms Kwinana,  w i th  fa i rness and 

aga in  as  the  Cha i r  red i rec ted  you prev ious ly,  you keep  

answer ing  the  quest ion  f rom the  s tandpo in t  o f  the  tendere r.   

We are  in te res ted  in  your  answer  because you a re  the  

dec is ion-maker  and you have now c la r i f ied  fo r  us ,  i f  you  

are  the  dec is ion-maker  and you are  dea l ing  w i th  somebody  

who is  respons ib le  w i th in  the  company and has put  in  a  20 

b id ,  you agree you cannot  commun ica te ,  co r rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Now you change i t  and you say bu t  what  

i f  i t  i s  somebody e lse  i n  the  company who you a re  dea l ing  

w i th  who does no t  know …[ in tervenes]  
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MS KWINANA:    Yes,  tha t  i s  why –  tha t  i s  why the  

Cha i rperson –  the  Cha i rperson was spec i f i c  to  say th is  

person th is  s ide  is  a  dec i s ion -maker  on  th is  tender  and 

then the  person on the  o ther  s ide  is  p repar ing  th is  tender  

and the re fo re  I  know tha t  th is  person I  am ta lk ing  to  i s  

p repar ing  th i s  tender,  then tha t  i s  no t  r igh t ,  p rov ided we 

ta lk  about  th is  tender  because …[ in tervenes]  

ADV HOFMEYR:    No,  Ms Kwinana ,  the  quest ion  is  whethe r  

you can communica te  a t  a l l .   I t  i s  no t  about  what  you  

communica te  about .   I t  i s  can you communica te  a t  a l l .   10 

What  i s  your  answer  to  tha t?  

MS KWINANA:    I  do  no t  see anyth ing  wrong because we  

are  no t  ta lk ing  about  th is  tender.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Wel l ,  how cou ld  i t  poss ib l y  be  fa i r  to  the 

o ther  tenderers  tha t  somebody they are  compet ing  w i th  has  

access to  a  dec i s ion -maker  to  communica te  w i th  t hem and 

they do  not?   How wou ld  tha t  be  fa i r?  

MS KWINANA:    What  wou ld  make them not  to  be  ab le  to  

communica te  w i th  me?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    What  wou ld  make them not  be  ab le  to  20 

communica te  w i th  you is  tha t  i f  you  ever  go t  approached  

you wou ld  say I  cannot  dea l  w i th  you because the re  is  an  

open tender  and i t  wou ld  be  in  de f iance o f  p rocurement  law  

tha t  I  engage w i th  you now wh i le  the  tender  i s  open.   That  

i s  what  wou ld  s top  them.  
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MS KWINANA:    Bu t  when you are  say ing  tha t  you are  

communica t ing  w i th  tha t  person,  you have  a l ready  

breached tha t  ru le  i f  i t  i s  anyth ing  to  go  by.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t ,  hang on a  second?  Ms  

Mban jwa?  

MS MBANJWA:    P lease Cha i r,  I  am not  say ing  Ms Hofmeyr  

d id  no t  read th i s  l ine  because I  was s t i l l  ba t t l ing  to  ge t  –  

bu t  f rom tha t  pa rag raph tha t  was  red   in  page 10 o f  Ms 

Memela ’s  a f f idav i t ,  i t  i s  sa id  a t  the  end:  

“But  as  France was not  d isqua l i f ied  because Mr  10 

Bezu idenhout  and Mr  Parsons were  no t  pa r t  o f  the  

eva lua t ion  no t  ad jud ica t ions. ”  

And the  reason why I  am read ing  th is  penu l t imate  and th is  

very  las t  l ine  i s  because my  unders tand ing  o f  my 

ins t ruc t ions a re ,  Ms Kwinana,  when she was a  d i rec tor  a t  

SAA and the  Cha i rperson o f  SAAT was never  par t  o f  the 

eva lua t ion  and ad jud ica t ion  team,  tha t  i s  one.    

 Then the  very  las t  one.   The second th ing ,  I  d id  no t  

know i f  i t  i s  me who missed i t  bu t  i f  there  i s  a  conf l i c t  o f  

in te res t  po l i cy  a t  SAAT and SAA,  i f  Ms Hofmeyr  can k ind l y  20 

re fer  me to  tha t .   Thank you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  no ,  okay.   Le t  us  cont inue .   I t  i s  

mat te rs  you can  dea l  w i th  in  re-examinat ion .   The o ther  

quest ions,  ja .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Indeed,  thank you,  Cha i r.   R igh t ,  I  th ink  I  
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have an unders tand ing  about  where  you regard  the  l im i ts  

o f  communica t ions in  p rocu rement  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  hang on before  you proceed,  Ms 

Hofmeyr,  I  jus t  want  to  unders tand what  you r  ev idence is ,  

Ms Kwinana.   I  th ink  you la tes t  answer  seems,  as  I  

unders tand i t ,  to  be  say ing  tha t  in  the  s i tua t ion  tha t  Ms  

Hofmeyr  i s  pu t t ing  to  you where  the  dec i s ion-maker  f rom 

SAA communica tes  w i th  somebody f rom a  b idd ing  company  

who is  invo l ved in  the  b id  or  tender,  I  unders tood you to  be  

say ing  now the  dec i s ion -maker  can communica te  w i th  tha t  10 

person,  i t  depends what  they communica te  about  whereas I  

unders tood you ear l ie r  on  to  say no ,  no ,  no ,  in  tha t  case i t  

wou ld  no t  be  r igh t  fo r  the  dec is ion-maker  to  communica te  

w i th  tha t  person  and I  thought  you sa id  tha t  w i thout  any 

qua l i f i ca t ion .   D id  I  m isunders tand you?   

MS KWINANA:    A dec is ion-maker,  Cha i r.   We ta l ked about  

a  dec i s ion-maker  in  th is  tender,  fo r  example  and then the  

dec is ion-maker  in  the  o ther  company who is  submi t t ing  th is  

tender  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  somebody invo lved in  the  tender  in  20 

the  company,  tha t  i s  [ inaud ib le  –  speak ing  s imu l taneous ly ]  

MS KWINANA:    Somebody invo lved in  the  tender  in  the  

company.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MS KWINANA:    And both  o f  them know tha t  there  i s  th is  
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tender  and then  they come toge ther  and ta lk  about  th is  

tender,  then tha t  i s  no t  a l lowed.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  now you have sa id  they come 

together.   A t  tha t  s tage we jus t  ta lked  about  

communica t ing .   How they communica te ,  we d id  no t  ta lk  

about  tha t .   So are  you say ing  what  you say wou ld  no t  be 

r igh t  i s  fo r  them to  come together  and communica te  about  

the  tender  bu t  i f  they  phone each o ther  w i thout  coming 

together  i t  wou ld  be  f ine  or  …[ in te rvenes]  

MS KWINANA:    Bu t  s t i l l ,  even i f  they  phone each o the r,  10 

Cha i r.   But  i f  they  phone each o ther  on  th i s  tender  then  

tha t  i s  a lso  no t  r igh t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  am I  r igh t  to  say your  ev idence  

ear l ie r  when you  say i t  wou ld  no t  be  r igh t ,  your  ev idence 

d id  no t  pu t  any qua l i f i ca t ion ,  i t  was s imp ly  tha t  i t  wou ld  no t  

be  r igh t  fo r  the  dec i s ion -maker  to  communica te  w i th  such a  

person wh i le  the  tender  was open.   Am I  r igh t  tha t  i s  what  

you sa id?  

MS KWINANA:    I f  tha t  i s  what  I  sa id ,  Cha i r.   Le t  us  take  

th is  one tha t  I  am say ing  now.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MS KWINANA:    I  am say ing  i f  I  am the  dec is ion-maker,  I  

am go ing  to  dec ide  on  th is  tender.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MS KWINANA:    And my dec is ion  is  go ing  to  be  impa i red  
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on  th is  tender  and the  person on the  o ther  s ide ,  I  am 

communica t ing  w i th  h im or  her  w i th  regards to  th is  tender  

and the  pe rson was invo lved in  th is  tender,  then tha t  i s  no t  

r igh t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    A re  you say ing  i t  i s  no t  r igh t  i f  you  

communica te  w i th  tha t  person about  the  tender  bu t  i t  i s  – 

there  i s  no th ing  wrong i f  you communica te  w i th  tha t  person  

about  o ther  mat te rs?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  Ms Hofmeyr.  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:    I  unders tood you,  jus t  to  c la r i f y  aga in ,  to  

say i t  mat te rs  whether  you are  go ing  to  be  in f luenced by  

what  you are  d i scuss ing .   I s  tha t  par t  o f  your  qua l i f ica t ion?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes because now you are  ta lk ing  about  

th is  tender  and now your  dec i s ion ,  by  you ta lk ing  about  

th is  tender,  w i l l  be  in f luenced.   A lso ,  the  in f luence w i l l  p lay  

a  b ig  ro le .   

ADV HOFMEYR:    R igh t ,  can I  say  –  Ms Mban jwa m ight  be  

in te res ted  to  hear  me say th is ,  bu t  th is  i s  the  par t  o f  Ms  

Memela ’s  ev idence tha t  I  comple te ly  agreed w i th  and I  20 

th ink  we were  on  common ground.   She was qu i te  c lea r,  as  

we have seen,  tha t  i t  i s  meet ing  anyone,  r igh t ,  a t  the  t ime 

when the  b id  i s  open.   I  unders tand you to  say no ,  i t  

depends on whether  what  you  d iscuss in f luences the  

dec is ion-maker,  cor rec t?  
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MS KWINANA:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And then I  am want ing  to  pu t  to  you how 

ext raord ina r i l y  d i f f i cu l t  tha t  wou ld  be  to  be  a  procurement  

ru le .   Le t  me exp la in  to  you why  I  say  tha t .   So imag ine  

now s ta te  owned ent i t ies  around the  count ry  can go out  on  

tender  and the  dec i s ion-makers  can communica te  w i th  

tendere rs ,  some when they want  to ,  o thers  when they don ’ t  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    And go and tender.  [ laugh ing ]  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Indeed,  and a l l  o f  tha t  i s  f ine ,  jus t  10 

prov ided in  the i r  own minds they a re  no t  be ing  in f luenced,  

i s  tha t  what  you say p roper  p rocu rement  i s?  

MS KWINANA:    What  i s  your  quest ion?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    My quest i on  is ,  i s  tha t  p roper  

p rocu rement ,  tha t  i t  wou ld  leave i t  to  the  dec is ion  or  the  

fee l ing  o f  the  dec i s ion  maker  whether  they had  been  

in f luenced or  no t  by  tha t  communica t ion?  

MS KWINANA:    Th is  c lause tha t  Ms Mban jwa was  ta lk ing  

about  s ta tes  exact ly  what  i s  happen ing  prac t ica l l y.   Ms 

Memela  was say ing  peop le  a t  A i r  France each communica te  20 

w i th  dec is ion  makers  and they were  no t  d isqua l i f ied .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Ms Kwinana tha t  was not  ac tua l l y  my  

quest ion  about  A i r  France I ’m jus t  t ry ing  to  ge t  a  g r ip  on  

your  unders tand ing  o f  p rocurement ,  because  as  I  

unders tand your  ev idence you don ’ t  agree w i th  Ms Memela  
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who was the  head o f  p rocurement  a t  SAAT.   You are  now 

des ign ing  a  new ru le ,  a  ru le ,  no t  the  one tha t  she  agrees 

w i th ,  a  new ru le  tha t  says,  dec is ion  makers  can 

communica te  w i th  tenderers  wh i le  the  tender  i s  open  

prov ided the  dec is ion  maker  doesn ’ t  fee l  in f luenced and 

I ’m put t ing  to  you tha t  wou ld  be  a  very  r i sky  p rocurement  

ru le  to  be  in  p lace ,  do  you accept  tha t?  

MS KWINANA:    As  Ms Mban jwa has po in ted  out ,  she made  

example ,  exact ly  in  respect  o f  what  you are  say ing .   The  

example  tha t  much as  the  po l i cy  i s  say ing  10 

tha t…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Look th is…[ in tervenes] .  

MS KWINANA:    Much as  the  po l i cy  i s  say ing  tha t  what  i s  

happen ing  on the  ground…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Leave out  what  i s  happen ing  on the  

ground,  le t ’s  ta lk  about  the  ru le  o r  your  unders tand ing  o f  

what  the  ru le  was .  

MS KWINANA:    My unders tand ing  o f  the  po l i cy,  o f  the 

procu rement  po l i cy  –  my unders tand ing  o f  the  procurement  

po l i cy  in  a  nu tshe l l ,  i s  tha t  you  cannot  commun ica te  –  20 

when you say you cannot  communica te  w i th  the  b idder,  i f  

you  look a t  b ig  compan ies ,  take ,  maybe S te inhof f  i f  i t ’s  the  

good example ,  anyway,  i f  you  look a t  b ig  compan ies  l i ke  

S te inhof f  there  wou ld  be  a  person  who is  do ing  the  tender  

and the re  w i l l  be  the  pe rson who is  pu t t ing  together  
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every th ing  up  to  the  submiss ion .   Now there  is  another  

person on the  o ther  s ide ,  le t ’s  say  SAA,  maybe SAA is  

smal l  compared to  S te inhof f  bu t  le t ’s  ta lk  about  -   i f  we say 

SAA,  i f  the  person a t  S te inhof f  has been do ing  the  tender  

and then tha t  pe rson meets  w i th  a  pe rson a t  SAA who is  

no t  invo lved in  any way…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  no  we sa id  dec i s ion  maker  Ms  

Kwinana we ’ re  no t  ta lk ing  about  somebody – we ’ re  no t  

ta lk ing  about  a  secre tary,  we ’ re  ta lk ing  about  a  dec is ion  

maker  a t  SAA and somebody in  the  o the r  company ca l led  10 

S te inhof f  o r  whatever  who is  invo l ved in  the  tender,  those 

are  the  peop le  we are  ta lk ing  about .  

MS KWINANA:    Bu t  Cha i r,  what  wou ld  –  o f  course  I  know,  

I ’m  not  supposed to  ask  quest ions bu t  maybe tha t  i s  a  

rhe to r ica l  quest ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l  the  quest ion  is ,  we want  your  

unders tand ing  o f  what  the  ru le  was  a t  SAA or  what  the  ru le  

i s ,  bu t  we ta lk  about  tha t  pa r t i cu la r  t ime when you  were  a  

Board  member.  We are  say ing ,  i f  you  were  a  dec i s ion  

maker  a t  SAA in  regard  to  a  cer ta in  tender  tha t  has no t  20 

c losed,  were  you  permi t ted  to  communica te  w i th  somebody 

who comes f rom a  company tha t  has pu t  in  a  b id  i n  regard  

to  tha t  tender  and tha t  somebody is  somebody who has  

been invo lved in  tha t  tender  on  the  s ide  o f  tha t  company.  

MS KWINANA:    And then I  wen t  fu r ther  to  say,  i f  they 
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meet ,  what  a re  they ta lk ing  about  i f  they  are  no t  

ta lk ing…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    So is  –  a re  you rea f f i rm ing tha t  your  

answer  i s ,  they  were  permi t ted  –  they wou ld  have been  

permi t ted  to  communica te ,  a  dec i s ion  maker  wou ld  have  

been permi t ted ,  en t i t led  to  communica te  w i th  tha t  person,  

as  long as  they d id  no t  ta lk  about  the  tender?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  so  i f  some Execut ive  f rom SAA,  

wh i le  you were  Cha i rperson o f  the  Aud i t  and R isk  10 

Commi t tee  approached you and sa id ,  you know the  

Manag ing  D i rec tor  o f  th is  company tha t  has pu t  in  a  b id  

here  has asked me i f  we can go and have lunch o r  d inner  

wh i le  the  tender  was open,  your  answer  wou ld  be ,  yes  you  

can go as  long as  you don ’ t  ta lk  about  the  tender?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And i f  somebody –  i f  anothe r  b idder  saw 

them s i t t ing  a t  a  res taurant  and then compla ined and say,  

you know,  the  MD o f  tha t  company wh ich  is  b idd ing  he re ,  I  

saw them – I  saw h im or  her  s i t t ing  w i th  the  dec i s ion  maker  20 

a t  a  res taurant  i t  wou ld  –  you wou ld  say,  what  were  they 

ta lk ing  about ,  i s  tha t  what  you wou ld  say?  

MS KWINANA:    Cha i r,  the  b idders  compla in  a l l  the  t ime,  

even the  peop le  who have not  b idded l i ke  Ms Sambu do  

compla in .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  bu t  what  I ’m  ask ing  is  whether  your  

concern  wou ld  be  whether  tha t  person has got  p roo f  tha t  

they were  ta lk ing  about  the  b id ,  the  tender?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And how wou ld  he  know? 

MS KWINANA:    How wou ld  he  know Cha i r  i f  we are  no t  

ta lk ing  about…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I f  he  was not  w i th  them,  he  jus t  saw 

them.  

MS KWINANA:    Yes Cha i r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Obv ious ly  i f  he  jo ined them,  they wou ld  

no t  ta lk  about  i t .  

MS KWINANA:    No,  bu t  Cha i r,   whether  they were  ta lk ing  

about  i t  o r  they were  no t  ta lk ing  about  i t ,  the  o ther  person 

wou ld  no t  know.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  wh ich  is  why the  ru le  may we l l  be ,  I  

haven ’ t  looked a t  the  ru le ,  bu t  I  wou ld  unders tand i f  the 

ru le  p roh ib i t s  communica t ion  abso lu te ly  because those who  

dra f ted  the  ru le ,  wou ld  have known how d i f f i cu l t   i t  wou ld  

be  fo r  somebody e lse  to  p rove tha t  they were  ta l k ing  about  20 

the  tender  and so  the  best  way,  i f  you  want  to  ensure  tha t  

there  are  no  compla in t s ,  you say,  no  communica t ion  un t i l  

a f te r  a  cer ta in  per iod  because i f  you say there  can be 

communica t ion  bu t  no t  on  the  tender,  i t ’s  go ing  to  be  

d i f f i cu l t  to  p rove tha t  and then in  te rms o f  t ransparency,  in  
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te rms o f  fa i rness there  a re  go ing  to  be  a  lo t  o f  compla in ts .  

MS KWINANA:    As  I  sa id ,  Cha i r,  in  theory  tha t  i s  how i t ’s  

supposed to  be .  The peop le  tha t  I  was go ing  to  ment ion  

here ,  l i s ten ing ,  tha t  you sa id ,  they need Ru le  3 .2  i s  s t i l l  a t  

SAA and he has  been communica t ing  w i th  the  supp l ie rs  

and he has been communica t ing  w i th  the  tenderers .  So,  

bas ica l l y,  much is  tha t  i s  sa id  in  the  procu rement  po l i cy,  

bu t  i t ’s  d i f f i cu l t .   One o f  the  reasons why i t  i s  d i f f i cu l t  and 

in  fac t ,  a lmost  impract icab le  to  app ly  i t  i s  because some o f  

the  b idders  may  be do ing  work  w i th  the  company a t  the  10 

t ime and there fore  they may be coming in  and go ing  out  o f  

the  o f f i ce  because they are  do ing  work  wh i ls t  there  i s  a lso  

another  b id  tha t  i s  go ing  on .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  you unders tand what  I  was put t ing  to  

you,  how d i f f i cu l t  i t  wou ld  be…[ in te rvenes] .  

MS KWINANA:    I t  wou ld  be  d i f f i cu l t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  Ms Hofmeyr?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Thank you,  and  then jus t  to  c lose  i t  o f f .   

So,  i f  one o f  the  b idders  w ined and d ined dec i s ion  makers  

and took them on p lanes and drove the  a round in  20 

l imous ines wh i le  a  tender  was open,  tha t  wou ld  a l l  be  okay,  

p rov ided they never  spoke about  the  tender,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MS KWINANA:    Cha i r,  i f  you  are  ta lk ing  about  AAR there  

was no tender  when we went  to  Ch icago.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    I ’m  ta lk ing  now…[ in tervenes] .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    No,  no ,  no  she ’s  pu t t ing  a  cer ta in  

quest ion  to  you ,  in  genera l  in  o rder  to  conf i rm her  

unders tand ing  o f  what  you ’ re  say ing  in  te rms o f  you r  

unders tand ing  o f  the  ru le .  So,  jus t  answer  tha t ,  i f  and when 

she wants  to  ta lk  about  whatever  you have in  m ind  you w i l l  

dea l  w i th  tha t  a t  tha t  t ime,  she ’s  jus t  ta lk ing  in  genera l .  

MS KWINANA:    As  I  sa id  to  Cha i r,  in  te rms o f  p rac t ica l i t y  

o f  i t ,  i f  fo r  ins tance,  we assume tha t  we were  taken to  A i r  

France and A i r  F rance was do ing  the  work  there ,  then – 

and A i r  France was do ing  the  tender  and A i r  F rance  is  no t  10 

tak ing  us  because o f  th is  tender  bu t  i s  tak ing  us  because 

we are  the  cur ren t  c l ien ts  –  tha t ’s  why I ’m say ing ,  i t ’s  

d i f f i cu l t  to  dea l  w i th  the  procurement  po l i cy  as  i t  i s .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So ,  you cannot  app ly  the  procu rement  

po l i cy  when i t ’s  d i f f i cu l t  to  do  so ,  is  tha t  your  ev idence? 

MS KWINANA:    Not  when i t  i s  d i f f i cu l t ,  when i t  i s  

impract icab le  to  do  i t .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So ,  you as  a  member  o f  the  Board  o f  

SAA Techn ica l  may not  app ly  the  procurement  po l i cy  o f  

SAA Techn ica l ,  when i t ’s  impract ica l  to  do  so?  20 

MS KWINANA:    O f  course ,  i f  i t  i s  impract ica l  how are  you 

go ing  to  app ly  i t ,  you  can ’ t  app ly  i t  i f  i t  i s  impract ica l .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    I ’d  l i ke  to  move on Cha i r  i f  we may.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And I ’d  l i ke  to  now focus,  Ms Kwinana on 
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a  –  what  I ’m go ing  to  ca l l  qu i te  a  fa te fu l  week in  the  l i fe  o f  

SAA and i t ’s  the  week tha t  s ta r ted  on  Monday the  28 t h  o f  

September  2015 and ended on Fr iday the  2n d  o f  October  

2015.   Okay,  le t ’s  s ta r t  a t  the  beg inn ing  o f  tha t  week.   A t  

the  beg inn ing  o f  tha t  week,  Monday the  28 t h  o f  September  

2015 the  Board  o f  South  A f r i can  A i rways,  inc lud ing  you,  

dec ided to  cance l  a  tender  tha t  had a l ready been awarded  

to  LSG Sky Chefs  and ins tead to  award  i t  to  A i r  Chefs ,  do  

you remember  tha t?  

MS KWINANA:    Oh,  Cha i r,  I  l i ke  tha t  one and in  fac t ,  even  10 

before  you go  fu r the r,  tha t  i s  the  dec is ion  –  the  

cance l la t ion  o f  tha t  tender…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Hang on,  hand on,  Ms Kwinana,  she has  

on ly  asked you whether  you remember  tha t .  

MS KWINANA:    No,  I ’m  say ing  Cha i r,  I ’m  say ing  Cha i r  tha t  

dec is ion  –  I ’m  say ing  Cha i r,  tha t  dec i s ion  o f  

us…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  she w i l l  ge t  –  she w i l l  ask  you about  

the  dec is ion .  

MS KWINANA:    Cha i r,  maybe,  le t  me f i rs t…[ in tervenes] .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  no ,  no  we are  go ing  to  waste  

t ime…[ in tervenes ] .  

MS KWINANA:    No Cha i r,  I  want  to  say th is…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  no  you w i l l  ge t  a  chance to  

say…[ in te rvenes] .  
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MS KWINANA:    No but  Cha i r,  le t  me say i t  now be fore  we  

go anywhere…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  Ms Kwinana ,  I  cont ro l  what  happens 

here ,  I ’m  say ing  you are  no t  go ing  to  answer  tha t  now,  you  

may answer  i t  when she asks you about  i t ,  okay?  

MS KWINANA:    Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Do you remember  or  do  you not  

remember  tha t…[ in tervenes] .  

MS KWINANA:    There  is  no  way tha t  I  wou ld  no t  

remember,  tha t  was one o f  the  best  dec is ions tha t  I  made  10 

a t  SAA.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay,  Ms Hofmeyr?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    One o f  the  best  dec is ions you made,  i s  

tha t  cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And you d id  address th is  in  your  a f f idav i t  

in  response to  the  Cha i r ’s  quest ions,  do  you reca l l  tha t?  

MS KWINANA:    Sor ry?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    You addressed th is  i ssue in  your  

a f f idav i t?  20 

MS KWINANA:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    I ’d  l i ke  to  take  you the re  because i t  

seems to  be  a  dec is ion  tha t  you are  reso lu te  o f  be ing  

proud o f .  

MS KWINANA:    Yes.  
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ADV HOFMEYR:    Exce l len t ,  so  le t ’s  go  to  i t ,  p ick  i t  up  a t  

page 4  in  your  a f f idav i t ,  Cha i r  tha t ’s  Exh ib i t  DD33 a t  page  

4 .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  thank you.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And aga in ,  your  a f f idav i t  i s  a lso  

d i f fe ren t ly  numbered.   You have to  go  to  the  bo t tom,  i t ’s  

tab  C,  because you ’ re  respond ing  to  paragraph C o f  the  

10(6)  d i rec t i ve  and the  head ing  is ,  “SAA Board ’s  dec is ion  

on  28 September  2015 to  cance l  the  tender  awarded to 

LSG Sky Chefs ”  and then  what  I  unders tand fo l lows i s  –  10 

we l l  f i rs t  o f  a l l  you  say,  you po in t  ou t  tha t  you are  

“ f labbergasted” .  

MS KWINANA:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    By  the  quest ion  by  the  Commiss ion .  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  I  am very  f labbergasted.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And,  maybe exp la in  to  us,  why are  you 

f labbergasted by  the  quest ion?  

MS KWINANA:    I  am f labbergasted by  th is  quest i on ,  the  

reason be ing  tha t…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I ’m  sor ry,  Ms Hofmeyr,  jus t  so  tha t  the  20 

pub l i c  who are  l i s ten ing  can fo l l ow,  s ta r t  w i th  what  the  

quest ion  is  and then we can hear  why she is  f labbergasted.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Indeed,  what  the  D i rec t i ve  requ i red  is  

tha t  Ms Kwinana wou ld  te l l  us  every th ing  she knew about  a  

ser ies  –  and her  i nvo lvement  in  a  ser ies  o f  top ics ,  r igh t .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And so ,  she ac tua l l y  records  the  top ic ,  

the  top ic  i s  the  SAA Board ’s  dec is ion  on  28 Sep tember  

2015 to  cance l  the  tender  awarded to  LSG Sky  Chefs  

and…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    So ,  C was…[ in tervenes] .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Was a  rep l i ca .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Was a  quest ion  requ i r ing  he r  to  share  

w i th  the  Commiss ion ,  whatever  she knows about  the  

Board ’s  dec is ion  o f  28  September  2015 to  cance l  the  10 

tender  award  to  LSG Sky Chefs .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Exact ly.  

CHAIRPERSON:    That ’s  the  quest ion?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  now when you say you were  

f labbergasted,  then the  pub l i c  can unders tand what  

quest ion  f labbergasted you.  

MS KWINANA:    Cha i r  when Mr  Moth ibe  was  asked 

about…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I ’m  sor ry,  I  th ink ,  Ms Hofmeyr ’s  quest ion  20 

was,  why were  you f labbergasted by  th is  quest ion?  

MS KWINANA:    That ’s  wha t  I ’m  exp la in ing  Cha i r,  

tha t ’s…[ in te rvenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  tha t ’s  where  you were  go ing  okay?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  I ’m say ing ,  Cha i r,  the  reason why I  
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am f labbergasted  by  th is  quest ion  is  tha t  I  rea l l y  wou ld  no t  

even th ink  tha t  i t  wou ld  be  par t  o f  the  Inqu i ry  here  in  v iew 

o f  the  fac t  tha t  A i r  Chefs  was go ing  to  re t rench peop le  and  

A i r  Chefs  i s  100% subs id ia ry  o f  SAA and there fore  i t  i s  a  

Government  en t i t y  and the  reason why A i r  Che fs  was  

fo rmed is  main l y  to  serv ice  SAA.  So,  wh ich  means,  

there fo re  tha t ,  i f  they  were  no  longer  go ing  to  serv i ce  SAA,  

there  wou ld  be  job  losses,  tha t ’s  why I  even sa id ,  whoever  

made th is  dec is ion  is  caus ing  a  sabotage,  tha t ’s  why I  

sa id ,  tha t  i s  how s t rong ly  I  fee l  and tha t  i s  how s t rong ly  I  10 

s t i l l  fee l  about  i t  as  I  am s i t t ing  here .   Our  dec is ion ,  as  the  

Board ,  to  cance l  tha t  award  aga ins t  Sky Chefs  and  take  i t  

back to  A i r  Chefs ,  A i r  Chefs  employs o r  employed 1500 

peop le  a t  the  t ime and those 1500  peop le  wou ld  lose  the i r  

jobs  and then now,  look  a t  the  o ther  supp l ie rs  o f  A i r  Chefs ,  

some o f  the  smal le r  supp l ie rs  o f  A i r  Chefs  wou ld  lose  the i r  

jobs  fo r  a  Lu f thansa Company,  oh  rea l l y,  Cha i rperson,  no .  

That ’s  why I  am say ing ,  I  am f labbergasted and in  fac t  the  

ev idence leader,  even fo rced Mr  Pu la  Moth ibe  to  say,  th is  

cance l la t ion  shou ld  have been repor ted  to  IRBA as a  20 

repor tab le  i r regu lar i t y  because we cance l led  th is  tender  

i r regu lar l y  and  my unders tand ing  o f  the  repor tab le  

i r regu lar i t y  i s  tha t  an  ac t  must  be  done a t  Management  and 

i t  must  cause f inanc ia l  loss .   Now what  does Advocate  say 

about  the  f inanc ia l  loss  tha t  w i l l  be  incu r red  by  A i r  Chefs .   
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So  tha t ’s  why I ’m say ing…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  a re  you say ing  i t  was not  go ing  to  be  

a  repor tab le  i r regu lar i t y?  

MS KWINANA:    No Cha i r,  I  don ’ t  see any –  in  fac t ,  i t  

wou ld  be  a  repor tab le  i r regu la r i t y  i f  th is  tender  had  

cont inued to  be  g iven to  the  Sky Chefs .   The reason be ing  

tha t  there  wou ld  be  job  losses  and in  fac t ,  th is  was  

supposed to  go  to  tender  and th is  was supposed to  go  to  

the  shareho lder  in  te rms o f  Sect ion  54  o f  the  PFM ACT.  

The reason be ing  tha t  th is  wou ld  be  the  d i scont inuat ion  o f  10 

the  b igger  po r t ion  o f  SAA Group and there fore  tha t  wou ld  

be  the  repor tab le  i r regu lar i t y.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Maybe I ’ l l  unders tand the  f labbergasted  

par t  la te r,  bu t  I  th ink  you must  cont inue,  Ms Hofmeyr.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Indeed,  thank you Cha i r.   So,  Ms  

Kwinana I  unders tand you to  say,  your  main  concern  were  

the  job  losses tha t  were  go ing  to  resu l t  a t  A i r  Chefs  i f  you  

re ta ined the  award  w i th  LSG Sky Chefs ,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MS KWINANA:    Not  to  re ta in  because tha t  tender  –  or  le t  

me not  say  tha t  tender,  SAA was be ing  supp l ied  by  A i r  20 

Chefs ,  wh ich  is  100% owned subs id ia ry  and in  fac t ,  I  heard  

Ms Mpshe supress ing  the  fac t  tha t  A i r  Chefs  was  a  100% 

owned subs id ia ry  o f  SAA and thanks to  the  Judge  and – 

the  Deputy  Ch ie f  o r  the  Cha i rperson because you asked a  

quest ion ,  whethe r  A i r  Chefs  was not  a  100% subs id ia ry  o f  
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SAA because she  was supress ing  i t .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    You th ink ,  Ms Mpshe supressed 

ev idence before  th is  Commiss ion ,  i s  tha t  your  ev idence? 

MS KWINANA:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    She supressed i t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  she d id .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    D id  she supress i t  to  you a t  the  t ime 

when she was adv is ing  you on th is  award?  

MS KWINANA:    You know,  i f  I  can  ta lk  about  Ms  Mpshe 

and her  d i s regard  o f  the  Board  dec is ions,  th is  one was one 10 

o f  them…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ms Kwinana?  

MS KWINANA:    Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    P lease,  i t ’s  in  your  in te res t  and  i t ’s  in  

the  in te res t  o f  a l l  o f  us ,  tha t  as  the  ev idence leader  asks  

quest ions,  you l i s ten  ca re fu l l y  to  what  the  quest ion  is  and 

answer  tha t  quest ion  because tha t  way we ’ l l  make progress 

much more  eas ie r.   I  th ink  your  l as t  answer  d idn ’ t  answer  

her  quest ion  i t  was –  i t  dea l t  w i th  someth ing  e lse .  I ’m 

go ing  to  ask  her  to  repeat  her  ques t ion ,  l i s ten  care fu l l y  and 20 

answer  tha t  quest ion .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Your  tes t imony today is  tha t  Ms Mpshe  

supressed ev idence before  th i s  Commiss ion ,  i s  tha t  

cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  
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ADV HOFMEYR:    And I  asked you,  do  you regard  her  as 

hav ing  supressed ev idence when  she was engag ing  you 

about  th is  award  a t  the  t ime tha t  i t  was made? 

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r,  she d id  supress i t  because,  as  

I  sa id ,  a l though the  amount  i t se l f  d id  no t  requ i re  the  Board  

dec is ion  bu t  the  na ture  o f  the  t ransact ion  requ i red  tha t  i t  

needed to  go  to  the  Board  because A i r  Chefs  was go ing  to  

c lose  down and in  fac t ,   i t  d id  no t  even need to  go  to  the 

Board ,  i t  needed to  go  to  the  shareho lder  i n  te rms o f  

Sect ion  54  and she supressed a l l  o f  tha t .  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:   D id  you read any o f  the  emai ls  tha t  Ms  

Mpshe was c i r cu la t ing  to  the  Board  a f te r  tha t  fa te fu l  day in  

Par l iament  where  Ms Myen i  was cr i t i c i sed fo r  th is  award?  

MS KWINANA:    Ms Myen i  was cr i t i c i sed o f  th is  award ,  

who cr i t i c i sed her?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Members  –  when she addressed the  

Por t fo l io  Commi t tee ,  I  th ink  i t  was on the  1s t  o f  September,  

I  a lways get  th is  wrong,  the  2n d  o f  September  she was  

asked a  qu i te  in f lammatory  quest ion  about  the  award  o f  

th is  tender  to  LSG Sky Chefs  and  she was asked whethe r  20 

tha t  was done because she took i t  tha t  quote ,  “b lack  

peop le  can ’ t  cook” ,  do  you remember  be ing  aware  o f  tha t  

a t  the  t ime? 

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  I ’m  aware  o f  tha t .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    You ’ re  aware  o f  tha t ,  so  tha t  happened 
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on  the  1 s t  o f  September  and then in  Ms Mpshe ’s  ev idence  

she exp la ined in  g raph ic  de ta i l  how d is t ressed Ms Myen i  

was by  tha t  encounte r,  how she bera ted  Ms Mpshe  outs ide  

the  meet ing  room in  f ron t  o f  Ms Mpshe ’s  o the r  co l leagues  

and subsequent  to  tha t  Ms Mpshe was ca l led  to  account  fo r  

what  had happened.  In  tha t  p rocess,  she sent  numerous  

emai ls  to  a l l  the  Board  members  and I ’m t ry ing  to  es tab l i sh  

now whether  you  read any o f  those emai ls  o f  Ms Mpshe a t  

the  t ime?  

MS KWINANA:    I  may have  read them Cha i r,  bu t  10 

regard less  o f  what  those emai ls  were  say ing  they  wou ld  

no t  change how I  fe l t  a t  tha t  t ime and they wou ld  no t  

change how I  am fee l ing  a t  th is  t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  Ms Kwinana,  the  answer  was 

whethe r  you read  any o f  those emai ls ,  I  th ink  your  answer  

shou ld  be ,  you may have read them,  you may not  have 

read them,  you can ’ t  remember,  I  th ink  tha t ’s  wha t  you ’ re  

say ing…[ in tervenes] .  

MS KWINANA:    I  may have read them.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  when  you are  re fer red  to  a 20 

par t i cu la r  emai l  you might  see when you look a t  i t  whether  

you remember  read ing  i t  o r  no t .  

MS KWINANA:    Yes Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And I  th ink  I  unders tand you  to say,  

whatever  Ms Mpshe was say ing ,  you took the  v iew tha t  i t  



02 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 296 
 

Page 175 of 257 
 

wou ld  cause job  losses i f  i t  remained w i th  LSG Sky Chefs ,  

cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And tha t  A i r  Chefs  wou ld  c lose  down i t s  

bus iness,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  co r rec t .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    R igh t  and then you hes i ta ted  when I  

sa id ,  to  cance l  the  award ,  to  LSG Sky Chefs  because an 

ent i re  tender  p rocess had been run  pr io r  to  th is ,  were  you  

aware  o f  tha t?  10 

MS KWINANA:    I r regu la r ly  so  because…[ in tervenes] .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Why was i t  i r regu lar?  

MS KWINANA:    Th is  tender  was  i r regu lar  fo r  the  reason  

tha t  I  am say ing ,  why wou ld  –  in  fac t  when I  make th is  

example  o f  th is  LSG Sky Chefs  i s ,  i f  my daughter  i s  se l l ing 

fa t  cakes here  a t  home,  why wou ld  I  go  and buy fa t  cakes  

next  door  and then i f  I  dec ide  to  go  and buy fa t  cakes next  

door  as  a  parent  am I  no t  supposed to  te l l  the  ch i l d  tha t  I  

don ’ t  l i ke  your  fa t  cakes th is  i s  how you shou ld  do  the  fa t  

cakes the  p lease  cor rec t  here  and there  and so  on .   So,  20 

the  reason why I ’m  say ing  i t  was i r regu la r  i s  because tha t  

tender  shou ld  no t  even have happened.   Why wou ld  –  in  

fac t ,  had tha t  tender  went  on ,  a l so  tha t  wou ld  be  the  same 

wi th  SAA Techn ica l  we wou ld  see  some aerop lanes be ing  

repa i red  e lsewhere  because we  wou ld  have crea ted a 
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p recedent  fo r  tha t .  That ’s  why I ’m say ing  tha t ’s  one o f  the  

best  dec i s ions tha t  we made.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  when you say  i t  was 

i r regu lar…[ in tervenes] .  

MS KWINANA:    I t  was i r regu lar…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Hang on,  Ms Kwinana,  everybody a l lows 

you to  speak.  

MS KWINANA:    Sor ry  Cha i r.  

 

CHAIRPERSON:    When you say i t  was i r regu la r,  you don ’ t  10 

mean the re  was  a  process tha t  was supposed  to  be  

fo l lowed but  was not  fo l lowed,  you on ly  mean tha t ,  

substant ive l y  you  d isagreed w i th  the  dec i s ion  to  award  i t  to  

th is  company,  tha t ’s  what  you mean? 

MS KWINANA:    P lus ,  the  process  Cha i r  

because…[ in te rvenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    What  was wrong  w i th  the  process? 

MS KWINANA:    Because the  process –  the  d iscont inuance  

o f  the  major  component  o f  the  bus iness requ i res  a  Board  

dec is ion  and i t  a lso  requ i res  a  ce r ta in  54  app l i ca t ion .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay,  Ms Hofmeyr?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    You were  to ld  by  Ms Mpshe why the  

dec is ion  had been taken,  to  go  ou t  on  tender  and tha t  had  

to  do  w i th  the  fac t  tha t  A i r  Che fs  had,  p rev ious l y  been  

prov id ing  the  se rv ice  and was do ing  so  to  g reat  cus tomer  
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d issa t is fac t ion ,  were  you aware  o f  tha t?  

MS KWINANA:   That ’s  why,  Cha i r,  I  was say ing  I  was  

aware  o f  tha t ,  tha t ’s  why I  was say ing  the  respons ib i l i t y  o f  

the  parent  i s  to  gu ide  the  ch i ld ,  to  say,  you ’ re  no t  do ing 

r igh t  here ,  then do l i ke  th is  and th is  and th is ,  no t  to  do 

what  Ms Mpshe was do ing .   

ADV HOFMEYR:    Because pr io r  to  Ms Myen i  appear ing  in  

Par l iament  and be ing  quest ioned about  th is ,  there  was a  

de ta i led  memorandum sent  to  the  SAA Board  o f  D i rec to rs  

exp la in ing  the  who le  process.   Exp la in ing  why the  dec i s ion  10 

had been made to  go  ou t  on  tender,  I ’d  l i ke  to  take  you to 

i t  i f  I  may,  you ’ l l  f ind  i t  in  Mr  Moth ibe ’s  Bund le ,  Cha i r  tha t  

w i l l  be  DD19A and you ’ l l  p ick  i t  up  a t  page 132.3 .1 ,  you ’ l l  

be  ass i s ted  now Ms Kwinana.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay le t ’s  go  to  the  page f i rs t .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So ,  i t ’s  Exh ib i t  DD19A and when we ’ re  

look ing  fo r  the  page,  we ’ l l  be  look ing  fo r  page 132.3 .1 .  

MS KWINANA:    Which  one,  i s  i t  th is  one?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So ,  we ’ re  go ing  to  have to  f ind  132.3 .2  

in  tha t  p lease –  oh  sor ry  i t  s ta r ts  a t  132.3 .1 ,  apo log ies .  I f  20 

you br ing  i t  to  me,  I  cou ld  poss ib ly  ass is t .   So,  th is  i s  a  

memorandum tha t  Ms Mpshe,  as  the  ac t ing  Ch ie f  Execut ive  

Off i cer  p repared fo r  the  SAA Board  o f  D i rec tors  da ted  the  

2 th  o f  August  2015 and you ’ l l  reca l l  tha t  p recedes the 

meet ing  a t  the  Por t fo l io  Commi t tee  and what  she says in  
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the  background sect ion ,  tha t ’s  m idway down the  page,  Ms  

Kwinana,  i s  she says there ,  

“SAA’s  lounge customer  va lue  propos i t ion ,  p roduct  

and serv ice  has  to  da te  been p rov ided by  SAA’s  

subs id ia ry,  A i r  Chefs .  The food and beverages on  

o f fe r  a re  spec i f ied  in  l ine  w i th  customer  needs,  

p re fe rences,  and  expecta t ions.  Over  t ime SAA has 

exper ienced a  severe  de te r io ra t ion  in  the  qua l i t y  

and s tandard  o f  p roduct  and  the  food and 

beverages on o f fe r  a re  spec i f ied  in  l ine  w i th  10 

customer  needs,  p re ferences and expecta t ions,  

over  t ime SAA has exper ienced a  severe  

de ter io ra t ion  in  the  qua l i t y  and s tandard  o f  p roduc t  

o f fe red  by  A i r  Chefs  based on P remium customer  

compla in t s  in  respect  o f  the  customer  va lue  

propos i t ion  a t  ORTIA’s  lounges wh ich  are  ranked as  

h igh  va lue  customer  touch po in t s .   The negat ive  

customer  exper ience has not  on ly  de t r imenta l l y  

a f fec ted  SAA f rom a  reputa t iona l  and commerc ia l  

perspect ive  bu t  has a l so  resu l ted  in  SAA’s  Premium 20 

customers  beg inn ing  to  use the  s low lounge,   

B r i t i sh  A i rways customer  va lue  propos i t ion ,  wh ich  i s  

SAA’s  compet i to r. ”   

And then she goes on and she exp la ins  because o f  tha t  

cha l lenge w i th  the  serv ice  de l i very,  the  impact  i t  was  
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hav ing  on  SAA both  reputa t iona l l y  and commerc ia l l y  there  

was then th is  dec is ion  to  go  ou t  on  tender.  

 Were  you aware  o f  tha t  a t  the  t ime Ms Kwinana? 

MS KWINANA:    Cha i r  I  was not  aware  about  the  dec i s ion  

to  go  ou t  to  tender.   We became aware  o f  th is  when we 

were  asked in  Par l iament .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  why d id  you not  become aware  o f  i t  a  

week o r  so  ear l ie r  when the  memo was prepared? 

MS KWINANA:    I  am not  su re  i f  th is  memo was prepared 

before  they went  ou t  to  tender,  o r  i t  was prepared fo r  the 10 

Zondo Commiss ion .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    No,  no ,  no  i t  i s  an  h is to r i ca l  document ,  i t  

i s  a  document  da ted  the  20 t h  o f  August ,  so  they have gone  

out  on  tender,  they have run  the  who le  p rocess and now 

she is  a le r t ing  the  Board  about  the  process . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS KWINANA:    I  see ,  oh .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    . . .be fore  you went  to  Par l iament .  

MS KWINANA:    Oh,  they have gone out  to  tender,  tha t  i s  

the  prob lem,  tha t  i s  the  prob lem Cha i r,  they  were  no t  

supposed to  have  gone out  to  tender.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  bu t  she is  no t  ask ing  you about  tha t ,  

she is  say ing  th is  memo f rom Ms Mpshe is  da ted  20 August  

2015.  

MS KWINANA:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    The meet ing  a t  Par l iament  appears  to  
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have been on the  1 s t  o f  September  2015,  she is  ask ing  why  

you wou ld  no t  have been aware  about  a  week or  ten  days 

be fore  the  meet ing  in  Par l iament ,  s ince  th is  memo f rom Ms 

Mpshe was addressed to  Board  members .  

MS KWINANA:   I t  wou ld  be  good  i f  o ther  board  members  

wou ld  conf i rm th i s  memo because I  rea l l y  do  no t  t rus t  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    You rea l l y  don ’ t ?  

MS KWINANA:   I  don ’ t  t rus t  i t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    You don ’ t  t rus t?  

MS KWINANA:   Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Trus t?  

MS KWINANA:   Yes,  I  don ’ t  t rus t  th is  memo Cha i r  because 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    You don ’ t  t rus t  tha t  i t  i s  on  e th ic?  

MS KWINANA:   Yes,  the  reason why I  do  no t  t rus t  i t  Cha i r  

i s  because we were  a l l  surpr i sed by  th is  reve la t ion  in  

Par l iament ,  so  i t  may happen tha t  she may have prepared  

i t  and d id  no t  send i t  to  the  Board .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Cou ld  i t  a lso  have been l i ke  in  the  case 20 

o f  the  Swisspor t  Ground Hand l ing  cont rac t  tha t  you got  i t  

and you jus t  d id  no t  read i t .  

MS KWINANA:    The cont rac t  no  Cha i r  I  d id  no t  ge t  the  

cont rac t ,  we do not  ge t  the  cont rac t  in  the  meet ing ,  we get  

the  submiss ion  and then i f  the re  i s  an  agreement  then 
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management  goes back to  wr i te  the  cont rac t  so  in  the 

meet ing  we do ge t  the  submiss ion ,  no t  the  cont rac t .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    No but  tha t  cou ld  no t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS KWINANA:    That  i s  why I  am say ing ,  tha t  i s  why I  was  

say ing  I  do  no t  want  to  read tha t  cont rac t  because I  am not  

par t y  to  i t ,  the  on ly  th ing  tha t  I  wou ld  do  is  to  –  i f  i t  i s  

ava i lab le  i s  to  read the  Board  reso lu t ion  and see i f  i t  has  

been t rans la ted  cor rec t l y  in  the  cont rac t ,  bu t  remember  

tha t  the  cont rac t  i s  the  management  document ,  i t  i s  no t  my 

document .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  Ms Kwinana I  am – i t  i s  a  p i t y  you 

are  tak ing  us  back to  the  th ing ,  as   Board  member  i f  

cer ta in  cont rac ts  requ i red  Board  approva l  you wou ld  want  

to  see the  cont rac t  be fore  you approve i t  because why  

wou ld  you agree to  approve a  cont rac t  you have not  seen? 

MS KWINANA:   No Cha i r,  th is  i s  how the  process,  the  

approva l  p rocess  happen,  you come to  the  meet ing  w i th  a  

proposa l  and then now there  is  an  agreement  to  say now 

you can go and enter  in to  a  cont rac t  and then management  

goes back and enter  in to  a  cont rac t ,  and they f i le  i t ,  they  20 

don ’ t  b r ing  i t  back un less  there  is  someth ing  tha t  requ i res  

tha t  in  the  next  board  meet ing  the  cont rac ts  i s  b rought  

back.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  i f  the  requ i rement  i s  tha t  you must  

approve the  cont rac t  you have to  see the  cont rac t ,  you a re  
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no t  –  you can ’ t  approve i t  un t i l  i t  ex is ts ,  and you can ’ t  

approve i t  un less  you see i t ,  because o therwise  you are  

go ing  to  approve a  cont rac t  whose te rms you don ’ t  know.  

MS KWINANA:   Chai r  tha t  i s  the  m isunders tand ing  tha t  we  

had before  lunch.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Hmm? 

MS KWINANA:   That  i s  the  m isunders tand ing  tha t  we had 

before  lunch,  wha t  comes to  the  Board  is  a  submiss ion  w i th  

the  te rms and cond i t ions  to  be  approved and then when  

those te rms and cond i t ions  are  approved then tha t ’s  when 10 

management  goes back and put  i t  in  a  cont rac t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    You never  as  the  Board  want  to  see the  

ac tua l  cont rac t  to  see whether  the  te rms tha t  found i t s  way,  

found the i r  way in to  the  cont rac t  a re  the  te rms tha t  you  

approved?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Cha i r  there  i s  –  there  are  so  many 

assurance bod ies  in  an  o rgan isa t ion ,  there  i s  in te rna l  

aud i t ,  there  i s  ex terna l  aud i t ,  there  i s  r i sk  management  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    No but  I  am ta lk ing  about  . . . [ in te rvenes]   20 

MS KWINANA:    There  are  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Ms Kwinana i f  the  po l i cy  o r  the  

regu la t ions or  the  law says th i s  t ype o f  cont rac t  must  be  

approved by  the  Board  I  am say ing  how cou ld  you approve  

a  proposa l  and  end there ,  a  p roposa l  to  en ter  in to  a  
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con t rac t  on  the  fo l low ing te rms and never  say we  want  to  

see the  ac tua l  cont rac t  tha t  you entered in to  when you say 

to  management ,  we want  to  see the  ac tua l  cont rac t  so  tha t  

we can see whether  you ac tua l l y  ca r r ied  ou t  what  we  

approved,  we want  to  see whether  the  ac tua l  te rms in  

wh ich  you entered are  the  te rms tha t  we approved,  o r  you  

d id  your  own th ing .  

MS KWINANA:    Cha i r  the  cont rac t ,  the  cont rac t  document  

does not  come to  the  Board ,  what  comes to  the  Board  is  

the  submiss ion  . . . [ in te rvenes]   10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay Ms Mban jwa –  I  am so r ry  Ms 

Kwinana,  p lease car ry  on .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Thank you Cha i r.   We were  dea l ing  w i th  

the  memorandum tha t  I  unders tand Ms Kwinana ’s  ev idence 

to  be  she does not  t rus t ,  and . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry  Ms Hofmeyr  jus t  the  las t  th ing  

and I  jus t  want  to  ra ise  th is  because th is  k ind  o f  hor r i f ies  

me.   So does mean tha t  dur ing  your  t ime when you  were  a  

board  member  a t  SAA there  may have been a  lo t  o f  

cont rac ts  where  the  Board  made approved tha t  the  20 

management  must  negot ia te  and  enter  in to  w i thout  the  

Board  ever  see ing  once the  cont rac ts  had been s igned 

whethe r  the  management  d id  i t s  own th ing  o r  whe ther  the  

management  en tered in to  the  cont rac ts  on  the  te rms 

approved by  the  Board .  
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MS KWINANA:    Not  the  ac tua l  cont rac ts  Cha i r  bu t  the  

te rms and cond i t ions .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  no  bu t  I  am say ing  does i t  mean 

tha t  there  wou ld  have been many . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS KWINANA:  Oh yes Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    . . . con t rac ts  where  you never  saw the  

u l t imate  cont rac t  whether  i t  was  in  acco rdance w i th  the  

Board ’s  t e rms and cond i t ions ,  you  jus t  sa id  go  and enter  

in to  a  cont rac t  a long the  fo l low ing te rms and cond i t ions  

and you le f t  i t  a t  tha t?  10 

MS KWINANA:    Yes Cha i r,  and in  fac t  tha t  i s  a lso  par t  o f  

our  t rus t  in  the  ca l ib re  o f  management .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  we l l .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Wel l  you d id  no t  have any t rus t  in  the  

ca l ib re  o f  management ,  d id  you,  in  August  o f  2015? 

MS KWINANA:    Ms Mpshe.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Jus t  Ms Mpshe,  you d idn ’ t  have any t rus t  

in  her  ca l ib re?  

MS KWINANA:    Not  in  every th ing  bu t  in  the  dec i s ion  o f  

LSG,  in  the  dec is ion  o f  LSG then no.  20 

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  we were  jus t  es tab l i sh ing  whethe r  

you knew befo re  you a t tended Par l iament  tha t  there  had  

been cons ide ra t i on  g iven to  why they wanted to  go  ou t  to  

tender  and we saw here  what  tha t  mot iva t ion  was,  bu t  

because o f  the  sub-s tandard  per fo rmance o f  A i r  Chefs  i t  
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was hav ing  a  reputa t iona l  and  commerc ia l l y  negat ive  

impact  on  SAA,  were  you aware  o f  tha t  be fore  you a t tended  

Par l iament?  

MS KWINANA:    As  I  sa id  Cha i r  I  made an example ,  a  very  

easy example  o f  the  fa t  cakes.   I  wou ld  no t  go  next  door  

and buy fa t  cakes  and leave my ch i ld ’s  fa t  cakes here .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Ms Kwinana . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS KWINANA:    Even i f  I  had a  cha l lenge w i th  them,  i f  I  

have a  cha l lenge  w i th  them I  wou ld  say reduce the  bak ing  

powder,  add th is  and th i s  and th is ,  so  tha t  i t  can  be  to  the  10 

customer ’s  sa t is fac t ion .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Ms Kwinana what  was my quest ion?  

MS KWINANA:    Forgot ten  about  i t .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    I t  i s  because you repeated ly,  w i th  

respect  Ms Kwinana do not  answer  the  quest ion ,  i t  was 

s imp ly  a  quest ion  about  what  you knew.   D id  you know 

when you a t tended Par l iament  tha t  the  reason why SAA’s  

management  had dec ided to  go  ou t  on  tender  was because  

. . . [ ind is t inc t ]   

MS KWINANA:    I  sa id ,  I  sa id  . . . [ in te rvenes]   20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ms Kwinana . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS KWINANA:   That  i s  why . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Ms Kwinana,  Ms  Kwinana . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS KWINANA:    I  on ly  knew about  the  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Ms Kwinana when I  ca l l  you  p lease keep  



02 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 296 
 

Page 186 of 257 
 

qu ie t .  

MS KWINANA:   Sorry  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ms Hofmeyr  has no t  even f in ished 

ask ing  you the  quest ion  and ye t  the  p rev ious ques t ion  you  

admi t ted  you cou ld  no t  remember  what  the  quest i on  was.   

The reason why  she has to  repeat  the  quest ion  now is  

because you d id  no t  l i s ten  to  the  quest ion  and answer  the  

quest ion ,  and now when she is  repeat ing  the  ques t ion  fo r  

your  benef i t ,  because you d id  no t  l i s ten  be fore ,  you s ta r t  

ta lk ing  be fo re  she can f in ish .   We are  go ing  to  waste  t ime 10 

i f  we do i t  l i ke  tha t .   I  sa id  to  you before  p lease  i t  i s  in  

your  in te res t  and in  the  in te res t  o f  everybody tha t  when 

she asks you quest ions you keep qu ie t  and l i s ten  care fu l l y  

and then answer  tha t  quest ion .    

 I  am go ing  to  ask  Ms Hofmeyr  to  repeat  the  

quest ion ,  th is  t ime jus t  l i s ten  care fu l l y.   

ADV HOFMEYR:    Were  you aware  when you a t tended 

Par l iament  on  the  2n d  o f  September  tha t  the  reason why  

SAA’s  management  had dec ided to  go  ou t  on  tender  fo r  

these lounge ca ter ing  serv i ces  was because A i r  Chefs  the  20 

pr io r  p rov ide r,  was prov id ing  sub-s tandard  per fo rmance,  

wh ich  was hav ing  a  reputa t iona l  and commerc ia l l y  negat ive  

impact  on  SAA.   Were  you aware  o f  tha t?  

MS KWINANA:    No.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    D id  you become aware  o f  i t  a f te r  



02 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 296 
 

Page 187 of 257 
 

a t tend ing  Par l iament?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes,  and I  take  you to  d isagree w i th  

tha t ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Now your  reasons fo r  d isagree ing  –  

sor ry?  

CHAIRPERSON:    We are  a t  four,  we have agreed  we w i l l  

a l l  go  beyond four  o ’c lock  bu t  maybe we shou ld  take  a  

break.  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:    Cer ta in ly.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  i f  you  have a  quest ion  tha t  you want  

to  ask  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV HOFMEYR:   No,  we can take  the  break now,  I  am very  

comfor tab le  w i th  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  le t  us  take  a  break  and resume a t  

quar te r  past  fou r.   We ad journ .  

REGISTRAR:   Al l  r i se .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Let  us cont inue.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Thank you Chai r.   We were deal ing wi th  

the memorandum that  Ms Kwinana does not  t rust  dated the 

20 August  2015.   And Ms Kwinana I  reference two paragraph 

where the background to why the decision had been taken to 
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go out  on tender was recorded.   But  what is noteworthy I  

want to suggest  to you what else Ms Mpshe says in th is  

memorandum is that  she actual ly takes up your very point .   

The point  about  should the parent  not  be assist ing the chi ld.  

Are you aware that  she addressed that  very issue? 

MS KWINANA:   No Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   And as you si t  here today you do not  have 

a recol lect ion of  ever reading th is memorandum, is that  

r ight? 

MS KWINANA:   No Chai r.  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Wel l  what she did say addressing the 

board is that  and I  now Chair  just  for  record DD19[a]  at  page 

132.3.1 the same page we were on previously.   But  I  am now 

going to read f rom … 

CHAIRPERSON:   That  last  passage. 

ADV HOFMEYR:   From the last  paragraph sort  of  hal f  of  the 

way down because what she records there is she says:  

“Several  interact ions were held between SAA 

and Air  Chefs to f ind means to improve the 

level  of  service del ivery achieved.   However 20 

and notwi thstanding these efforts no 

improved resul ts were recorded.   SAA was 

accordingly faced with no opt ion but  to  take 

a decision to go out  on a conf ined tender to  

achieve the desi red commercial  value 
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proposi t ion expected for th is  premium 

customer segment . ”  

So you were not  aware that  there actual ly had been efforts 

between SAA and Air  Chefs to do the very thing that  I  th ink 

your vetkoek example is supposed to convey.   Correct? 

MS KWINANA:   I  was not  aware Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Now you are so are you sat isf ied that  they 

did take steps to do the very th ing you were concerned 

about? 

MS KWINANA:   I  am not  sat isf ied Chair  because I  – as I  said 10 

I  do not  be l ieve th is memorandum. 

CHAIRPERSON:   But  i f  i t  is t rue that  they take those 

measures to t ry and get  Air  Chefs to improve i ts level  of  

serv ice del ivery but  those efforts did not  succeed would you 

accept  that  in that  case then i f  that  is t rue then i t  would be 

understandable and just i f iable for them to look elsewhere for 

serv ice of  the r ight  qual i ty at  the r ight  level? 

MS KWINANA:   No Chair  I  would not  understand i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Sorry.  

MS KWINANA:   Chair  I  would not  understand i t .   Of  course i f  20 

your chi ld does not  l isten to what you are saying – le t  us say 

your chi ld does not  want to go to school ;  she bunks school  

you hand hold that  chi ld and take him to school .   So 

basical ly I  just  would not  understand – I  st i l l  do not 

understand Chai r.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Are you – are you saying that  there could 

never be a point  where they say,  look we have t r ied 

everything wi th Air  Chefs to get  them to improve thei r  

serv ice and thei r  efforts are you saying that  such a point  

would – could not  be reached? 

MS KWINANA:   They would not  have t r ied enough Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Are you saying therefore that  they should 

just  go on and on and on even i f  they can – they could see 

that  thei r  efforts were not  bearing f ru i t?  

MS KWINANA:   No.   Not  going on and on and on Chai r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MS KWINANA:   But  I  am saying you hand hold your chi ld.   

You do not  throw you chi ld in the dustbin.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  leave out  the chi ld example now.  

MS KWINANA:   You going to hold [Chairperson speaking 

over Ms Kwinana] 

CHAIRPERSON:   Leave out  the chi ld example let  us talk 

about  th is.   This is a business now.  

MS KWINANA:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  is not  at  home.  This is a business.   SAA 20 

must  be run l ike a business.  

MS KWINANA:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Now they are saying – Ms Mpshe is  saying 

in th is memorandum tel l ing the board over the years or over  

whatever per iod when Ai r  Chefs was providing the service 
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there had been complaints about the qual i ty of  the serv ice.   

They as management had made a number of  e fforts to t ry  

and get  Ai r  Chefs to improve the ir  – the qual i ty  of  their  

serv ice and these efforts had not  borne any f rui t .   I t  was only 

af ter that  that  they decided look we must go to open tender.   

So are you saying that  the – no matter how unsuccessful  

their  efforts  were they should have gone on and on t ry ing to  

get  Air  Chefs to improve their  serv ice even i f  they real ised 

that  i t  s imply was not  working? 

MS KWINANA:   Chair  I  am saying i f  they t r ied they did not  10 

t ry hard enough.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja but  they say they have t r ied enough.  

MS KWINANA:   Of  course i t  is thei r  word against  mine.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes but  … 

MS KWINANA:   I  am saying they did not  t ry hard enough.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja but  you do not  know whether they – 

what they say to you we have t r ied hard enough.  Is  there a 

point  which you accept? 

MS KWINANA:   I  am saying… 

CHAIRPERSON:   At  which they could say we have t r ied 20 

enough.  

MS KWINANA:   I  am saying Chair  I  was a board member of  

SAA and I  d id  not  feel  the ir  efforts so that  is why I  am saying 

i f  they … 

CHAIRPERSON:   How could you feel  thei r  efforts they were 
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not  ta lk ing to you they were ta lk ing to A ir  Chefs.  

MS KWINANA:   Chair  the Air  Chefs is the subsidiary of  SAA 

they could not  c lose Ai r  Chefs wi thout  informing SAA; 

wi thout  informing the shareholder.   They could have even 

gone up to the shareholder to say,  we have given up on Air  

Chefs.   We have done a,b,c,d and e.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ms Hofmeyr.  

MS KWINANA:   So that  is why I  am saying.  

CHAIRPERSON:   P lease cont inue.  

MS KWINANA:   They did not  t ry hard enough.  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Ms Kwinana I  want to t ry and get  some 

common ground because you have said repeatedly you do 

not  t rust  that  memorandum so I  want to actual ly go to an 

emai l  that  Ms Mpshe sent  d i rect ly to you amongst  other  

people because maybe we can work wi th the content  of  what  

she said there.   So let  us go to her actual  emai l  to you.   You 

wi l l  f ind that  a few pages on in the bundle you are busy wi th 

DD19[a]  and i t  is at  page 132.11.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sorry what is  the page number? 

ADV HOFMEYR:   132.11.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Now Ms Kwinana you wi l l  see that  starts 

wi th an emai l  f rom Ms Mpshe copied to Ms Myeni ,  yoursel f ,  

Mr Dickson and Dr Thambi cc’d to  many people and i t  says in 

qui te big green – sorry blue let ter ing there.  
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“Dear board members and col leagues p lease 

note the t rai l ing emai ls in respect  of  the 

lounge discussion today.   Please fami l iar ise 

yoursel f  wi th the contents thereof  in  

part icular the legal  impl icat ion and r isks 

associated wi th the decis ion. ”  

So now we have jumped – wel l  that  is an emai l  dated the 28 

September but  the t rai l ing emai l  that  I  want  to focus on is 

the one just  below i t  midway down the page which is an 

emai l  that  Ms Mpshe send to amongst  other you.   I t  is dated 10 

the 8 September 2015.   Do you recal l  receiv ing that  at  the 

t ime? 

MS KWINANA:   Yes Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   You do.   And did you read i t?  

MS KWINANA:   Yes Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Right .   And d id you read the t rai l  of  

emai ls?  You can go through to page 15 because that  is  the 

end of  th is t rai l?  You are copied on al l  of  the relevant  as I  

can see i t .    

MS KWINANA:   Yes Chai r.  20 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Right .   So you read i t  at  the t ime and I  

understand what  – one thing you were real ly  concerned 

about is that  th is decision would close down Ai r  Chefs,  

correct? 

MS KWINANA:   Yes Chai r.  
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ADV HOFMEYR:   Now Ms Mpshe told you that  i t  would not ,  

you remember that? 

MS KWINANA:   How would i t  not  go down Ai r  Chefs? 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Wel l  because – no wel l  why do you not  te l l  

me how i t  would? 

MS KWINANA:   SAA … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Closer – closer to  the microphone.  

MS KWINANA:   A ir  Chefs was main ly formed to service SAA 

and therefore SAA is a bigger customer – is the major  

customer of  Ai r  Chefs.   And therefore in any business i f  you 10 

take out  the major cl ient  that  business is going to close 

down. 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes but… 

MS KWINANA:   And again let  me f in ish Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Apologies.  

MS KWINANA:   And again i f  for instance SAA the 

shareholder the 100% shareholder of  Ai r  Chefs has lost  

conf idence in Ai r  Chefs what about  the other ai r l ines and 

other customers that  they even serviced by Air  Chefs.   So 

she was also not  te l l ing the t ruth to say Ai r  Chefs was not  20 

going to close.   In fact  i f  you could interview the employees 

of  A ir  Chefs they were being ret renched al ready.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   You were worr ied about that  were you not? 

MS KWINANA:   Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   She also to ld you they were not  going to  
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be ret renched, do you remember that? 

MS KWINANA:   Where would they work? No man Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Do you know where they were going to 

work?  They were going to work for  LSG Sky Chefs.   I t  was a 

requi rement that  they be taken over  Ms Kwinana.  Were you 

aware of  that? 

MS KWINANA:   You know Chair  we have heard that  before.   

We have heard that  before.   As Ai r  Chefs was going through 

the retrenchment process.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   No the tender i tsel f  and the contract  that  10 

was going to be concluded requi red the employees of  Air  

Chefs to be taken over  by LSG Sky Chefs.   There was not  

going to be a single retrenchment.   That  is what Ms Mpshe 

told you on the 8 September 2015.  Do you not  remember 

that? 

MS KWINANA:   I  to ld Ms Mpshe that  Ms Mpshe is  

suppressing evidence.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hang on,  hang on Ms Kwinana.  

MS KWINANA:   And that  is another  – I  said we can start  she 

is suppressing because Ai r  Chefs.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ms Kwinana.  

MS KWINANA:   Was going through to – retrenchments.  

CHAIRPERSON:   P lease l isten to me.  You are not  

answering her quest ion.   You are responding to a quest ion 

she did not  ask.   Please st ick to answering her quest ions.   



02 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 296 
 

Page 196 of 257 
 

Ms Hofmeyr do you want to repeat  your quest ion? 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Wel l  I  understand… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Each t ime a quest ion has to be repeated 

we are wast ing t ime.  

MS KWINANA:   Sorry Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   I  asked you whether you were aware that  

Ms Mpshe told you in her emai l  of  the 8 September that  

there would be no retrenchments because i t  was a condi t ion 

of  the tender and the to be  concluded cont ract  that  the Ai r  10 

Chefs employees would be taken over by LSG Sky Chefs.   

What is your answer to that? 

MS KWINANA:   She was not  te l l ing the t ruth.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Oh.   So i f  I  can show you the cont ract .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  okay.   Yes.   Ms Hofmeyr is saying to  

you Ms Kwinana the cont ract  that  was going to be signed by 

Sky Chefs was going to inc lude a clause or did include a 

clause to say they must  take over  the employees of  Air  

Chefs.   Now I  can tel l  you this and Ms Hofmeyr knows i t  as 

wel l ,  maybe Ms Mbanjwa knows i t  as wel l  when this type of  20 

thing happens Sect ion 197 of  the Labour Relat ions Act  

obl iges the new company to take over the employees of  the 

company which has lost  the tender – which is no longer 

going to  do the job.   So to  the extent  that  the contract  to  

which Ms Hofmeyr is referr ing you may have had a c lause to 
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that  effect  that  would have been in l ine wi th the law.   But  

even i f  that  c lause was not  there the law – the Labour 

Relat ions Act  would have obl iged the new company to take 

them over.   You understand that? 

MS KWINANA:   Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  know you are not  a lawyer but  I  am now 

tel l ing you what – at  least  a statute says.  

MS KWINANA:   Chair  I  am not  a lawyer but  what  I  know is 

that  Air  Chefs was going through the ret renchments 

processes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay al r ight .   I  am sorry.   Ms Mbanjwa you 

wanted to say something at  some stage or has i t  fa l len off  –  

fa l len away? 

ADV MBANJWA:   No Cha i r  what  I  thought  Ms Hofmeyr  

wou ld  re fer  us  to  i s  the  tender  document  tha t  had these  

cond i t ions  tha t  ob l ige  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh I  th ink  in  due course  she w i l l .   Okay  

a l r igh t .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   I  wou ld  l i ke  to  take  you to  the  cont rac t  

i t se l f .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Le t  us  f ind  i t .   That  i s  in  your  bund le  Ms 

Kwinana a t  DD – so  tha t  i s  Exh ib i t  DD33.   Cha i r  i t  is  under  

Tab 15 and so  tha t  s ta r ts  a t  page 154.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  
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ADV HOFMEYR:   You w i l l  see  tha t  tha t  was the  cont rac t  

tha t  was to  be  en tered in to .   I s  th is  a  cont rac t  you saw a t  

the  t ime Ms Kwinana?  

MS KWINANA:   A re  we s t i l l  on  A i r  Chefs  Cha i r?  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes.  

MS KWINANA:   In  DD33.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sor ry  I  cannot  hear  you.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   DD33 page 154 under  Tab 15.Do you 

have tha t  Ms Kwinana?  

MS KWINANA:   Yes Cha i r.  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:   So  tha t  i s  the  cont rac t  tha t  SAA was 

go ing  to  en ter  in to  w i th  LSG Sky Chefs .   D id  you see tha t  

a t  the  t ime? 

MS KWINANA:   No Cha i r.   As  I  sa id  the  board  was not  

respons ib le  to  see the  cont rac t .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Oh yes.  

MS KWINANA:   So  I  d id  no t  see the  cont rac t .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   I  remember  tha t .   But  what  Ms Mpshe 

sa id  t o  you in  tha t  emai l  o f  the  8  September  i s  exact ly  what  

the  Cha i r  has h igh l igh ted  and then I  w i l l  take  you to  the  20 

cont rac t  and where  i t  re fe rences Sect ion  187.   Le t  me jus t  

te l l  you  what  she sa id  in  tha t  emai l  o f  the  8  September.   

Ms Kwinana you can go there  i f  you  want  to  bu t  o therw ise  I  

w i l l  j us t  read i t  in to  the  reco rd .   I t  i s  where  we were  back 

in  DD19[a ]  a t  132 .12.   She says:  
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“There  a re  no t  job  losses emanat ing…” 

CHAIRPERSON:   That  i s  pa ragraph  7  hey?  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Parag raph 7  thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   A t  page 132.12.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Po in t  12 .   Exact ly.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    

“There  are  no  j ob  losses emanat ing  f rom 

the  award  o f  serv ices  to  LSG Sky  Chefs  as  

any impacted A i r  Chefs  employees w i l l  be  10 

t ransfer red  to  the  successfu l  b idder  as  per  

the  cond i t ions  se t  ou t  in  the  tender  

document  in  acco rdance w i th  Sect ion  197 o f  

the  Labour  Re la t ions Act  1995. ”  

And then jus t  fo r  good measure  so  tha t  we cou ld  see i t  in  

the  an t ic ipa ted  cont rac t  I  wanted to  take  you  to  the 

cont rac t  wh ich  I  have done a t  DD33 page 154.   I f  you  go 

r igh t  to  the  end o f  tha t  cont rac t  a t  page 179 you w i l l  see  

deta i led  c lause 25 imposes th is  cont rac tua l  ob l iga t ion  over  

and above the  lega l  ob l iga t ion  under  Sect ion  197.   So Ms 20 

Kwinana is  i t  s t i l l  your  ev idence  before  th is  commiss ion  

tha t  Ms Mpshe was quoted ly ing  to  the  board  o f  d i rec tors  

a t  SAA when she sa id  in  her  emai l  to  you on  the  8 

September  2016-  15  –  what  year  a re  we in  –  15  tha t  there  

were  go ing  to  be  no  job  losses?  
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MS KWINANA:   Cha i r  what  I  am say ing  is  the re  were  –  A i r  

Chefs  was go ing  th rough re t renchment  p rocess.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Bu t  no t  re la ted  Ms Kwinana  to  th is  

cont rac t .   Th i s  was lounge ca ter ing  serv ices .   Every  

employee o f  A i r  Chefs  who was ever  invo l ved in  lounge  

ca te r ing  serv ices  was go ing  to  move over  to  the  new 

supp l ie r.   How cou ld  tha t  poss ib ly  then be a  reason fo r  you 

to  re jec t  management ’s  dec is ion?  

MS KWINANA:   Cha i r  I  am say ing  A i r  Chefs  was go ing  

th rough re t renchments .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   P lease ra ise  your  vo ice  Ms Kwinana.  

MS KWINANA:   A i r  Chefs .   Cha i r  I  am say ing  A i r  Chefs  was  

go ing  th rough re t renchments .   And  in  fac t  th is  cont rac t  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Bu t  Ms Hofmeyr  i s  say ing  to  you 

whatever  re t renchments  A i r  Chefs  may have been go ing  

th rough i f  there  was any cou ld  no t  have ar i sen out  o f  th is  

because there  was proper  p rov is ion  fo r  the  employees  

under  th is  cont rac t  to  be  taken over  by  the  new cont rac tor.   

So i f  there  were  some re t renchments  or  le t te rs  o f  

re t renchments  tha t  may have been  g iven to  employees they 20 

probab ly  d id  no t  re la te  to  th i s .   That  i s  what  she i s  say ing .   

Now do you know whether  to  the  ex ten t  tha t  A i r  Chefs  may 

have been in  the  process o f  re t rench ing  some employees  

do you know whe ther  i t  was connected w i th  th is  o r  i t  cou ld  

have been connected w i th  someth ing  e lse?  
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MS KWINANA:   I t  was connected w i th  th is  Cha i r  because 

when we subsequent ly  reversed th is  award  o f  cou rse  the  

cont rac t  was no t  ye t  s igned.   But  when we eventua l l y  

reversed th is  award  the  re t renchments  d id  s top  so  wh ich  

means the re fo re  tha t  the  re t renchments  were  as  a  resu l t  o f  

th is  award .  

CHAIRPERSON:   So  –  so  tha t  was your  –  your  in fe rence 

f rom what  happened?  

MS KWINANA:   Yes Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Bu t  nobody eve r  sa id  to  you tha t  those 10 

re t renchments  were  connected o r  –  to  th is  award?  

MS KWINANA:   I t  was –  i t  was –  i t  was a  known fac t  Cha i r  

because A i r  Che fs  was c los ing  down and there fore  the  

re t renchments  were  re la ted  to  A i r  Chefs  be ing  c los ing  

down.  

CHAIRPERSON:   No i t  does not  fo l low –  i t  does not  fo l low.   

You may have thought  a t  tha t  t ime i t  fo l lowed because you  

might  no t  have known what  Sec t ion  197 o f  the  Labour  

Re la t ions  Act  says.    

You might  have thought  so  a t  tha t  t ime.   You see  20 

the  –  Sect ion  197 does not  a l low  tha t  to  happen.   Even i f  

an  employer  does not  inc lude i t  in  the  cont rac t  –  in  the  

agreement  employees a re  supposed to  be  taken over  by  

the  new cont rac to r.    

That  i s  par t  o f  what  the  Labour  Re la t ions Act  has  
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pu t  in  p lace  in  o rde r  to  p ro tec t  jobs  fo r  worke rs .   To  say 

when there  i s  a  new company coming to  do  a  job  tha t  your  

employer  has been do ing  o r  you have been do ing  fo r  your  

employer  the  workers  must  no t  su f fe r.   That  i s  the  

pro tec t ion  tha t  i s  there .   Ms Mban jwa you wanted to  say – 

ask  someth ing?  

ADV MBANJ WA:   Yes Cha i r  I  am not  a rgu ing  the  issue o f  

Sect ion  197 I  am not  a  labour  exper t  I  w i l l  f ree ly  admi t  tha t  

and I  know you are  f rom tha t  i s .   But  what  I  jus t  want  to  

po in t  ou t  i s  tha t  i f  one reads in  page D33 page  179 in  10 

paragraph 25.1  the  way tha t  pa ragraph is  cas t  i s  no t  in  the  

te rms tha t  has been read here .   I  w i l l  read i t  fo r  the  reco rd  

i t  says :  

CHAIRPERSON:   No do not  read i t  we can see i t .  

ADV MBANJ WA:   Oh okay thank you.   So … 

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  says  the  agreement  i s  sub jec t  to  the  

prov is ions o f  Sec t ion  197.  

ADV MBANJWA:   Yes.   And i t  does not  say  –  and  th is  i s  

very  impor tan t  fo r  a  board  member.   I t  d id  no t  say  tha t  i t  i s  

a  cond i t ion  o f  the  award  o f  th is  tender  tha t  a l l  employees  20 

o f  Sky Chefs  w i l l  be  taken over.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV MBANJWA:   I f  I  may be a l lowed to  f in ish  Cha i r.   And 

the  second most  impor tan t  th ing  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Sor ry  Ms … 
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ADV MBANJ WA:   I t  i s  d ra f ted  to  c rea te… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Sor ry  Ms Mban jwa.   That  i s  someth ing  

you can ra ise  in  re -examinat ion  or  a rgument .   I t  says  

sub jec t  to  Sect ion  197.   I f  you  go and read Sect ion  197 you  

w i l l  know tha t  –  you w i l l  know tha t  i t  w i l l  cover  a l l  

employees who were  do ing  the  job  tha t  w i l l  now be tak ing 

over  by  a  new company.   Ms Hofmeyr.  

ADV MBANJWA :   I  jus t  wan ted to  po in t  ou t  the  

indemni f i ca t ion  tha t  i f  i t  was so  t igh t  then there  wou ld  be  

no need to  pu t  in  an  indemni f i ca t ion . . .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Le t  us  cont inue Ms Hofmeyr.   P lease 

cont inue.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Thank you Cha i r.   I  jus t  want  to  do  the  

las t  dea l  w i th  the  las t  po in t .  You sa id  you were  concerned 

about  the  re t renchments  and you were  concerned about  the  

fac t  tha t  A i r  Chefs  was go ing  to  c lose  down i f  th is  bus iness  

went  to  LSG Sky Chefs ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:   Yes Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Wel l  Ms Mpshe to ld  you tha t  i t  was not  

go ing  to  c lose  down and you I  th ink  I  ra ised tha t  w i th  you 20 

ear l ie r  and you sa id  how cou ld  i t  no t  because SAA is  i t  

ma in  customer.   D id  I  have your  ev idence cor rec t l y?  

MS KWINANA:   Yes Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Bu t  you see what  Ms Mpshe went  in to  

some deta i l  to  te l l  you  in  those emai ls  we were  look ing  a t  
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p rev ious l y  i s  how smal l  a  percentage o f  A i r  Chefs  revenue  

th is  lounge serv ices  cont rac t  ac tua l l y  took up .   Do you  

remember  what  tha t  percentage was?  

MS KWINANA:   No.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   You see a t  page 132.14 wh ich  i s  in  the 

emai l  t ra i l  tha t  we were  look ing  a t  a t  DD19 she makes i t  

c lea r  and I  am read ing  under  po in t  1  on  tha t  page on the  

emai l  on  wh ich  you were  cop ied  on the  3  September  2015  

now.   She says:  

“The award  o f  the  lounge ca ter ing  cont rac t  10 

to  LSG does not  in  way a f fec t  the  cur ren t…”  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sor ry.  I  am sor ry.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Sor ry  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   D id  you say 132.13?  

ADV HOFMEYR:   14  so r ry  Cha i r  the  next  page.  

CHAIRPERSON:   14?  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   So  th is  i s  Ms Mpshe wr i t ing  to  amongst  

o thers  you Ms Kwinana  on the  3  September  2015 and  i t  i s  20 

addressed to  the  Cha i rperson but  you are  cop ied  on i t .   

And she dea ls  under  po in t  1  there  w i th  the  fo l low ing.   She 

says:  

“The award  o f  the  lounge ca ter ing  cont rac t  

to  LSG does not  in  any way a f fec t  the  
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cur ren t  p rocess be ing  under taken  to  d ives t  

A i r  Chefs .   The  lounge serv ice  cont rac t  

rep resents  4 .265% of  the  A i r  Chefs  to ta l  

annua l  revenue.   As  per  the  a t tached 

not i f i ca t ion  to  the  board  there  w i l l  be  

neg l ig ib le  revenue loss  fo r  A i r  Chefs  w i th  

an  es t imate  o f  R1.8  m i l l ion  ne t  per  annum 

to  A i r  Chefs  as  per  the  cur ren t  CVP and  

ra tes  re la ted  there to . ”  

So she is  communica t ing  there  to  as  I  unders tand the  s ta t  10 

i t  compr i ses  less  than 4 .3% of  the  A i r  Chefs  to ta l  revenue.   

I t  was a  neg l ig ib le  on  a l l  accounts  pa r t  o f  the  A i r  Chefs  

revenue and on ly  i t  was go ing  to  go  to  a  th i rd  par ty  

supp l ie rs .   So i t  was not  go ing  to  c lose  down because th is  

cont rac t  was go ing  to  LSG Sky Che fs ,  was i t?  

MS KWINANA:   I  a lso  do  not  t rus t  tha t .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   You do not  t rus t  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Sor ry.  

MS KWINANA:   Yes.   I  a lso  do  not  t rus t  tha t  –  tha t  i s  Ms 

Mpshe ’s  submiss ion  wh ich  I  do  no t  t rus t  Cha i r  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Do you not  accept  what  she says  namely  

tha t  the  revenue tha t  A i r  Chefs  wou ld  lose  by  reason o f  the  

fac t  tha t  th is  serv ice  wou ld  be  g i ven to  somebody e l se  was 

less  than 4 .3%.   Do you not  accep t  tha t?  

MS KWINANA:   I  wou ld  have to  aud i t  Cha i r  whatever  Ms 
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Mpshe is  say ing  I  do  no t  t rus t  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Okay.   You –  as  we –  as  you s i t  

there  you do not  know whethe r  i t  is  t rue  or  no t?  

MS KWINANA:   Yes Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Do you have a  reason not  to  accept  

i t?  

MS KWINANA:   I t  i s  because Cha i r  as  I  have sa id  she has 

suppressed a  lo t  o f  ev idence.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   But  she  wou ld  have wr i t ten  th is  

emai l  to  you a t  a  cer ta in  t ime.  I  wou ld  have imag ined tha t  10 

i f  you  saw th is  and you d id  no t  t rus t  i t  you  wou ld  have 

checked to  see whether  he r  f igure  was cor rec t?   D id  you do 

tha t?  

MS KWINANA:   Cha i r  tha t  emai l  was inconsequen t ia l  the  

reason be ing  tha t  a  tender  had  gone out  and we had 

a l ready heard  about  th is  th ing  in  Par l iament  and I  th ink  we  

a l ready had got  them to  cance l  i t .   So  bas i ca l l y  tha t  emai l  

was inconsequent ia l  to  me.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   No i t  cou ld  no t  have  been 

inconsequent ia l  i t  p receded your  dec is ion  to  cance l  the  20 

award .   I t  i s  your  ac t ing  Ch ie f  Execut ive  Off i cer  wr i t ing  to  

the  board  o f  SAA because she was drawn over  the  coa ls  on  

her  ev idence a f te r  tha t  address in  Par l iament  and to ld  she 

had to  account .   And she gave th i s  de ta i led  accoun t  on  the  

3  September  preced ing  the  board ’s  dec is ion  wh ich  comes 
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on  the  28  September  2015.  So I  pu t  i t  to  you Ms Kwinana i t  

was noth ing  less  o f  c r i t i ca l  fo r  you to  unders tand i t ,  

in te r rogate  i t  and make an in fo rmed dec is ion  on  i t .   What  i s  

your  response to  tha t?  

MS KWINANA:   Cha i r  Ms Mpshe had a l ready gone  out  to  

tender  i r regu la r ly  so  and there fore… 

CHAIRPERSON:   No,  no ,  no  Ms Kwinana p lease,  p lease,  

p lease you sa id  –  you sa id  th i s  emai l  was inconsequent ia l  

because you had  a l ready as  the  board  taken the  dec is ion  

tha t  the  award  shou ld  be  cance l led .  10 

MS KWINANA:   Cance l led .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Now Ms Hofmeyr  te l l s  you tha t  tha t  i s  

fac tua l l y  no t  t rue .   Th is  emai l  was before  the  board  made 

the  dec is ion .   The quest ion  now is  we go back  to  my 

quest ion .   You got  th is ,  you saw th is  emai l ,  you saw tha t  

Ms Mpshe was say ing  the  revenue tha t  A i r  Chefs  were  

go ing  to  lose  by  v i r tue  o f  th is  dec i s ion  to  award  the  

cont rac t  to  somebody e lse  was less  than 4 .3%.   I f  you  d id  

no t  agree w i th  tha t  d id  you check  whether  tha t  f igure  was  

cor rec t  o r  no t  and i f  i t  was not  what  was the  co r rec t  f igure?  20 

D id  you check tha t?  

MS KWINANA:   Cha i r  Ms Mpshe had a l ready gone  out  to  

tende… 

CHAIRPERSON:   No answer  –  my quest ion  i s  d id  you 

check whether  what  the  cor rec t  f igure  was i f  you  d id  no t  
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t rus t  th is  f igure?  That  i s  my quest ion .  

MS KWINANA:   No Cha i r  I  d id  no t  check i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Why d id  you not  i f  you  d id  no t  t rus t  i t?  

MS KWINANA:   I t  was because –  i t  i s  because I  do  no t  

even t rus t  whatever  he  sa id  a f te r  she awarded the  cont rac t  

to  a  fo re ign  company.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Bu t  tha t  i s  p rec i se l y  the  reason why you 

shou ld  check i f  you  do not  t rus t  her.   I f  you  t rus ted  her  you  

d id  no t  have to  check.   But  i f  you  d id  no t  t rus t  her  as  you 

say you d id  no t  tha t  i s  a l l  the  more  reason why you  shou ld  10 

check whether  she has go t  the  f igu re  r igh t?  

MS KWINANA:   Cha i r  she  had a l ready awarded the  tender  

i r regu lar l y  so .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Bu t  you are  about  to  reverse  tha t  i f  you  

were  no t  sa t is f ied  w i th  her  mot iva t ion .   Now why  d id  you 

not  check i f  you  d id  no t  t rus t  th is  f igure?  

MS KWINANA:   Cha i r  I  d id  no t  see any reason fo r  me to 

check.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Is  the posi t ion that  i t  d id not  matter  what  

she said? 20 

MS KWINANA :    Actual ly . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    You were not  interested.   You are simply 

going to reverse to say – the decision.   Is that  what you are 

saying? 

MS KWINANA :    Chai r,  what I  said is.   The fact  that  
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Ms Mpshe preferred a foreign company at  the expense of  the 

local  company.   At  the expense of  a hundred percent  

subsidiary company.   I  lost  conf idence in her,  unfortunately.  

CHAIRPERSON :    For that  reason,  you were not  in terested 

in whatever mot ivat ion she put  before you.   Is that  r ight? 

MS KWINANA :    Chai r,  I  have seen Ms Mpshe suppressing 

evidence in th is important  . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ms Kwinana, I  am asking you a very 

simple quest ion.   Did you not  care whatever mot ivat ion 

Ms Mpshe placed before you in order before you could take 10 

the decision whether  to reverse the decision or  not?  Did you 

not  care whatever  she said? 

MS KWINANA :    She would wri te  Chai r  a mot ivat ion 

according to her.   She would wri te a mot ivat ion accord ing to  

her.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  th ink i t  is the fact  . . . [ intervenes]   

MS KWINANA :    The fact  that  . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ms Kwinana.  Ms Kwinana, I  th ink i t  is the 

thi rd t ime I  am asking you this quest ion.   I  am going to ask 

you for the fourth t ime and i t  is the last  t ime.  Is the posi t ion 20 

that  you d id not  care whatever  mot ivat ion Ms Mpshe placed 

before you?  You were not  interested in her mot ivat ion? 

MS KWINANA :    Not  af ter  I  fe l t  that  she had bet rayed the 

contract  the way she did.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay the answer is,  you were not  
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interested.   Ms Hofmeyr,  cont inue.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Your evidence was,  you did not  t rust  her 

af ter she preferred a foreign company over a local  

subsidiary.   Is that  correct? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    She did not  prefer a foreign company over  

a local  subsidiary.   An ent i re tender process was run in  

which A ir  Chefs was a compet ing tenderer.   Did you know 

that? 

MS KWINANA :    That  was even wrong Chai r.  10 

ADV HOFMEYR :    No,  the quest ion is.   Did you see know 

that  Ai r  Chefs competed in the tender? 

MS KWINANA :    That  was not  even supposed to happen l ike 

that .  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  Ms Kwinana.   The quest ions is.   Did 

you know that  or not? 

MS KWINANA :    Chai r,  I  am not  going to answer yes or not .   

But  I  am . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    But  you ei ther knew or you did not  know.   

Or is the posi t ion that  you do not  know whether you knew? 20 

MS KWINANA :    Chai r,  that  tender did  not  go to  the board 

and therefore I  d id not  know that  there was a tender going 

on.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay al r ight .  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Wel l ,  she told you in her notes in  
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September and back in August  that  . . . [ intervenes]   

MS KWINANA :    Chai r,  in September that  tender was 

. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ms Kwinana, wai t  unt i l  the quest ion is 

complete,  please.   Wait  unt i l  the quest ion is complete.  

MS KWINANA :    Sorry,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    The reason why you are end up answering 

quest ions that  have not  been asked is  because you do not  

l isten when a quest ion is be ing asked or  you interrupt  

Ms Hofmeyr before she completes her quest ion.   Just  l isten 10 

careful ly,  let  her  f in ish her quest ion and then you can 

answer.   

MS KWINANA :    Sorry,  Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    You see,  Ms Kwinana.  You are absolute ly 

r ight .   The board was not  not i f ied before the process.   That  

is because i t  fe l l  wi th in the delegated author i ty of  st ructures 

below the board.   What  happened is,  you at tend the 

par l iament on the 2n d  of  September.    

 This issue was raised and then the CEO was cal led to  

account for what had happened because there was an 20 

al legat ion that  th is was somehow irregular because i t  had 

gone to a foreign company.   Right .    

 What she does and she then respond to you and she 

tel ls you about the tender process that  was run.   You 

conf i rmed having read her emai ls.   Is that  correct? 
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MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.    

ADV HOFMEYR :    And what she said there is the fol lowing.   I  

am now back at  page 132.12,  paragraph 6.   She says:  

“As per the board not i f icat ion of  20 August  2015. . .  

 I  understand you were – you did not  t rust  that  document.   

I  mean, she repeatedly refers to the memorandum that  she 

has al ready provided in these emai ls.  

“ I  suggested to her i f  there was any ambigui ty about  

that ,  somebody would have picked i t  up.   I  do not  

see that  in these emai ls.   Nonetheless. . . ”  10 

 She says.    

“As per the board not i f icat ion on 20 August  2015,  

responses to the RFP were received f rom Ai r  Chefs,  

LSD Sky Chefs and Newrest .   A lawful  and duly 

const i tuted procurement process was fol lowed in  

respect  of  which al l  received responses were 

properly evaluated.  

In th is regard,  i t  must  be noted that  Air  Chefs fai led 

to the meet the minimum threshold for evaluat ion in  

the tender and was lawful ly  precluded f rom 20 

proceeding to further stages of  evaluat ion. ”  

 Ms Kwinana, I  draw that  to your at tent ion because you 

said i t  is Ms Mpshe who preferred the foreign company.   And 

I  put  i t  to you,  i t  was not  Ms Mpshe who preferred the fore ign 

company.   Ai r  Chefs fai led to move passed the f i rst  stage of  
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a lawful ly and procedural ly fa i r  process.   What is your 

response to that? 

MS KWINANA :    I  am saying Chai r.   That  tender was 

i rregular for the reasons I  have just  ment ioned.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Ms Kwinana . . . [ in tervenes]   

MS KWINANA :    I t  was not  -  i t  was supposed to go to that  

stage.   I t  was not  even . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ms Kwinana.. . [ intervenes]   

MS KWINANA :    Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ms Kwinana, you are being asked a 10 

quest ion about what is wri t ten here in paragraph 6,  namely 

the reason why Ai r  Chefs did not  get  the tender even though 

i t  was one of  the tenderers.    

 I t  was that  i t  fa i led to meet a lawful  requirement,  certain  

lawful  requi rements.   Minimum, basic minimum.  That  is what  

is being said to you.   

 Do you accept  that  that  is why Ai r  Chefs did not  get  the 

tender as opposed to saying i t  was Ms Mpshe who just  

preferred to give the tender to another company?  You 

accept  that? 20 

MS KWINANA :    No,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    You do not  accept  that  Ai r  Chefs fai led to  

meet a basic requirement? 

MS KWINANA :    Not  even that  Chair.   Even before that .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes but  let  us talk about  th is one 
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. . . [ intervenes]   

MS KWINANA :    . . .was supposed to have been arr ived at .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Let  us talk about  th is one.   Do you not  

accept  that  . . . [ intervenes]   

MS KWINANA :    No,  Chai r.   No,  no.  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .A ir  Chefs fai led to meet th is  

requi rement? 

MS KWINANA :    No,  Chair  I  do not  accept  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Have you checked whether they did or  

they did not? 10 

MS KWINANA :    Chai r,  that  tender to be where i t  is,  was not  

even supposed to be . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  no,  no.   I  am talk ing . . . [ intervenes]   

MS KWINANA :    I t  was not  even supposed to happen.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Th is requirement . . . [ intervenes]   

MS KWINANA :    Why would I  check Chai r  someth ing that  

was i rregular,  that  was not  even supposed to happen? 

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am talk ing about th is requi rement .   Have 

you checked whether – when Ms Mpshe says Air  Chefs fai led 

to meet a basic requirement,  whether that  is factual ly t rue?  20 

Did you check that  at  the t ime?  Have you checked that  

subsequent ly?   

MS KWINANA :    Chai r,  my answer is st i l l .   Why would I  

check i f  the process was not  even supposed to happen? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ms Kwinana, I  am going to t ry the best  I  
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can to be fai r  to you as a wi tness because I  t ry to be fai r  to 

al l  wi tnesses.   When I  evaluate evidence,  I  need to evaluate,  

among other th ings,  what type of  a wi tness you were.    

 And i f  I  make a f inding that  is very adverse to  you as a 

wi tness,  that  might  have far- reaching impl icat ions for  you 

professional ly.    

 P lease,  take my guidance.   L isten to quest ions.   Answer 

those quest ions.   I  go back to my quest ion.   When Ms Mpshe 

says,  Ai r  Chefs d id not  meet a basic requirement.   Do you 

know whether she is r ight  or not  r ight  or do you not  know? 10 

MS KWINANA :    I  do not  know Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay al r ight .   Ms Hofmeyr.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Thank you.   Ms Kwinana,  why do you keep 

saying LSD Sky Chefs is a foreign company? 

MS KWINANA :    I t  is because our understanding is that  LSD 

Sky Chefs is a subsidiary of  Luf thansa.   Luf thansa,  our  

understanding,  is a German company.    

ADV HOFMEYR :    And – but  were you aware at  the t ime that  

LSD Sky Chefs is  a local ly incorporated company,  paying tax 

here and purchasing i ts product  and do i ts serv ic ing here 20 

wi th local  suppl iers? 

MS KWINANA :    My understanding Chair  of  LSD Sky Chefs 

is that  i t  is a Luf thansa subsidiary company.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    No,  that  was not  my quest ion.   I  said,  

were you aware that  i t  is a local ly incorporated company that  
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pays tax here and that  was der iv ing i ts  services and 

products local ly?  Were you aware of  those facts? 

MS KWINANA :    Chai r,  my quest ion – my answer is.   What I  

knew is that  LSD Sky Chefs . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sorry.   Look this side Ms Kwinana so 

I  can hear your answer.  

MS KWINANA :    Chai r.   No,  I  am saying Chai r.   What I  knew 

is that  LSD Sky Chefs is a hundred percent  owned subsidiary 

of  Luf thansa.   And Luf thansa is a compet i tor of  SAA.   

CHAIRPERSON :    In other words,  you did not  – you were not  10 

aware of  what she has just  put  to you? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Because the quest ion is whether you were 

aware of  that? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.   I  was not  aware.   I  am now 

aware.   However,  my awareness now has not  changed what I  

was think ing then.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

MS KWINANA :    I t  has not  changed at  a l l .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay al r ight .  20 

ADV HOFMEYR :    So on your reasoning,  Swissport  South 

Afr ica is also a fore ign company,  correct? 

MS KWINANA :    [No audible reply]   

MS MBANJWA :    Sorry,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  Ms Mbanjwa. 
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MS MBANJWA :    I  do not  want to waste t ime.  But  i f  

Ms Hofmeyr is going to make these statements l ike saying i t  

is paying tax here and there is no evidence of  that .   How are 

we supposed to t reat  that  evidence? 

ADV HOFMEYR :    Asking whether Ms Kwinana was aware of  

certain facts.   That  is the basis of  the quest ion Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    [microphone on mute]  

ADV HOFMEYR :    I  wi l l  ask the quest ion.   On your reasoning 

then,  Swissport  South Af r ica is a fore ign company,  correct? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.    10 

ADV HOFMEYR :    Yes.   And you approved more than one 

bi l l ion rand going f rom SAA going to  a foreign company then,  

correct? 

MS KWINANA :    I  d id not  approve that  Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    You did in  the resolut ion of  the 

14t h of  March 2016 when you approved the contract  for f ive 

years to Swisspor t  to provide ground handl ing services which 

were going to be to the value of  more than a bi l l ion rand.  

MS KWINANA :    Chai r,  let  me explain and t ry to  explain 

maybe for the thi rd t ime now how this cont ract  happened.  I  20 

know that  you are saying I  must  not  refer to  2012 but  I  need 

to refer to i t  because the award was made in 2012.   

 And in 2016, we were approv ing the terms and 

condi t ions.   The award was done and i t  fo l lowed a proper 

process.   That  is number one.    
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 And number two.   You cannot compare Swissport  and Air  

Chefs.   With Swissport ,  I  d id ta lk about  a l icense and I  d id 

ta lk about  the fact  that  the reason why SAA Technical  would 

not  perform the funct ion that  they wanted to perform.  I t  is 

because they did not  have a l icence.    

 And therefore,  you just  cannot compare Swissport  and 

LSD Sky Chefs.   You are compar ing two di fferent  th ings.   

That  is number one.    

 Number two.   I  d id not  award the contract .   I  was part  of  

the board that  approved the terms and condi t ions.    10 

ADV HOFMEYR :    Ms Kwinana, I  am just  pushing,  you know,  

your analyses of  LSD Sky Chefs being a foreign company 

and put t ing to you,  is i t  not  put t ing Swissport  South Afr ica in  

the same posi t ion?   

 I  do not  real ly want to go back to  Swissport  because we 

have fel t  wi th that .   But  you d id say something a moment ago 

is inconsistent  wi th your evidence ear l ier.    

 And so in fa i rness to you,  I  must  put  i t  to you.   You t r ied 

to just i fy the award in 2016 . . . [ intervenes]   

MS KWINANA :    There was no award Chair  in 2016 20 

. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Wait  Ms Kwinana.  Ms Hofmeyr has not  

f in ished to put  her  quest ion to you.   Just  wai t .  

MS KWINANA :    Sorry,  Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    I f  I  understand your evidence.   You 
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just i f ied the cont ract  that  was given to Swissport  in March of  

2016 on the basis that  a tender process had al ready been 

fol lowed in 2012 that  was regular.   Is that  correct? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Yes.   You see the problem with that  

answer Ms Kwinana is that ,  ear l ier today you told us that  

your recol lect ion of  the 10t h of  February 2016 meet ing wi th 

Swissport  was that  you were going there to te l l  them that  a  

proper tender process had to be fol lowed.  

MS KWINANA :    Yes.  10 

ADV HOFMEYR :    Do you remember giving that  evidence? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    That  is ent i re ly inconsistent  wi th the 

vers ion you had just  given which is that  the tender process 

had already been taken care of  way back in 2012.  Do you 

have a response to that  contradict ion? 

MS KWINANA :    The ci rcumstances Chair  are di fferent .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sorry? 

MS KWINANA :    The ci rcumstances are di fferent .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l  . . . [ intervenes]   20 

MS KWINANA :    You cannot . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  th is is what  Ms Hofmeyr is saying to  

you.   She is saying,  you said ear l ier that  you went to that  

meet ing to te l l  Swissport  that  an open tender would have to 

be fol lowed.  
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MS KWINANA :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay? 

MS KWINANA :    H’m? 

CHAIRPERSON :    But  she says when you say now the 

contract  had been awarded in 2012,  that  would mean a 

tender process had already been fol lowed.   Therefore,  you 

could not  ta lk about  having to fo l low a tender process when 

i t  had al ready been fol lowed.  That is what she is put t ing to  

you.   She is saying,  there is a  conf l ict ,  a cont radict ion 

between these two things that  you are saying.   What  do you 10 

say to that? 

MS KWINANA :    I  am saying Chai r,  Air  Chefs is a hundred 

percent  subsidiary of  SAA.  And the Swissport  is not  a  

subsidiary of  SAA.  So basical ly,  that  is  why I  am saying that 

tender should not  even have happened, the tender of  Ai r  

Chefs.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  let  us take i t  step by step because I  

do not  understand what you are saying as being an answer 

to Ms Hofmeyr ’s quest ion.   Do you accept  that  there is a  

contradict ion between the two things you have said?  Maybe 20 

you say there is an explanat ion for the cont radict ion but  you 

accept  that  there is a cont radict ion? 

MS KWINANA :    There must  be contradict ions Chai r  

. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  
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MS KWINANA :    . . .because the ci rcumstances are di f ferent .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay so you say there is just i f icat ion for 

the contradict ion.   And what are the ci rcumstances that  make 

i t  d i fferent? 

MS KWINANA :    A ir  Chefs,  Chai r  is  a hundred percent  owned 

subsidiary of  SAA and Ai r  Chefs was phoned to cater for 

SAA.  And therefore,  i f  there is something wrong with Ai r  

Chefs that  needed to be corrected by SAA.   That  is point  

number one.   And point  . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Corrected in what way? 10 

MS KWINANA :    L ike as Ms Mpshe was saying there were 

complaints in respect  of  their  services.   So SAA as the 

holding company of  Air  Chefs was supposed to correct  that  

instead of  going out  to tender because the reason for  the 

format ion of  Air  Chefs is  the same as the reason for  the 

format ion of  SAA Technical .   So that  means . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    But  . . . [ intervenes]   

MS KWINANA :    So that  means,  the services of  A ir  Chefs 

were mainly made for  SAA.  So basical ly,  the relat ionship 

. . . [ intervenes]   20 

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am going to interrupt  you Ms Kwinana 

because I  do not  want us to  take too long on someth ing that  

I  do not  understand.   You accept  that  i f  the tender process 

had been fol lowed in 2012, there would have been no basis 

in 2015 for  you to say there is go ing to be an open tender 
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process on the same thing?   

MS KWINANA :    That  is why Chai r  . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  no.   Do you accept  that  there would 

have been no basis for i t  to say that? 

MS KWINANA :    Sorry,  what is i t  that  I  accept? 

CHAIRPERSON :    I f  a tender process had been fol lowed in 

2012.  

MS KWINANA :    Yes? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Do you accept  that  in 2015 and i f  i t  was 

the same thing,  there would have been no basis for  you to 10 

say this must  go to an open tender in 2015 because open 

tender had al ready been fol lowed. 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.   There would no basis for i t  

. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MS KWINANA :    . . . to place on open tender.  

CHAIRPERSON :    So why did you say that? 

MS KWINANA :    That  would depend Chair  when that  2012 

tender would expire.   And therefore,  i f  that  tender would 

expire.   Now then that  would have to go out  to tender.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   But  in th is case – so why did you 

say i t  would have to go to open tender?  Is i t  because i t  had 

expired? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.   When we looked at  2012 and 

we are now in 2016, I  th ink i t  was a f ive year tender,  then i t  
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would have to go out  to tender.    

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  f rom 2012 to 2015 is not  f ive years 

Ms Kwinana.   

MS KWINANA :    To 2016.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Even to 2016.  

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  but  remember Chair  . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    And you know the numbers.   We are a 

chartered accountant .    

MS KWINANA :    Remember Chai r,  the tender process takes 

long and therefore,  i f  the 2012, 13/14/15/16 then the other  10 

six months of  the year would have to be used for the tender.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ms Hofmeyr.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Chai r,  I  th ink i t  is important  just  to record 

at  th is point  that  we would l ikely argue in due course that  

Ms Kwinana’s evidence today is evasive.   There have been 

numerous occasions on which simple quest ions have been 

put  to her and the answers not  shor t  of  evasive.    

 Ms Kwinana, th is  quest ion has nothing to do wi th Air  

Chefs.   I t  is about  a contradict ion in the evidence you have 

given today,  explaining the Swissport  agreement.   So I  do 20 

need to say that .    

 Do you have anything in response to the submission that  

your evidence today is evasive? 

MS KWINANA :    Wel l ,  Chai r  i t  is evasive to you but  I  do not 

see i t  as being evasive to you.  
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ADV HOFMEYR :    Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  Ms Mbanjwa. 

MS MBANJWA :    Chai r,  maybe I  need to respond to that  k ind 

of  argument that  Ms Hofmeyr wants to put .  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  you do not  respond to argument now.   

You can deal  wi th  the argument later.   The reason why she 

has to put  to her  is to be fai r  to her.   But  you can later on 

present  argument  that  says Ms Hofmeyr ’s submission in th is 

regard is wrong and has no basis and is not  just i f ied by the 

answers that  Ms Kwinana has given.   But  that  is for later,  not  10 

now.  

MS MBANJWA :    No,  thank you Chai r.   I  am not  responding 

to the argument.   I  am just  responding to something.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Is that? 

MS MBANJWA :    Yes.   I  th ink Chai r,  you wi l l  recal l  that  just  

before we took the break,  there was a confusion about a 

quest ion.   And then I  said i f  we can seek clar i f icat ion.   Chai r,  

you agree that  we can seek clar i f icat ion.   What is confusing 

this wi tness – and I  am just  advising Ms Hofmeyr that  in 

future she can be careful .   What she does,  she takes one 20 

l ine of  quest ion ing and then she jumps.   

 L ike for instance,  there was a t ime here when we were 

referred to an aff idavi t .   I  bat t le to f ind the aff idavi t .   There 

was no aff idavi t .   I t  was actual ly an emai l .    

 And then secondly,  she moved to the issue of  the 
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audi tor.   I  th ink i t  is Mr Mutule.   And then when we were 

l istening to what is going to happen to this audi tor,  she 

jumps.   

 So what I  am trying to  say is.   The wi tness is not  be ing 

evasive but  she is  . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  you are present ing argument on 

whether she is be ing evasive or not  Ms Mbanjwa.  I  said the 

t ime is not  now for that .   I t  is for later.   Okay.   Let  us 

proceed Ms Hofmeyr.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Thank you,  Chair.   We would just  l ike to  10 

conclude the Air  Chefs aspect .   We have been looking at  

those,  that  chain of  emai ls Ms Kwinana.  And we were at  the 

point  where the Chair  was quest ioning whether you had ever 

taken up the issues that  you regarded as l ies in Ms Mpshe’s 

submission.   And I  understand you to have said,  you did not ,  

for example,  go and check the 4.265%.  Is that  r ight? 

MS KWINANA :    No,  Ms Mpshe l ies.   They . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Look this side Ms Kwinana so I  can hear.    

MS KWINANA :    Sorry,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Look this side so that  I  can hear what you 20 

are saying.  

MS KWINANA :    I  am saying Chai r.   Ms Mpshe l ies start  f rom 

. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ms Kwinana . . . [ in tervenes]   

MS KWINANA :    . . . issuing of  the tender.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    That  is not  about . . .  that  is not  the answer 

to the quest ion.   Ms Hofmeyr is asking you to  conf i rm 

whether her recol lect ion of  what you said is correct .   So you 

need to say yes your recol lect ion is correct  or no i t  is not  

correct .  

ADV HOFMEYR :    But  the quest ion was.   You did not  go and 

check the 4.265%? 

MS KWINANA :    I  d id not  have to.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Yes.   You d id respond to Ms Kwinana(sic)  

though.  Oh, sorry.   To Ms Mpshe’s emai l  in which she 10 

referenced the 4.265%.  In which she told you that  the 

company was a local  South Af r ican company.   In which she 

told you that  people were going to  be retained.   And you did 

that  on the basis that  she commit ted t reason.   Do you 

remember that?   

MS KWINANA :    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    H’m.  And you wanted her to be 

invest igated by the SIU.  Do you remember that? 

MS KWINANA :    I  st i l l  do Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    You st i l l  do? 20 

MS KWINANA :    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Right .   I  guess consistency is a  vi r tue.   

Ms Kwinana,  th is  must  have been a very di ff icul t  t ime at  the 

board?  You had no t rust  in your act ing CEO.  Is that  

correct? 
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MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    You bel ieve that  she was ly ing to you.   Is 

that  correct? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.    

ADV HOFMEYR :    Did you go back to her  and say:   Give me 

the nuts and bol ts  of  the 4.265% that  you put  in your emai l .  

MS KWINANA :    She did not  even have to start  there Chai r.   

She . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV HOFMEYR :    No,  my quest ion is Ms Kwinana is,  d id you 

go back to her and say:   Give me evidence of  the 4.265%. 10 

MS KWINANA :    Chai r,  she would have to start  f rom the 

evidence that  Ai r  Chefs was producing . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ms Kwinana . . . [ in tervenes]   

ADV HOFMEYR :    Ms Kwinana . . . [ in tervenes]   

MS KWINANA :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ms Kwinana, the quest ion is,  d id you ask 

her to give you evidence support ing the f igure that  she put  

in?  Yes or no?  Did you ask her  for the evidence or 

substant iat ion? 

MS KWINANA :    Chai r,  the answer cannot be yes or no.    20 

CHAIRPERSON :    But  i t  has to be.   Or i f  i t  is not  yes or no,  i t  

can be:   I  do not . . .   I  cannot remember whether I  asked her  

or not .  

MS KWINANA :    No but  st i l l  i t  cannot be that  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Why i t  cannot be? 
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MS KWINANA :    The reason Chair  why i t  cannot be any of  

those? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Why? 

MS KWINANA :    Is because,  I  said f rom the beginning that  

th is was not  even suppose to go out  to tender.  

CHAIRPERSON :    But  that  is not  . . . [ intervenes]   

MS KWINANA :    . . . for any . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ms Kwinana . . . [ in tervenes]   

MS KWINANA :    . . .proof  af ter that  . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ms Kwinana, that  is  not  what the evidence 10 

leader wants to  know.   Please stop t ry ing to give the 

evidence leader,  t ry ing to give me what I  – what she has not  

asked.   She is asking you a very simple quest ion.    

 When you read the memo from Ms Mpshe where she said 

the revenue that  Air  Chefs were going to lose i f  th is contract  

was – this business was given to somebody else,  was less 

than 4.3%.  Did you ask her,  e i ther  to give you evidence to 

prove that  or any substant iat ion? 

MS KWINANA :    Chai r,  I  am not  go ing to say yes or no.   I  am 

going to say the process was f lawed f rom the beginning.   20 

CHAIRPERSON :    So you. . .   Do you know whether you did 

ask her or not? 

MS KWINANA :    Chai r,  the process was f lawed f rom the 

beginning.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Ms Kwinana, I  am.. .   I  do not  know how I  
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can explain this to you.   You are not  doing a service to  

yoursel f .   You are not  doing just ice to yoursel f .   You are a 

professional .   You are chartered accountant .   Cl ients out  

there t rust  that  you can do your work as a chartered 

accountant  proper ly.    

 I  do not  know how many t imes I  have explained simple 

things and t r ied in order to be fai r  to you,  to say:   Please,  

just  answer the quest ions that  are being asked.    

 Now you cannot te l l  me whether you know or you do not  

know whether you asked Ms Mpshe to substant iate her f igure 10 

or to give you evidence.    

 You keep on want ing to te l l  me something I  d id not  ask.   

I t  is not  going to be good for you as a wi tness.   And i f  I  am 

going – i f  I  make an adverse f ind ing against  you as a wi tness 

i t  could have far-reaching impl icat ions for you professional ly.    

 So I  am asking you again.   Please,  just  l isten to  the 

quest ions.   Try and answer the quest ion.   I f  you do not  know 

say:   I  do not  know.  I t  is okay.   I f  Ms Hofmeyr accepts that  

you are genuinely saying you do not  know, she wi l l  not  

bother you to chal lenge that .   But  i f  she thinks you are not  20 

being genuine,  she wi l l  ask you further.    

 But  for your own sake,  please just  l isten to quest ions 

and t ry  and answer the quest ions that  are being asked.   Do 

not  te l l  me something that  you think I  want to  know which 

has not  been asked.    
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 When I  want to know that ,  I  wi l l  ask you.   Ms Hofmeyr 

wi l l  ask you.   Okay Ms Hofmeyr cont inue.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Thank you,  Chair.   Ms Kwinana, did you 

consider the advice that  had been put  together by the h ighly 

qual i f ied lawyers in the legal  department of  SAA about th is  

award? 

MS KWINANA :    Yes,  Chai r.    

ADV HOFMEYR :    You did.   Did you not ice in that  advice that  

you were warned that  i f  you were to  reverse the award  o f  the  

tender  tha t  wou ld  l i ke ly  be  inva l i d  and not  in  compl iance  10 

w i th  the  Promot ion  o f  Admin i s t ra t i ve  Just ice  Act .  

MS KWINANA:    Cha i r,  f rom Cape Town I  asked Ms 

F ike lepe i f  the  award  le t te r  has been sent  to  Sky Che fs  and 

she sa id  no  tha t  has no t  been sen t  to  Sky Chefs .   So tha t  

was a l so  –  tha t  a lso  gave me some comfor t  tha t  SAA is  no t  

go ing  to  incur  unnecessary  or  be  exposed to  unnecessary  

l i t iga t ion .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  can I  jus t  be  c lea r?   Your  ev idence 

now is  tha t  Ms F i ke lepe to ld  you the  le t te r  o f  award  had 

not  been sent ,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  20 

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Why d id  you then re fer  to  cance l l ing  the  

award  in  your  own emai l?  

MS KWINANA:    Cance l l ing  the  dec is ion  to  award .    The 

le t te r  –  the  award  was a l ready made,  the  le t te r  was not  ye t  
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sent .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Wel l ,  tha t  i s  no t  t rue  fac tua l l y.   We wi l l  

ge t  the  le t te r  sho r t l y.   But  I  wou ld  jus t  l i ke  to  focus on  the  

lawyer ’s  adv i ce ,  r igh t?   Because the  lawyer ’s  adv i ce  tha t  

came th rough and you sa id  you read says th is  p rocess was  

lawfu l  and procedura l l y  fa i r  and i f  the  board  now conc ludes  

to  cance l  i t  then …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Sor ry,  i s  there  someth ing  say ing  

anyth ing?  

MS MBANJWA:    Yes.  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:    That  there  w i l l  be  poss ib le  lega l  ac t ion  

and f inanc ia l  exposure  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Sor ry,  Ms Hofmeyr.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Oh,  sor ry,  Cha i r.  

MS MBANJWA:    Sor ry,  Cha i r,  Ms Hofmeyr  has jus t  made a  

s ta tement  tha t  i t  is  no t  t rue  tha t  the  award  le t te r,  accord ing  

to  the  tes t imony o f  Ms Kwinana,  had gone out .   Can she  

p lease g i ve  tha t  ev idence?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wai t ,  Ms Mban jwa,  she has no t  f in ished.   

You in te r rup t  wh i le  she is  busy w i th  her  quest ion .   Jus t  20 

wa i t .  

MS MBANJWA:    Cha i r,  I  do  no t  want  to  o f fend you,  she 

had le f t  tha t  ques t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    P lease –  you know,  she had not  f in ished,  

g ive  her  t ime,  i t  m igh t  no t  be  now,  i t  m igh t  be  la te r,  jus t  
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g ive  her  t ime to hand le  –  to  dea l  w i th  the  –  to  quest ion  

your  c l ien t  they way she sees f i t  and a t  a  cer ta in  s tage i f  

she has no t  re fe r red  to  tha t  and i t  i s  impor tan t  you can 

ra ise  tha t  bu t  …[ in tervenes]  

MS MBANJWA:    Thank you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    She was s t i l l  i n  the  m idd le  o f  her  

quest ion .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  the  lega l  adv ice  f rom the  h igh ly  

qua l i f ied  lawyers  in  the  SAA lega l  depar tment  was  tha t  i f  

you  were  to  cance l  the  award  to  LSG Sky Chefs  tha t  wou ld  10 

l i ke ly  resu l t  in  poss ib le  lega l  ac t ion  and f inanc ia l  exposure  

to  SAA.   Were  you aware  o f  tha t  a t  the  t ime? 

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes and why were  you not  persuaded by  

tha t?  

MS KWINANA:    As  I  sa id ,  Cha i r,  I  asked Ms F ike lepe i f  the 

award  le t te r  has been g iven and the  answer  was no and in  

te rms o f  l i t i ga t ion  and f inanc ia l  l oss ,  I  th ink  I  d id  address 

tha t  be fore  because a lso  i f  A i r  Chefs  was go ing  to  c lose ,  

as  I  unders tand,  tha t  wou ld  a l so  resu l t  in  f inanc ia l  losses  20 

anyway.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Cha i r  –  o r  le t  me ask f i rs t ,  sor ry.   Ms  

Kwinana,  do  you  know tha t  LSG Sky Chefs  d id  sue SAA 

ar is ing  f rom th is  cance l la t ion?  

MS KWINANA:    Ass i s ted  by  Ms Mpshe.  
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ADV HOFMEYR:    No,  tha t  i s  no t  the  quest ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Do you know whether  they sued  or  no t ,  

Ms Kwinana?  

MS KWINANA:    The t ime I  le f t  SAA they had not  ye t  sued.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  do  you know whether  they 

…[ in tervenes]  

MS KWINANA:    That  i s  why I  am say ing  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Do you know whether  they …[ in te rvenes]  

MS KWINANA:    Or  maybe le t  me say most  p robab ly.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Do you know whether  they sued whethe r  10 

be fore  you le f t  SAA or  a f te r?  

MS KWINANA:    They d id  no t  sue when I  was a t  SAA.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Do you know as  you s i t  there?  

MS KWINANA:    No.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Whethe r  they sued or  no t?  

MS KWINANA:    No,  I  do  no t  know,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And so  you sa id  you ca l led  her  f rom 

Cape Town.   I s  tha t  a  re ference to  when you were  a t  

par l iament?  20 

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And tha t  was on  the  2  September  2015.  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Wel l ,  the  le t te r  o f  award  was s igned on  

the  21  August  2015.   So Ms F ike lepe was jus t  l y ing  to  you  
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tha t  an  award  had –  a  le t te r  had gone out ,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MS KWINANA:    I t  may have been s igned,  Cha i r,  bu t  no t  

submi t ted  to  LSG.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    That  i s  in te res t ing  because LSG Sky  

Chefs ’ own par t i cu la rs  in  the  c la im tha t  they brought  

aga ins t  SAA re fe rs  to  tha t  le t te r  on  the  21  Augus t  2015.   

How do you know,  Ms Kwinana,  tha t  i t  was not  sent  to  

them?  

MS KWINANA:    I  am say ing  i t  may have been s igned but  

no t  ye t  sent  to  them.  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:    Bu t  i t  i s  a t tached to  the i r  own pa r t i cu la rs  

o f  c la im.  

MS KWINANA:    What  i s  a t tached to  the  par t i cu la rs  o f  

c la im?  I  have …[ in tervenes]  

ADV HOFMEYR:    The le t te r  o f  the  21  August  2015.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Maybe,  Ms Hofmeyr,  jus t  to  be  sure  tha t  

Ms Kwinana is  on  the  same page.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Cer ta in ly.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Exp la in  the  pa r t i cu la rs  o f  c la im to  he r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    R igh t .   So when LSG Sky Che fs  sued 20 

SAA –  I  accept  a f te r  you le f t  SAA,  a r is ing  f rom the  

cance l la t ion  o f  th is  very  award  to  i t ,  they  sue by  prepar ing  

a  document  ca l l ed  the  pa r t i cu la rs  o f  c la im.   So they  

prepare  i t ,  r igh t?   And one o f  the  documents  a t tached to  

the i r  par t i cu la rs  o f  c la im is  the  award  le t te r  i t se l f  da ted  the  
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21  August  2015.   So I  cannot  unders tand in  the  l igh t  o f  tha t  

your  ev idence tha t  they had not  rece ived i t .  

MS KWINANA:    Cha i r,  i t  may happen and I  was  say ing  

most  p robab ly  tha t  le t te r  may have been hand de l i vered by  

e i ther  Ms Mpshe or  Dr  Darwa to  LSG Sky Chefs  and 

ass is ted  LSG Sky  Chef  to  sue A i r  Chefs .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    You do not  know tha t  as  a  fac t ,  tha t  i s  

your  specu la t ion ,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MS KWINANA:    I t  i s  most  p robab le .  

CHAIRPERSON:    You are  no t  tes t i f y ing  about  someth ing  10 

you have persona l  knowledge o f ,  o f  how the  le t te r  may  

have reached them,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?   You a re  jus t  

specu la t ing ,  i s  tha t  cor rect?  

MS KWINANA:    I  am jus t  specu la t ing ,  Cha i r,  and I  am 

say ing  –  and I  have care fu l l y  se lec ted  the  word  most  

p robab le  ra ther  than say ing  poss ib le .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ms Mban jwa,  do  you…? 

MS MBANJWA:    Yes,  Cha i r.   There  is  a l so  an  e lement  o f  

d i f f i cu l t y  in  the  manner  the  quest ion  is  posed because what  

Ms Hofmeyr  i s  say ing ,  she is  say ing  tha t  th is  le t te r  20 

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Can you not  –  why can tha t  no t  be  dea l t  

in  re -examinat ion ,  Ms Mban jwa?  

MS MBANJWA:    No,  Cha i r,  i t  i s  to  ass i s t  in  the  phras ing  

o f  the  quest ion  because the  fac t  tha t  someth ing  is  a t tached  



02 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 296 
 

Page 236 of 257 
 

to  the  papers  does not  mean tha t  [ inaud ib le  –  speak ing  

s imul taneous ly ]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja  bu t  you can  dea l  w i th  tha t  e i ther  in  

a rgument  o r  in  re -examinat ion .  

MS MBANJWA:    Bu t  i t  in  a  confus ion ,  Cha i r,  th is  i s  what  

de fea ts  me because [ inaud ib le  –  speak ing  s imu l taneous ly ]  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  no ,  there  is  no  confus ion .  

MS MBANJWA:    Wel l ,  there  i s  to  me,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    There  is  no  confus ion .   Le t  us  go  ahead.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    You see,  the  prob lem I  have w i th  your  10 

most  recent  answer,  Ms Kwinana,  i s  in  the  adv ice  f rom the  

lawyers  o f  SAA tha t  you have conf i rmed in  your  ev idence  

moment  ago you  d id  rece ive  and  read.   You are  to ld  tha t  

the  le t te r  was communica ted  to  LSG Sky Chefs .  

MS KWINANA:    Cha i r,  I  ca l led  Ms F ike lepe and Ms 

F ike lepe sa id  the  award  le t te r  had not  ye t  been sent .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Wel l ,  Ms Kwinana,  a  few days la te r  on  

the  7  September  –  because remember,  th is  a l leged  

conversa t ion  took  p lace on the  2n d  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Maybe Ms Hofmeyr  –  I  am sor ry,  Ms  20 

Hofmeyr.   What  o f  course  wou ld  be  t rue  is  i f  Ms Kwinana 

says I  do  no t  know as a  fac t  whe ther  the  l e t te r  had been  

sent  ou t  o r  no t  bu t  I  was to ld  by  Ms  F ike lepe tha t  i t  had not  

been sent  ou t  and I  ac ted  on the  be l ie f  tha t  tha t  was  

fac tua l l y  t rue .   I s  tha t  what  you a re  say ing?  
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MS KWINANA:    Thank you,  Cha i r,  hundred pe rcent .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Sor ry?  

MS KWINANA:    Thank you,  Cha i r,  hundred pe rcent .  

CHAIRPERSON:    P lease,  Ms Mban jwa,  hang on.   That  i s  

what  you are  say ing?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  you do not  know whethe r  i t  had 

gone out  o r  no t  bu t  Ms F ike lepe had sa id  to  you i t  had not  

gone out  and you  be l ieved he r.  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r. .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Bu t  f i ve  days la te r  in  the  submiss ion  to  

the  board  by  the  lega l  depar tment  o f  SAA you were  to ld  i t  

had gone out .   D id  you not  –  we l l ,  you  to ld  us  you d id  read  

th is  document ,  so  how cou ld  you ho ld  on to  what  you were  

to ld  on  a  conversa t ion  f i ve  days prev ious ly  when the  

wr i t ten  document  tha t  i s  submi t ted  to  the  board  te l l s  you i t  

was communica ted  to  LSG Sky Che fs?  

MS KWINANA:    2  September,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry,  jus t  repeat?  20 

MS KWINANA:    2  September,  Cha i r,  Ms F i ke lepe i s  te l l ing  

me tha t  the  le t te r  has no t  been sent  and then f i ve  days  

la te r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    On the  7 t h  she  te l l s  you i t  has ,  i t  has  

gone out  and the  7  September  i s  be fore  you make your  
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dec is ion .   Remember,  we got  in to  th is  debate ,  Ms Kwinana,  

because you sa id  you were  no t  wor r ied  about  lawyers  –  

you were  no t  wor r ied  about  LSG Sky Chefs  su ing  South  

A f r i can A i rways because you were  sa t is f ied  tha t  the  award  

le t te r  had not  gone out .   Do you remember  g iv ing  tha t  

ev idence?  

MS KWINANA:    Cha i r,  2  September  Ms F ike lepe is  say ing  

[ inaud ib le  –  speak ing  s imu l taneous ly ]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Hang on,  hang on,  hang on,  s ta r t  by  

say ing  –  conf i rm ing do you remember  g i v ing  tha t  ev idence?   10 

S tar t  by  say ing  yes I  do  remember  or  no ,  I  do  no t  

remember.  

MS KWINANA:    I  do  remember.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t ,  then le t  us  take  i t  f rom 

there .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Thank you,  Cha i r.   So on …[ in tervenes]  

MS KWINANA:    Bu t  now,  Cha i r  –  bu t  now Cha i r… 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MS KWINANA:    2  September  Ms F ike lepe is  say ing  the  

award  le t te r  has  no t  gone out .   5  September  the  award  20 

le t te r  has gone out ,  so  i t  may have gone out  be tween the  2  

September  and the  5  September.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes bu t  Ms Hofmeyr ’s  quest ion  to  you is  

i f  you  had –  i f  you  made your  dec i s ion  as  the  board  on  the  

bas is  o f  what  Ms F i ke lepe to ld  you on the  2  September  



02 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 296 
 

Page 239 of 257 
 

w i thout  hav ing  been g iven someth ing  in  wr i t ing ,  wh ich  you  

were  g iven on the  5  September,  say ing  no ,  ac tua l l y  the  

le t te r  d id  go  ou t ,  maybe one cou ld  unders tand  but  her  

quest ion  is ,  now you have someth ing  even in  wr i t ing  a f te r  

the  2  September  conf i rm ing tha t  the  le t te r  award ing  the  

cont rac t  has gone out .   So how can you s t i l l  c l ing  to  what  

you were  to ld  te lephon ica l l y  on  the  2n d  when the re  was  

someth ing  –  there  is  now someth ing  in  wr i t ing ,  b lack  and 

wh i te ,  say ing  tha t  le t te r  had gone out .   That  i s  the  quest ion  

she put  to  you.  10 

MS KWINANA:    You know,  Cha i r,  i f  the  in fo rmat ion  on  the  

2  September  i s  say ing  the  le t te r  has no t  gone out  and then 

on the  7  September  the  le t te r  has gone out ,  tha t  means 

Thu l i  has  fas t - t racked tha t  le t te r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Sor ry,  tha t  means?  

MS KWINANA:    That  means Ms Mpshe made sure  tha t  tha t  

le t te r  i s  sent  ou t  to  LSG Sky Chefs .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  you are  no t  answer ing  my quest ion ,  

Ms Kwinana,  wh ich  is  Ms Hofmeyr ’s  quest ion .   She  says to  

you when you take  the  dec is ion  tha t  you took,  as  a  board ,  20 

you had the  benef i t  o f  th is  emai l  o r  le t te r  o f  the  5  

September  wh ich  in  b lack  and wh i te  was te l l ing  you tha t  

the  le t te r  had been sent  ou t ,  how do you exp la in  your  

conduct  in  c l ing ing  to  a  te lephon ic  adv ice  tha t  was g iven  

on the  2  September  because one wou ld  have expected tha t  
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now tha t  you have been g i ven someth ing  in  wr i t ing  you  

wou ld  a t tach  more  we igh t  to  tha t .  

MS KWINANA:    Cha i r,  th is  cont rac t ,  as  I  was say ing ,  as  I  

have been put t ing  i t  maybe fo r  the  past  th ree  hours  

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  do  no t  te l l  me what  you have to ld  me 

fo r  the  past  th ree  hours .   Do you have an exp lanat ion  or  do  

no t  have an exp lanat ion  o f  why you wou ld  p re fer  to  c l ing  to  

a  verba l  adv i ce  tha t  you were  g iven on the  2  Sep tember  

when on the  5  September  you are  g iven someth ing  in  10 

wr i t ing  tha t  says  tha t  le t te r  d id  go  ou t?   Do you have an  

exp lanat ion  fo r  tha t  o r  do  you not  have? 

MS KWINANA:    I  have an exp lanat ion ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    What  i s  the  exp lanat ion?  

MS KWINANA:    The award  in  fac t ,  as  I  sa id ,  s ta r t ing  f rom 

the  fac t  tha t  there  was a  tender  compet ing  aga ins t  A i r  

Chefs  was i r regu lar  on  i t s  own.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  so  i t  i s  back to  what  you sa id  

ear l ie r.   

MS KWINANA:    Yes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ms Hofmeyr?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Thank you.   Jus t  so  tha t  we do have i t  

fo r  record  purposes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    I  do  no t  th ink  i t  i s  necessary  to  go  there .   
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The pa ragraph in  the  lega l  submiss ion  tha t  you ind ica ted  

you d id  read a t  the  t ime is  a t  the  DD19,  the  bund le  we 

have been in ,  a t  page 132.5   Cha i r,  i t  i s  one o f  those 

unfor tunate  s i tua t ions where  the  number ing  goes  to  the 

o ther  s ide  o f  the  page because i t  i s  p r in ted  in  landscape 

ra the r  than por t ra i t .   Bu t  you w i l l  see  there  a t  pa rag raph 

2 .5  on  page 132 .5 .   We are  a t  page 132.5  in  EXHIBIT 

DD19.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  w i l l  you  te l l  them to  p lease do  

another  one because you cannot  see these numbers .  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:    I  know,  i t  i s  te r r ib le ,  Cha i r .   We wi l l  do  

so .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t ,  132.5 .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes and i f  you jus t  go  there  to  

parag raph 2 .5 ,  th is  i s  the  lega l  depar tment  conf i rm ing tha t :  

“LSG emerged the  pre fer red  b idder  and were  

recommended fo r  appo in tment  by  the  CFST,  

annexure  C.   On 14 August  2015 the  BAC 

ad jud ica ted  on the  CFST’s  recommendat ion  and 

suppor ted  i t  and fu r ther  recommended  LSG’s  20 

appo in tment  to  the  Act ing  CEO,  annex D.   On 19 

August  2015 the  CEO approved the  appo in tment  o f  

LSG as per  her  DOA,  annexure  E .   Pursuant  to  the  

CEO’s  approva l  a  le t te r  o f  award  da ted 21 Augus t  

2015 was communica ted  to  LSG,  annex F. ”  
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I  do  no t  ac tua l l y  have tha t  annexure  a t tached he re ,  i t  m ight  

have jus t  been le f t  o f f  bu t  we can cer ta in ly  source  i t  i f  

necessary  bu t  the  po in t  o f  the  mat te r  i s  the  lega l  

depar tment  te l l s  you,  Ms Kwinana,  as  a  member  o f  the  

board ,  tha t  the  le t te r  o f  award  has gone ou t ,  they  

conf i rmed tha t  on  the  7  September .   They warn  you tha t  

there  are  l i ke ly  l i t i ga t ion  r i sks  i f  th is  award  is  cance l led ,  

they ind i ca te  tha t  the  cance l la t ion  wou ld  l i ke l y  be  un lawfu l  

and nonethe less  you dec ide  to  cance l  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    And they say in  th is  paragraph 2 .5  tha t  10 

she has jus t  read,  tha t  le t te r  tha t  went  ou t  to  LSG was 

dated 21 August  2015 and on the  26  August  2015 there  

was what  they re fer  to  as  a  k i ck -o f f  meet ing  where  a  

pro jec t  f i rm –  a  k ick-o f f  meet ing  was he ld  w i th  LSG where  

a  pro jec t  p lan  was deve loped and adopted by  SAA and LSG 

to  ensure  a  successfu l  open ing  o f  the  lounge  on 29 

September  2015 wh ich  suggests  t ha t  about  a  week  before  

you went  to  par l iament  they are  say ing  LSG had a l ready  

been g i ven the  l e t te r .   Not  on ly  tha t  bu t  a  meet ing  had  

been he ld  w i th  them to  say le t  us  ta lk  about  a  p ro jec t  p lan  20 

because the  lounge must  be  opened on the  29  September  

2015.   That  i s  what  tha t  paragraph  says.  

MS KWINANA:    Cha i r,  I  am not  aware  o f  tha t .   What  I  

knew was tha t  the  award  le t te r  had not  ye t  been g iven and  

what  I  knew –  they are  ta lk ing  about  the  [ inaud ib le  –  
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speak ing  s imu l taneous ly ]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  you were  to ld  ra the r  than what  you  

knew,  i s  i t  no t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    What  you were  to ld .  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  what  I  was to ld .   And they are  ta lk ing  

about  the  de lega t ion  o f  au thor i t y  and,  as  I  sa id ,  A i r  Chefs  

i s  a  major  component  –  i s  an  impor tan t  component  o f  SAA 

tha t  was supposed to  be  approved …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja  bu t  the  de legat ion  o f  au thor i t y  i s  a  10 

s ide  issue fo r  purposes o f  Ms Hofmeyr ’s  quest ion .    

MS KWINANA:    I t  i s  no t  a  s ide  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    What  i s  impor tan t  fo r  her  ques t ion  is  

whethe r  LSG had rece ived the  no t i f i ca t ion  tha t  they had  

been awarded.  

MS KWINANA:    I  was to ld ,  Cha i r,  tha t  the  no t i f i ca t ion  has  

no t  ye t  been …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    But  your  ev idence was you rece ived th is  

memorandum and  you d id  read i t ,  cor rec t?  20 

MS KWINANA:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  how d id  you miss  th is?  

MS KWINANA:    How d id  I  m iss  what?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    The fac t  tha t  you were  now been to ld  

tha t  i t  had been sent  ou t .  
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MS KWINANA:    On 2  September  …[ in tervenes]  

ADV HOFMEYR:    No,  no ,  how d id  you miss  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    P lease –  okay,  le t  me ass i s t .   Ms  

Kwinana… 

MS KWINANA:    Cha i r?  

CHAIRPERSON:    As  I  unders tand the  pos i t ion ,  you have 

conf i rmed tha t  the  memorandum,  paragraph 2 .5  o f  wh ich  

we read a  few minutes  ago …[ in tervenes]  

MS MBANJWA:    Sor ry,  what  page is  tha t?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    132.5 .  10 

MS MBANJ WA:    Sor ry,  Cha i r,  to  in te r rup t ,  I  do  no t  know i f  

I  am a t  the  cor rec t  p lace  because  on DD19,  132.4 ,  i s  tha t  

what  has been read out?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    132.5 .  

CHAIRPERSON:    132.5 .  

MS MBANJ WA:    Yes bu t  tha t  document  i s  addressed to  

the  Act ing  Ch ie f  Execut ive  Off icer  and to  the  Ch ie f  

P rocurement  –  i s  tha t  the  document  tha t  i s  supposed to  

have been seen by  Ms Kwinana?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes,  she has conf i rmed she saw i t  and 20 

read i t ,  Ms Mban jwa,  tha t  i s  her  ev idence.  

MS MBANJ WA:    No,  I  th ink  she must  be  taken  back  to  tha t  

document  because i t  no t  addressed …[ in tervenes]  

MS KWINANA:    132.5 .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Hang on,  Ms …[ in tervenes]  
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MS KWINANA:    Th is  document  tha t  s ta r ts  w i th  2 .3 .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Cor rec t .   Th is  i s  the  –  I  submi t  

…[ in te rvenes]  

MS MBANJWA:    Where  does th is  document  s ta r t?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    I t  s ta r ts  a t  page  132.4 .  

MS KWINANA:    So  th is  document  mos does not  go  to  the  

board .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    No but  you con f i rmed tha t  you rece ived  

i t  because you sa id  tha t  you had read i t  a  moment  ago.  

MS KWINANA:    No,  th is  document .  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes,  the  submiss ion  f rom the  lega l  

depar tment .   I  have your  ev idence to  be  tha t  you  

…[ in tervenes]  

MS KWINANA:    No.  

MS MBANJWA:    And,  Cha i r  …[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ms Mban jwa,  jus t  ho ld  on ,  a l low the  

ev idence leader  and the  w i tness to  dea l  w i th  th is  and  le t  us  

see.    

MS KWINANA:    No,  I  d id  no t  read  th is  document .   I  d id  no t  

even get  i t .  20 

ADV HOFMEYR:    You are  sure  about  tha t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes.  

MS MBANJ WA:    Bu t ,  Cha i r,  w i th  your  permiss ion .   Th is  i s  

what  I  compla in  about .   Mrs  Hofmeyr  takes a  document  -  

Ms Hofmeyr,  sor ry,  take  a  document  –  I  have never  seen 



02 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 296 
 

Page 246 of 257 
 

ev idence be ing  led  l i ke  th is  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ms Mban jwa …[ in tervenes]  

MS MBANJ WA:    A w i tness must  be  taken to  ident i f y  the  

document .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ms Mban jwa,  no t  a l l  the  t ime.   P lease  

…[ in tervenes]  

MS MBANJ WA:    Bu t  th is  i s  what  i s  caus ing  confus ion ,  

Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    A l low –  a l low Ms Hofmeyr  to  do  her  job  

the  way she be l i eves i t  shou ld  be  done.   The w i tness w i l l  10 

ind ica te  where  she may have I  m isunders tood he r  quest ion  

and g i ve  a  cer ta in  answer  and i f  Ms Hofmeyr  accepts  tha t  

maybe there  was a  I  m isunders tand ing  she w i l l  say  so .  

MS MBANJWA:    Bu t  p lease,  Cha i r,  le t  us  be  taken  to the  

document .   I t  i s  s tandard  in  a l l  l i t i ga t ion  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Do not  –  you are  no t  go ing  to  d ic ta te  to  

her  how to  do  her  job ,  Ms Mban jwa.   She is  no t  go ing  to  

d ic ta te  to  you how to  do  your  job  when you re-examine.   

MS MBANJWA:    Bu t ,  Cha i r,  i t  is  no t  her  job ,  there  is  a  

w i tness I  am rep resent ing .   She is  no t  be ing  taken to  the 20 

document .  

CHAIRPERSON:    P lease keep qu ie t ,  Ms Mban jwa.  

MS MBANJWA:    And th is  i s  what  i s  caus ing  confus ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    P lease keep qu ie t ,  le t  us  make p rogress.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  what  memorandum f rom the  lega l  
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depar tment  d id  you read then?  

MS KWINANA:    Maybe what  you can do to  ass is t  me,  

Cha i r,  i s  to  take  me to  the  m inutes  o f  the  board  meet ing  

tha t  ta lk  about  th is .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    I  want  to  ask  a  quest ion  be fore .   Your  

ev idence ea r l ie r  was tha t  you read the  memorandum f rom 

the  lega l  depar tment .   I f  i t  i s  no t  th is  memorandum,  what  

memorandum d id  you read?  

MS KWINANA:    Maybe I  d id  no t  read the  memorandum,  

the  lega l  document  bu t  …[ in te rvenes]  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Sor ry?  

MS KWINANA:    Bu t  le t  us  say I  d id  no t  read the  

memorandum f rom the  lega l  document   -  lega l  depar tment  

because …[ in tervenes]  

ADV HOFMEYR:    No but  tha t  i s  a  d i f fe ren t  p iece  o f  

ev idence.   A re  you say ing  tha t  you d id  or  you d id  no t?   

Your  p rev ious ev idence was you d id .  

MS KWINANA:    No,  I  d id  no t .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    You d id  no t .   You are  now sure  about  

tha t?  20 

MS KWINANA:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    You –  when you  prev ious ly  sa id  you d id ,  

you were  wrong,  cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    H ’m.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And then you wanted to  go  to  tha t  board  
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reso lu t ion .   I  am jus t  go ing  to  have  to f ind  i t ,  i f  I  may.   How 

wi l l  tha t  ass i s t  you,  Ms Kwinana?  

MS KWINANA:    The reason is  because th is  document  i s  

no t  addressed to  the  board  and as  I  sa id  p rev ious ly  

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  th ink  she says she –  i f  i t  i s  suggested 

tha t  th is  document  was sent  to  the  board  there  wou ld  be  a  

reso lu t ion  o f  the  board  wh ich  re fe rs  to  th is  document .  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And tha t  i s  the  reso lu t ion  she wou ld  l i ke  10 

to  be  re fer red  to .  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes,  I  can take  you to  the  reso lu t ion  a t  

wh ich  the  dec is ion  was made to  cance l  i t .   There  is  no 

re ference to  a l l  the  documents  tha t  p receded i t  bu t  I  w i l l  

take  you to  i t .   I t  i s  a t  the  same bund le ,  you have to  go  

now I  th ink  back  a  b i t  in  the  pag ing .   You have to  go  to  

132.16.3 .1 .  

MS KWINANA:    DD19?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Indeed.  20 

MS KWINANA:    1 .16?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Po in t  16 .3 .1 .5 .  

MS KWINANA:    Can you p lease repeat?   DD132? 

CHAIRPERSON:    DD19.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    132.16.3 .1 .   Those are  the  m inutes  o f  
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the  meet ing  on  the  28  September  2015.  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.   So wh ich  paragraph?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    The reso lu t ion  you w i l l  see  a t  page 15.   

So i t  i s  132.16.3 .15 .   Ja ,  you w i l l  see  i t  a t  page 15 o f  17 .  

MS MBANJWA:    Ms Hofmeyr,  I  am a t  page 132.16.3 .1 .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes,  tha t  i s  where  i t  s ta r ts  and  then I  

was tak ing  Ms Kwinana to  where  the  reso lu t ion  is  recorded 

and tha t  i s  a t  page 15.   So i t  i s  132.16.3 .15 .  

MS KWINANA:    Po in t  15 .   Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    You a t tended th is  meet ing ,  i s  tha t  10 

cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And your  ev idence is  you may not  –  a re  

you c lear  you d id  no t  rece ive  the  lega l  depar tment ’s  

memo?  I s  tha t  your  ev idence?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes.   And so  you were  re ly ing  on  what  

Ms F ike lepe has sa id  to  you on the  2  September  about  the  

s ta tus  o f  the  le t te r  o f  award ,  co r rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  20 

ADV HOFMEYR:    And you had no reason to  doubt  what  

she to ld  you on the  2n d ,  i s  tha t  co r rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And you took the  dec i s ion  to  cance l  the  

award  because you were  sa t is f ied  i f  a  le t te r  o f  award  had 
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no t  ye t  gone out  you wou ld  no t  be  as  in  as  much r i sk  as  i f  

i t  had,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Thank you.   Le t  us  look  a t  the 

d iscuss ion  tha t  took p lace a t  tha t  meet ing  because  –  sor ry  

and you saw the  reso lu t ion ,  you saw tha t  a t  page 15 :  

“ I t  was reso lved  tha t  the  SAA domest ic  lounge ’s  

tender  to  be  re t rac ted  and the  ca ter ing  cont rac t  to  

be  awarded to  A i r  Chefs  w i thout  go ing  th rough the  

b idd ing  process. ”  10 

Do you see tha t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    What  happens before  tha t  in  these 

minutes  is  the  lengthy  d iscuss ion  tha t  took p lace between  

the  members  o f  the  board  i s  recounted and le t  us  go  back  

a  page to  page 14 then,  132.16.3 .14  and le t  us  go  to  H at  

tha t  page.   He says:  

“The GM LRC…” 

What  i s  the  GM LRC? 

MS KWINANA:    Lega l  and R isk .  20 

ADV HOFMEYR:    Lega l  and R isk .   So who wou ld  tha t  be?  

MS KWINANA:    Ms F ike lepe.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Ms F ike lepe,  the  same person who on  

the  2  September  when you were  a t  par l iament  to ld  you tha t  

a  le t te r  o f  award  had not  gone out .   What  she to ld  the  
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meet ing  on  the  28  September,  cons is ten t  w i th  what  i s  in  

the  memorandum tha t  you now say you d id  no t  see ,  i s  she 

repor ts  the  fo l low ing:  

“A t  tha t  s tage on ly  a  le t te r  o f  award  had been  

issued and there  was no cont rac t  in  p lace .   She  

s ta ted  tha t  the  lega l  op in ion…” 

That  i s  the  one we have jus t  been look ing  a t .  

“…prov ided tha t  where  a  s ta te  owned ent i t y  went  

ou t  on  tender  i t  was cons idered admin i s t ra t i ve  

ac t ion .   There fo re ,  shou ld  i t  want  to  cance l  the  10 

tender  i t  shou ld  g ive  the  o ther  pa r ty  an  oppor tun i ty  

to  be  heard  and  the  reasons fo r  the  cance l la t ion  

shou ld  be  t ransparent ,  compet i t i ve  and cost -

e f fec t i ve . ”  

So,  Ms Kwinana,  I  pu t  i t  to  you tha t  i t  was qu i te  c lea r  a t  

tha t  meet ing  tha t  the  le t te r  o f  award  had gone out .  

MS KWINANA:    No.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    What  i s  your  response to  tha t?  

MS KWINANA:    Th i s  meet ing  was on the  28  September  

and we were  in  par l iament  on  the  2  September.   So tha t  20 

means by  th is  28  September  th is  l e t te r  o f  award  may have  

gone out  bu t  on  the  2  September  the  le t te r  may not  have  

gone out .     

ADV HOFMEYR:    No but  tha t  i s  exact ly  why I  was ve ry  

care fu l  be fo re  we went  to  th is  to  ge t  c lear  your  thought  
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p rocess.    Your  thought  p rocess was you were  accept ing  

cance l l ing  the  tender,  desp i te  the  rese rva t ions o f  the  lega l  

team,  because you were  sa t is f ied  tha t  the  le t te r  o f  award  

had not  gone out ,  and I  am put t ing  to  you Ms Kwinana tha t  

tha t  cannot  be  so ,  because you were  a t tend ing  a  meet ing  

a t  wh ich  you were  to ld  be fo re  the  dec i s ion  was made tha t  

the  le t te r  o f  award  had gone out ,  what  i s  you r  response to  

tha t?  

MS KWINANA:    I  s t i l l  don ’ t  unders tand Cha i r  because I  am 

say ing  on  the  2 n d  o f  September  I  am to ld  tha t  the  l e t te r  o f  10 

award  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Le t  me t ry  and  c la r i f y  i t  to  you.    You 

remember  tha t  you sa id  tha t  in  e f fec t ,  I  am not  quot ing  you,  

tha t  Ms F ike lepe to ld  you on the  2 n d  o f  September  tha t  the  

le t te r  o f  award  had not  gone out .  

MS KWINANA:   Yes Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    You remember  tha t .   My unders tand ing  

o f  what  you were  say ing  was tha t  you were  say ing  tha t  

gave you a  cer ta in  leve l  o f  comfor t  to  say the  dec i s ion  can 

be reve rsed because a t  leas t  the  le t te r  had not  gone out  –  20 

d id  I  –  was my impress ion  cor rec t  o f  what  you sa id ,  o f  what  

–  why you were  mak ing  tha t  po in t?  

MS KWINANA:    The dec i s ion  may be reve rsed w i thout  

much damage.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  ja ,  what  you are  say ing  is  i t  was 
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g iv ing  you a  cer ta in  leve l  o f  comfo r t .  

MS KWINANA:   Yes Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   Now Ms Hofmeyr  i s  say ing  to  you 

when you made the  dec is ion  as  a  Board  tha t  tha t  award  

shou ld  be  re t rac ted  you knew,  because in  tha t  meet ing  

be fore  the  f ina l  dec is ion  o r  reso lu t ion  was made  Ms 

F ike lepe d id  say the  le t te r  o f  award  had gone out ,  what  she 

sa id  had not  happened was the  conc lus ion  o f  the  cont rac t ,  

she is  then say ing ,  tha t  i s  Ms Hofmeyr,  i t  cou ld  no t  be  t rue  

tha t  when you make the  dec is ion  on  the  da te  on  wh ich  i t  10 

was made you were  in f luenced by  the  fac t  tha t  by  what  Ms 

F i ke lepe had to ld  you on the  2n d  o f  September,  because  

tha t  had changed  and you knew tha t .   That  i s  what  she is  

say ing ,  what  do  you say to  tha t?  

MS KWINANA:   That  i s  t rue  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  i s  t rue?  

MS KWINANA:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Thank you,  so  you weren ’ t  then  –  we l l  

te l l  me were  you worr ied  then about  the  l i t iga t ion  r i sk  20 

f low ing f rom the  fac t  tha t  an  award  le t te r  had gone out?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    You were ,  bu t  you s t i l l  dec ided to  cance l  

i t  and desp i te  the  fac t  tha t  the  CFO at  tha t  meet ing  had 

recorded tha t  he  was very  wor r ied  about  the  exposure  o f  
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R85mi l l ion  tha t  SAA cou ld  face  i f  the  cont rac t  –  the  award  

was cance l led ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    Cha i r  I  was wor r ied  about  the  who le  lo t  o f  

th ings as  I  have ar t i cu la ted  he re .   So l i t iga t ion  was  one o f  

them,  I  was wor r ied  there  were  go ing  to  be  r i sks  i f  th is  i s  

cance l led  there  were  go ing  to  be  r i sks  i f  we d id  go  ahead,  

so  bas ica l l y  wh ichever  dec i s ion  tha t  you wou ld  have made  

wou ld  have some e lement  o f  r i sk .   

ADV HOFMEYR:    Bu t  the  r i sk  tha t  we have looked  a t ,  tha t  

in fo rmed your  dec i s ion ,  re la ted  to  the  re t renchment  o f  10 

employees and the  loss  o f  the  A i r  Chefs  bus iness ,  i s  tha t  

cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes.   

ADV HOFMEYR:    And Ms Mpshe addressed both  o f  those  

po in ts  bu t  you say you d id  no t  take  what  she sa id  to  be  

cor rec t ,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MS KWINANA:    Yes Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Thank you.   And you have subsequent ly  

learn t  tha t  LSG Sky Chefs  d id  sue SAA in  re la t ion  to  th is  

award ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  20 

MS KWINANA:    Yes Cha i r,  yes .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Thank you.   Cha i r  I  wou ld  then  l i ke  to  

move on i f  we may . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS KWINANA:    I  jus t  sa id  by  Ms Mpshe.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Ms Kwinana you  keep mak ing  re ferences 
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to  the  fac t  tha t  they were  ass is ted  by  Mr  Mpshe,  do  you 

have ac tua l  know ledge o f  tha t?  

MS KWINANA:    No.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    You don ’ t ,  bu t  you fee l  f ree  in  th is  

Commiss ion  to  make c la ims about  wh ich  you have no  

knowledge,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MS KWINANA:    A lo t  o f  th ings have been made about  me 

Cha i r  here ,  a  lo t  o f  names have been made about  me here  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Ms Kwinana . . . [ in te rvenes]   10 

MS KWINANA:   I t  was a  huge . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Ms Kwinana when you say ass i s ted  by  

Ms Mpshe you rea l i se  tha t  what  you wou ld  be  say ing  is  tha t  

Ms Mpshe may have acted  i n  a  manner  tha t  m ight  be  seen  

as  unacceptab le ,  because she was  the  ac t ing  CEO of  SAA, 

you are  say ing  she was ass i s t ing  somebody to  sue SAA,  

you rea l i se  tha t?  

MS KWINANA:   Yes Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Now why wou ld  you say such a  th ing  

when you have no fac ts  t o  base tha t  on .   Why wou ld  you  20 

say such a  th ing  about  somebody  when you do not  have  

fac ts .   I s  tha t  the  type o f  person you are?    You can jus t  

say  somebody ass is ted  somebody,  pu t  them in  a  bad l igh t  

when you don ’ t  have fac ts  in  a  pub l i c  p la t fo rm? 

MS KWINANA:    I  am say ing  most  p robab ly  Cha i r.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Ja  bu t  have you got  fac ts  on  wh ich  to  

base what  you are  say ing ,  even i f  you say p robab ly,  have  

you got  fac t s?    You see Ms Kwinana you are  a  Char te red  

Accountant ,  you  are  a  pro fess iona l ,  there  are  cer ta in  

th ings tha t  even  i f  you suspect  you cannot  say  about  

peop le ,  par t i cu la r ly  in  a  pub l i c  p la t fo rm l i ke  th is  un less  you 

have got  fac ts .   I t  i s  no t  respons ib le  to  do  tha t .   One wou ld  

expect  a  p ro fess iona l  l i ke  you to  know tha t  and to  ac t  in  a  

respons ib le  manner.   Ms Hofmeyr?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Thank you Cha i r.   Cha i r  I  am mov ing  10 

now to  a  new top ic  and we are  ve ry  c lose  to  s ix ,  so  i t  may 

be appropr ia te  fo r  us  to  ad journ  now.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  I  th ink  tha t  i s  f ine ,  I  th ink  we must  

ad journ  t i l l  tomor row.  

MS HOFMEYR:   Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Maybe we shou ld  s ta r t  a  l i t t le  ear l ie r  

than normal  tomorrow.  

MS HOFMEYR:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ha l f  past  n ine?  

MS HOFMEYR:   That  w i l l  be  idea l ,  thank you Cha i r,  i f  i t  is  20 

conven ien t  fo r  Ms  Mban jwa and Ms  Kwinana.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ms Mban jwa w i l l  tha t  be  f ine?  

MS MBANJWA:  Thank you Cha i r,  yes  i t  i s  conven ien t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wou ld  tha t  be  f ine  w i th  you?  

MS KWINANA:    That  w i l l  be  f ine  Cha i r.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t ,  so  we w i l l  ad jou rn  now 

and then tomorrow we wi l l  s ta r t  a t  ha l f  past  n ine .     

 We ad journ .  

REGISTRAR:   Al l  r i se .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS TO 3  NOVEMBER 2020  


